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FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT 
 

 

Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC  
14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260 
(480) 386-9708 
Email: TJ@Redlineathletics.com 
www.Redlineathletics.com 

We are offering Regional Developer Business(s) under this Franchise Disclosure Document. Note that the 
term "Regional Developer" as used in this document has the same definition and meaning as an "Area 
Representatives" under the NASAA Multi-Unit Commentary adopted in September 2014. Regional 
Developers will recruit prospective Franchisees in a defined Development Area and provide certain sales 
and support services to the Franchisees located within the Development Area. Franchisees conduct business 
under the name of "Redline Athletics” and/or “Redline” and operate training centers that provide youth sports 
performance training products and services, physical fitness training classes, school fundraisers, adult boot 
camps, and related products and services to the public.  

The total investment necessary to begin operations of your Regional Developer Business is $100,475 to 
$224,925. This includes $87,500 to $187,500 that must be paid to the Franchisor or an affiliate. 

This disclosure document ("Disclosure Document") summarizes certain provisions of your franchise 
agreement and other information in plain English. Read this Disclosure Document and all accompanying 
agreements carefully. You must receive this Disclosure Document at least fourteen (14) calendar days 
before you sign a binding agreement with, or make any payment to, us or an affiliate in connection with the 
proposed franchise sale. Note, however, that no government agency has verified the information contained 
in this document. 

You may wish to receive your Disclosure Document in another format that is more convenient for you. To 
discuss the availability of disclosures in different formats, contact T.J. O'Connor, Redline Athletics 
Franchising, LLC, 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260, (480) 386-9708. 

The terms of your contract will govern your franchise relationship. Don't rely on the Disclosure Document 
alone to understand your contract. Read your entire contract carefully. Show your contract and this 
Disclosure Document to an advisor, like a lawyer or accountant. 

Buying a franchise is a complex investment. The information in this Disclosure Document can help you 
make up your mind. More information on franchising, such as "A Consumer's Guide to Buying a 
Franchise," which can help you understand how to use this disclosure document is available from the 
Federal Trade Commission. You can contact the FTC at 1-877-FTC-HELP or by writing to the FTC at 600 
Pennsylvania Avenue NW, Washington, DC 20580. You can also visit the FTC's home page at www.ftc.gov 
for additional information on franchising. Call your state agency or visit your public library for other 
sources of information on franchising. There may be laws on franchising in your state. Ask your state 
agencies about them. 

Issuance Date:  June 24, 2024 

  

http://www.redlineathletics.com/
http://www.ftc.gov/
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How to Use This Franchise Disclosure Document? 

Here are some questions you may be asking about buying a franchise and tips on how to 
find more information: 

QUESTION WHERE TO FIND INFORMATION 

How much can I earn? Item 19 may give you information about outlet sales, 
costs, profits, or losses. You should also try to obtain 
this information from others, like current and former 
franchisees. You can find their names and contact 
information in Item 20 or Exhibit F. 

How much will I need to invest? Items 5 and 6 list fees you will be paying to the 
Franchisor or at the Franchisor’s direction. Item 7 
lists the initial investment to open. Item 8 describes 
the suppliers you must use. 

Does the Franchisor have the 
financial ability to provide 
support to my business? 

Item 21 or Exhibit D includes financial statements. 
Review these statements carefully. 

Is the franchise system stable, 
growing, or shrinking? 

Item 20 summarizes the recent history of the number 
of company-owned and franchised outlets. 

Will my business be the only 
Redline Regional Developer 
Franchised Business in my 
area? 

Item 12 and the “territory” provisions in the 
franchise agreement describe whether the Franchisor 
and other franchisees can compete with you. 

Does the Franchisor have a 
troubled legal history? 

Items 3 and 4 tell you whether the Franchisor or its 
management have been involved in material 
litigation or bankruptcy proceedings. 

What’s it like to be a Redline 
Regional Developer Franchised 
Business franchisee? 

Item 20 or Exhibit F lists current and former 
franchisees. You can contact them to ask about their 
experiences. 

What else should I know? These questions are only a few things you should 
look for. Review all 23 Items and all Exhibits in this 
disclosure document to better understand this 
franchise opportunity. See the table of contents. 
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What You Need to Know About Franchising Generally 

Continuing responsibility to pay fees. You may have to pay royalties and other fees even 
if you are losing money. 

Business model can change. The franchise agreement may allow the Franchisor to change 
its manuals and business model without your consent. These changes may require you to 
make additional investments in your franchise business or may harm your franchise 
business. 

Supplier restrictions. You may have to buy or lease items from the Franchisor or a limited 
group of suppliers the Franchisor designates. These items may be more expensive than 
similar items you could buy on your own. 

Operating restrictions. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business during the term of the franchise. There are usually other restrictions. Some 
examples may include controlling your location, your access to customers, what you sell, 
how you market, and your hours of operation. 

Competition from franchisor. Even if the franchise agreement grants you a territory, the 
Franchisor may have the right to compete with you in your territory. 

Renewal. Your franchise agreement may not permit you to renew. Even if it does, you may 
have to sign a new agreement with different terms and conditions in order to continue to 
operate your franchise business. 

When your franchise ends. The franchise agreement may prohibit you from operating a 
similar business after your franchise ends even if you still have obligations to your landlord 
or other creditors. 

Some States Require Registration 

Your state may have a franchise law, or other law, that requires franchisors to register 
before offering or selling franchises in the state. Registration does not mean that the state 
recommends the franchise or has verified the information in this document. To find out if 
your state has a registration requirement, or to contact your state, use the agency 
information in Exhibit A. 

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. If so, check the "State Specific 
Addenda" pages for your state. Your state also may have laws that require special 
disclosures or amendments be made to your franchise agreement. If so, you should check 
the State Specific Addenda. See the Table of Contents for the location of the State Specific 
Addenda. 
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Special Risks to Consider About This Franchise 

Certain states require that the following risk(s) be highlighted: 

1. Out of State Dispute Resolution. The Regional Developer agreement requires you 
to resolve disputes with us by mediation, arbitration and/or litigation only in 
Arizona. Out-of- state mediation, arbitration, or litigation may force you to accept a 
less favorable settlement for disputes. It may also cost you more to mediate, arbitrate 
or litigate with us in Arizona than in your home state. 

2. Spousal Liability. Your spouse must sign a document that makes your spouse liable 
for all financial obligations under the franchise agreement even if your souse has no 
ownership interest in the franchise. This guarantee will place both you and your 
spouse's marital and personal assets, perhaps including your house, at risk if your 
franchise fails. 

3. Financial Condition. The franchisor’s financial condition, as reflected in its 
financial statements (see Item 21), calls into question the franchisor’s financial 
ability to provide services and support to you.  

Certain states may require other risks to be highlighted. Check the “State Specific 
Addenda” (if any) to see whether your state requires other risks to be highlighted. 
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ITEM 1: 
THE FRANCHISOR AND ANY PARENTS, PREDECESSORS AND AFFILIATES 

Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC (“Redline” or "Franchisor" or "we" or "us") offers Regional Developer 
Businesses through this Disclosure Document. Regional Developer Businesses recruit prospective Redline 
Performance Centers in a defined development area (“Development Area”) and provide certain sales and 
support services to Redline Performance Centers located within the Development Area. 

We also offer "Unit" franchises pursuant to a separate disclosure document.  

Note that the term “Regional Developer” as used in this document has the same definition and meaning as 
an “Area Representatives” under the NASAA Multi-Unit Commentary.  

Franchisor offers prospective franchisees the opportunity to operate inline training centers that provide 
sports performance training products and services to the public, with a focus on ages 8 through 18 ("Redline 
Performance Center"). 

To simplify the language in this Disclosure Document, the terms, “We,” “Us,” “the Company,” or 
“Redline” mean Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, the Franchisor (but not the Company’s officers, 
directors, agents, or employees). “You” or “Regional Developer” mean the person who buys a Regional 
Developer Business from us. The term “Franchisee(s)” means franchisees that enter into Franchise 
Agreements with us. The term “Redline Business(s)” means one or several Redline Performance Centers. 
If you are a corporation, partnership or other entity, our Franchise Agreement (“Franchise Agreement”) 
will also apply to your Owners, officers, and directors. Unless otherwise indicated, the term “Franchised 
Business” means any type of Redline® franchise. 

The Franchisor, and any Parents, Predecessor and Affiliates 

We are an Arizona limited liability company, created on March 29, 2013. We have no parents or 
predecessors. 

Our principal business and mailing address is Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, 14000 North Hayden 
Road, Suite 101 Scottsdale, Arizona 85260 Telephone: (480) 386-9708, www.Redlineathletics.com. We 
have operated Redline Performance Centers since February 2013. We have offered Redline Athletics 
franchises since May 2013. 

Our telephone number is (480) 386-9708. We do not maintain an office at any location other than our 
principal places of business. We operate under our corporate name, Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC. 
We do not do business or intend to do business under any other names. Our agent for service of process is 
disclosed in Exhibit A to this Disclosure Document. 

Our former affiliate, Redline Athletics, Inc., granted five (5) licensees in the State of California the right to 
use the “Redline Athletics®” name. One (1) of the licensees has since become a franchise. Our former 
affiliate also operates a facility under the Redline Athletics® Mark in San Juan Capistrano, California, 
although that facility is not a franchise. We do not have any direct contractual relationships with the four 
(4) remaining licensees.  

Our Business 

We grant franchises for the right to operate under the name “Redline Athletics®,” “Redline®,” “Redline®
 

Sports Performance Centers” and other marks designated by the Company from time to time (collectively 
referred to as the “Marks”). We refer to our proprietary and confidential system for the operation of Redline 

http://www.redlineathletics.com/
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Performance Center and Regional Developer Businesses, together with the Marks, as “the System.” You 
must offer all products and services that we specify and may not offer any products or services we have not 
authorized. We are not currently engaged in any other business. We have not conducted business in any 
other lines of business and do not offer franchises under any other names. 

We currently offer Franchisees the opportunity to operate Redline Performance Centers in a manner 
consistent with the Franchise Agreement pursuant to a separate disclosure document.  

Redline Performance Center(s) offer specialized programs to develop core stability, speed improvement, 
running form and agility, and strength training. Each Redline Business’s trainers will also provide skills 
instruction for various sports, including baseball, softball, football, basketball, and more. At this time, no 
products are being sold by Redline Performance Centers. The products and services we designate for offer 
and sale at Redline Performance Centers include our proprietary, designated, or approved sports training 
products and programs, and other products and services we may designate or approve from time to time 
(“Products and Services”). The Products and Services form part of our proprietary program which we call 
the “Redline Program” or “Our Program.” Franchisees must operate Redline Businesses in accordance with 
the standards and procedures designated by the Company, and according to the Company’s Operations 
Manual for Redline Performance Centers, or other notices we send Franchisees from time to time (the 
"Manual(s)”). 

Regional Developer Businesses recruit prospective Franchisees in the Development Area and provide 
certain sales and support services to Franchisees located in the Development Area. 

You will be provided with a copy of our applicable Manuals at the time you sign your Franchise Agreement. 
A copy of the Table of Contents for each of our Manuals is attached as Exhibit C. 

Market and Competition 

The market for Redline Performance Centers includes individuals and/or entities who need or desire sports 
training products and services. The competition for Redline Performance Centers includes other businesses 
offering similar products and services to individuals and/or entities. The market for the sports training and 
fitness industry is well established and competitive. These competitors may include other sports training 
facilities, health clubs, studios, personal trainers, athletic programs and/or franchises. Such services are 
offered by individuals, small businesses, and other national, regional, and local chains. 

Regional Developer Businesses compete with other franchisors, regional developers, sales brokers, and 
others offering franchises or other business opportunities. Prior business management experience is 
particularly important for new Regional Developers, and prior business ownership experience is highly 
desirable. 

Laws and Regulations 

Many states and local jurisdictions have enacted laws, rules, regulations, and ordinances that may apply to 
the operation of a Redline Business. For example, state licensing and certification requirements may apply 
to persons who perform fitness, teaching, or services involving children and adults. In all cases, you must 
also comply with laws that apply generally to all businesses. You should investigate these laws and consult 
with a legal advisor about whether these and/or other requirements apply to your franchise. In addition to 
laws and regulations that apply to businesses generally, your Regional Developer Business may be subject 
to federal, state, and local occupational safety and health regulations, Equal Employment Opportunity and 
Americans with Disabilities Act rules and regulations. There may be other laws and regulations in your 
city, state or county that may apply to the operations of your Regional Developer Business. We require that 
all Regional Developers and Franchisees conduct a criminal background check on any persons, including 
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but not limiting to, trainers and other staff that will be working with minors to ensure the safety of any of 
the minors that participate in the Redline® Program. 

ITEM 2: 
BUSINESS EXPERIENCE 

Chance J. Pearson - Chief Executive Officer 

Mr. Pearson became the Chief Executive Officer of Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC in January 2019. 
From April 2017 through January 2019, Mr. Pearson was our Chief Operating Officer.  

T.J. O'Connor – Vice President of Development 

Mr. O'Connor has been Vice President of Development for Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC since June 
of 2019. From January 2019 through June 2019, Mr. O'Connor was a VIP Mortgage Loan Originator with 
Quicken Loans in Phoenix, Arizona.  

Brad Hinkle – Vice President of Operations 

Mr. Hinkle has been Vice President of Operations for Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC since January 
2015. 

Rachel Elfata – Vice President of Operations 

Since January 2024, Ms. Elfata has been our Vice President of Operations. Since January 2021, Ms. Elfata 
has also been a Redline Athletics franchisee in Bedford, New Hampshire. Since September 2014, Ms. Elfata 
has been a realtor in Bedford, New Hampshire. 

ITEM 3: 
LITIGATION 

No litigation information is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 4: 
BANKRUPTCY 

No bankruptcy information is required to be disclosed in this Item. 

ITEM 5: 
INITIAL FEES 

You must pay us a Development Fee ("the Development Fee") when you sign the Regional Developer 
Agreement. We estimate that the Development Fee you will pay us will range from $87,500 to $187,500, 
depending on the population of your defined Development Area. This range includes Development Areas 
that include between seven (7) and fifteen (15) Redline Performance Centers. If your Development Area 
includes more than fifteen (15) Redline Performance Centers, the Development Fee will be higher than the 
provided estimate. The formula used to determine the Development Fee for your Development Area is 
calculated by multiplying 25% of the then-current Initial Franchise Fee for Redline Performance Centers 
times the number of potential Redline Performance Centers within the proposed geographically defined 
Development Area.  

The Development Fee must be paid by wire transfer, cash, or certified funds when you sign the Regional 
Developer Agreement. The Development Fee formula is applied uniformly for all Regional Developers. 
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However, we reserve the right to modify the Development Fee in the future to reflect the changing costs of 
doing business and changes in the value of a Regional Developer Business. We may also discount the 
Development Fee: (i) if a Regional Developer purchases multiple Development Areas, depending on the 
number of Development Areas purchased and their locations; (ii) if we are unable to locate a Regional 
Developer in a particular region we consider desirable; or (iii) based on other subjective factors we deem 
important to the System. 

We incur significant administrative and other expenses in appointing you as a Regional Developer, 
including training costs, attorneys' fees for preparing your Regional Developer Agreement, and expenses 
related to our lost or deferred opportunities to enfranchise others. As a result, the Development Fee is fully 
earned by us upon receipt and is nonrefundable. 

ITEM 6: 
OTHER FEES* 

Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks 

Regional Developer 
Advertising 
Cooperatives (1) 

Varies without limitation; 
based on a majority vote 
of the cooperative 

As required by the 
cooperative 

Currently, no advertising 
cooperatives have been 
established (see Item 11). 

Contribution to the 
Company's 
Advertising Fund 

Currently 1% of the 
Regional Developer's 
share of Initial Franchise 
Fee commissions and 
Royalty Fees within the 
Development Area (we 
have the right to increase 
this amount to 2%) 

On or before the date that 
Regional Developer's 
share of any Initial 
Franchise Fees or Royalty 
Fees are due. 

Based on franchise sales 
made within your 
Development Area. Also 
based on your share of the 
Royalty Fees collected 
from Franchisees within 
your Development Area. 
(See Item 11 for 
additional information.) 

Interest Lesser of 15% per annum, 
or the highest commercial 
contract interest rate 
permitted by law 

From the date payments 
are due, and continues 
until outstanding balance 
and accrued interest are 
paid in full 

Charged on any late 
payments of any amounts 
due us or our affiliates. 

Technology Fee (2) $325/month; but we have 
the right to increase this 
amount in the future upon 
written notice to you 

Monthly Payable to cover the 
monthly cost of accessing 
our proprietary computer 
management software and 
programs (See Item 11). 

Development 
Marketing Fee (3)  

10+ unsold licenses in 
Development Area-$1,000 
per month. 
0-9 unsold licenses in 
Development Area-$750 
per month. 

Monthly Payable to Us. Payable per 
Development Area 

Audit Expenses Cost of audit and 
inspection, plus any 
reasonable accounting and 
legal expenses 

On demand Payable if 2% or more 
discrepancy in amounts 
owed, or if you fail to 
submit required reports. 
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Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks 

Late Reporting Fee $100 10th day of the month 
following any month for 
which any required report 
is not timely submitted 

Payable if any report or 
other information required 
to be submitted to us is 
received by us after the 
established deadline. 

Manual 
Replacement Fee 

Currently $250 per 
Manual 

On demand Payable if your Manual for 
Locations or Manual for 
RDS is lost, destroyed, or 
significantly damaged. 
You must obtain a 
replacement copy at our 
then-applicable charge. 

Additional Training 
Fee 

An amount set by us per 
attendee, per day, plus 
expenses (not to exceed 
$500/day) 

On demand Payable for each person 
who attends any 
mandatory or optional 
additional training 
program or Owners 
meetings held by us. We 
do not currently charge 
this fee. If you fail to 
attend any of these 
required training courses 
or meetings, we may 
charge you a non-
attendance fee of up to 
$500 per day. 

Renewal Fee $2,000 per open Redline 
Performance Center, not 
to exceed 25% of the 
original Development Fee 
for your Development 
Area 

Upon renewal Payable upon renewal of 
your Regional Developer 
Agreement. 

Transfer Fee $26,000 for the 
Development Area 

At the time of transfer Applies to any transfer of 
the Regional Developer 
Agreement, the Regional 
Dev eloper, or its assets, 
except transfers to a legal 
entity principally 
controlled by you. Used to 
cover cost associated with 
transfers, including 
training cost. 

Termination Fee (4) One-half of the original 
Development Fee for your 
Development Area, plus 
our attorneys' fees and 
costs 

On demand Payable if you terminate, 
or we terminate your 
Regional Developer 
Agreement for cause 
before your Term expires. 
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Fee (1) Amount Due Date Remarks 

Insurance (5) Amount of unpaid 
premiums and related costs 

On demand Payable only if you fail to 
maintain required 
insurance coverage and 
we pay premiums for you. 

Legal Costs and  
Attorney's Fees 

All legal costs and 
attorneys' fees incurred by 
us 

On demand Payable if we must 
enforce, defend our 
actions related to, or 
against your breach of, the 
Regional Developer 
Agreement. 

Indemnification All amounts (including 
attorneys' fees and costs) 
incurred by us or 
otherwise required to be 
paid 

On demand Payable to indemnify us, 
our affiliates, and our and 
their respective owners, 
officers, directors, 
employees, agents, 
successors, and assigns 
against all claims, 
liabilities, costs, and 
expenses related to your 
ownership and operation of 
the franchise, your breach 
of the Regional Developer 
Agreement, or your non-
compliance with any law 
or regulation. 

 
Explanatory Notes:  

*Except for some product and service purchases (see Item 8) and advertising cooperative payments (see 
Item 11), all fees are uniform, and are imposed by, collected by, and payable to us. All fees are non-
refundable. 

1. We do not have any advertising cooperatives and do not plan on establishing any reginal developer 
advertising cooperatives.  If a regional developer advertising cooperative is established, each location in 
the cooperative will have one (1) vote on cooperative matters.  We will be a member of each established 
regional developer advertising cooperative although we will not have any voting rights or make any 
contributions to regional developer advertising cooperatives until and unless we are operating a regional 
developer business that is part of the regional developer advertising cooperative. If we operate a regional 
developer business that is part of a regional developer advertising cooperative, we will make the same 
contributions as other regional developers that are part of that regional developer advertising cooperative.  
There are no minimum or maximum amounts that a regional developer advertising cooperative may charge 
its members.  Each regional advertising cooperative may, without limitation, establish the fees payable by 
the members of that regional developer advertising cooperative. 

You must pay all amounts due by automatic debit. You will be required to execute an ACH Authorization 
Form permitting us to electronically debit your designated bank account for payment of all fees payable to 
us as well as any amounts that you owe to us or our affiliates for the purchase of goods or services. You 
must ensure that there are sufficient funds available in your account for withdrawal before each due date. 
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2. The monthly technology fee is currently $325/month. This technology fee allows you to access our 
intranet site, including, training programs and our propriety software. Your monthly technology fee will be 
payable beginning the first month after you complete your initial training. We have the right to increase 
this amount in the future upon written notice to you. See Item 7 and 11 for additional information regarding 
Computer Systems. 

3. We collect the Development Marketing Fee and use it to offset our internal and external costs and 
expenses in marketing the sale of franchises through third party marketing firms. The Development 
Marketing Fee varies depending upon the number of unsold licenses in your Development Area.  

4. You must pay the termination fee, plus any costs and attorneys' fees incurred by us, if you 
improperly attempt to terminate or close your Regional Developer Business before your term expires, or 
we terminate your Regional Developer Agreement for any reason set forth in the Regional Developer 
Agreement. We may also recover from you any damages suffered by us (e.g., lost future revenues) resulting 
from your improper or wrongful termination of the Regional Developer Business. See Item 17 for additional 
information. 

5. If you fail to pay the premiums for insurance required to operate your Regional Developer Business, 
we may obtain insurance for you, and you will be required to reimburse us within ten (10) days of receipt 
of a demand for reimbursement from us. We will have the right to debit your account the amounts owed to 
us for such premiums if you fail to pay us within ten (10) days of our request for reimbursement. 

ITEM 7: 
ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

YOUR ESTIMATED INITIAL INVESTMENT 

Type of Expenditure Low High 
Method of  
Payment 

When Due 
To Whom Payment 

is Made 

Development Fee (1) $87,500 $187,500 Lump sum Execution Us 

Real property rental  
(3 months) (2) 

$0 $3,000 Monthly As arranged Landlord 

Lease security deposit (3) $0 $1,000 Lump sum As arranged Landlord 

Construction Costs, 
Equipment and Fixtures (4) 

$0 $5,000 As arranged As arranged 
Suppliers and 
contractors 

Insurance (4) $1,000 $6,500 As arranged As incurred Insurance company 

Utility deposits (5) $0 $500 As arranged As incurred Utility companies 

Vehicle (6) (3 months) $0 $1,200 As arranged As incurred Supplier 

Professional service fees (7) $500 $5,000 As arranged As incurred Professionals 

Travel and living expenses 
during initial training (per 
person) (8) 

$1,000 $1,500 As arranged As incurred Third parties 

Filing fees (9) $0 $750 As arranged As incurred State authority 

Franchise sales advertising 
(3 months) (10) $3,000 $4,500 As incurred As incurred 

Vendors 
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Explanatory Notes: 

These estimated initial expenses are our best estimate of the costs you may incur in establishing and operating 
your Regional Developer Business. Our estimates are based on our experience and the current requirements 
for Regional Developers. The actual investment you make in developing and opening your Regional 
Developer Business may be greater or less than the estimates given depending upon the location of your 
Regional Developer Business, and current relevant market conditions.  

Neither we nor any of our affiliates offer direct or indirect financing. Neither we nor any of our affiliates 
will guarantee your lease, note, or other obligations. 

1. We discuss the Development Fee in detail in Item 5 of this Disclosure Document. We and our 
affiliates do not offer any financing for this fee. This fee is non-refundable. 

2. You may operate your Regional Developer Business from any location you choose. We will not 
approve or disapprove of the location of the Sales Office. If you decide to operate your sales office from 
a leased premises, you will be required to pay rent and possibly, the cost of constructing, equipping, and 
furnishing the Sales Office. Since the size and nature of each Regional Developer's Sales Office space will 
vary, an estimate is difficult. The estimate shown is for an office consisting of a reception area, one 
secretarial station, one conference room and two offices. The amount of your rent will vary according to 
the area, the type of office location (office building, strip center, or free-standing building), and various 
other factors. If you decide to operate out of a lease premises, you may also be required to pay a security 
deposit. In addition, in certain lease transactions, if you are an entity, the landlord may require your 
Principal Owners to personally guarantee the lease. Whether this fee is refundable depends on your 
agreement with your landlord. 

3. You must obtain and maintain, at your own expense, insurance coverage for the vehicle(s) and any 
buildings you use or operate in connection with your Regional Developer Business. Insurance costs depend 
on a variety of factors. Annual premiums are typically paid to the insurer immediately, with refunds being 
issued if you cancel the insurance. The cost of your premiums will depend on the insurance carrier's charges, 
terms of payment, and your insurance and payment history. Our insurance requirements are contained in our 
Manual for RDS. 

4. If you decide to operate from a leased premise, you may be required to pay deposits for utilities. 
The amount of these deposits will vary depending on the practices of the utility companies and whether any 
impact or hook-up fees are required. 

Type of Expenditure Low High 
Method of  
Payment 

When Due 
To Whom Payment 

is Made 

Computer system (11) $1,500 $2,500 As arranged As incurred Suppliers 

Technology fees (3 months) 
(11) 

$975 $975 Automatic 
debit 

Monthly Us 

Additional funds (3 months) 
(12) 

$5,000 $5,000 As arranged As incurred Third parties 

TOTAL ESTIMATED 
INITIAL INVESTMENT (13) 

$100,475 $224,925    



 

2024 Redline Area Representative  9 
Franchise Diclsoure Document 

5. You may be required to purchase or lease a vehicle to conduct franchise sales activities. If you 
decide not to utilize your own vehicle we estimate it will cost you approximately $400 per month to cover 
the cost of your vehicle, tax, title, and licensing. 

6. You may wish to retain the services of an attorney and other consultants to assist you in forming 
your business entity and in purchasing and establishing your Regional Developer Business. The cost of 
these services will vary depending on the different services providers. 

7. You will incur expenses related to our initial Regional Developer training program. We provide a 
training program, a training location, instructors, and instructional materials. You will need to arrange for 
transportation, food, and lodging for your designated attendees. The costs you incur will depend on the 
distance you must travel and the type of accommodations you choose. See Item 11 of this Disclosure 
Document. 

9. If the laws within your Development Area require you to be registered prior to undertaking your 
franchise development activities as required by the Regional Developer Agreement, there will be certain 
costs associated with this registration, including registrations fees. Registration fees, if any, vary from state 
to state. 

10. We estimate that you will spend between $1,000 and $1,500 each month to advertise the sale of 
Franchised Businesses in your Development Area. The precise amount will be determined by the population 
of your Development Area after consultation with, and consent by, us. Advertising expenditures must be 
documented to us upon our request. This includes the cost of sales and marketing materials. 

11. You must purchase a personal computer system and printer for your Regional Developer Business 
that is compatible with our computer equipment, so that you will be able to use our proprietary office 
management software, receive e-mail, use Internet and Intranet services, and receive other electronic 
information we send. We estimate the initial cost to purchase the computer system to be between $1,500 
and $2,500. You will be required to pay a technology fee of $325/month for the continuing use and upgrade 
of our proprietary office management software. You will need to have an internet connection as part of your 
Computer System. We estimate the cost of internet service/DSL (high-speed) internet access to be less than 
$100 per month. See Items 8 and 11 of this Disclosure Document. 

12. You will need capital to support your on-going expenses like payroll, utilities, and franchise sales 
advertising, to the extent that these costs are not covered by sales revenue. New businesses often generate 
a negative cash flow. The estimate of additional funds is based on an owner-operated business and does not 
include any allowance for an owner’ s draw. We estimate that the amount shown will be sufficient to cover 
ongoing expenses for the start-up phase of the Franchised Business, which is three months. This is only an 
estimate, however, and there is no assurance that additional working capital will not be necessary during or 
after this start-up phase of at least three (3) months, and sometimes longer. Our entry into the Regional 
Developer Agreement with you does not mean that you will be successful.  

13. We encourage you to make a diligent investigation of the Regional Developer Business 
opportunity. You should contact the Regional Developers listed on Exhibit F, and consult appropriate 
business advisors, like attorneys or accounts who are qualified to assist you in carefully evaluating these 
figures before you make any decision to purchase a Regional Developer Business from us. 

14. Except as expressly mentioned above, none of the fees above are refundable. 
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ITEM 8: 
RESTRICTIONS ON SOURCES OF PRODUCTS AND SERVICES 

Required Purchases of Goods and Services  

You must purchase certain products, supplies, and equipment under specifications and standards that we 
periodically establish in the Regional Developer Agreement, Manual for RDS, or other notices we send to 
you from time to time. These specifications are established to provide standards for performance, durability, 
design, and appearance. We will notify you whenever we establish or revise any of our standards or 
specifications, or if we designate approved suppliers for products, equipment, or services. You must purchase 
specified Products and Services relating to or for the operation of your Regional Developer Business solely 
from suppliers (including distributors, manufacturers, and other sources) who have been approved in writing 
by the Company, as set forth in our Manual for RDS You are not allowed to purchase any of these products 
or services from an unapproved or alternate supplier. When selecting suppliers, we consider all relevant 
factors, including the quality of goods and services, service history, years in business, capacity of supplier, 
financial condition, terms, and other requirements consistent with other supplier relationships. We maintain 
written lists of required products (by brand name and/or by standards and specifications) and lists of 
approved suppliers for those items. All such products and approved vendors for our required Products and 
Services will be listed in the Manual for RDS and on our online franchise support portal, which must always 
be followed, even as modified, and updated by the Company. 

Currently, we do not require our Regional Developers to purchase any products, supplies, or equipment 
from us, other than our proprietary software and marketing materials. We estimate that the purchase of 
required proprietary software and marketing materials from us or required suppliers represents between 5% 
and 10% of your total purchases and leases in establishing the Regional Developer business and 
approximately 25%-35% of your total purchases and leases, on an annual basis, in operating your Regional 
Developer business. 

Affiliate’s revenue from sales to franchisees based on the most recent audited financial statements was $0 
or 0%.  

We are the exclusive supplier of our proprietary software and marketing materials for Regional Developers. 
One of our owner's affiliates, Advanced Healthstyles Fitness Equipment, Inc. ("AHFE") is currently the 
exclusive supplier for all LifePro and Hammer Strength brand strength equipment we purchase to sell to 
our Franchisees for use in their training centers, however, Regional Developers are not required to purchase 
such equipment unless they also operate a Franchise. No other persons affiliated with us are currently 
approved suppliers of any other products or services. There are no approved suppliers in which any of our 
officers currently owns an interest. 

Approval of Alternative Suppliers 

The Company does not have any specific written criteria for supplier selection and does not intend at this 
time to prepare one. Therefore, the Company will not furnish its criteria for supplier approval to Franchise 
Owners. If you would like to purchase any items from any unapproved supplier, then you must submit to 
us a written request for approval of the proposed supplier. We will notify you of our approval or disapproval 
within thirty (30) days of your written request for approval of the proposed supplier. We have the right to 
inspect the proposed supplier's facilities and require that product samples from the proposed supplier be 
delivered, at our option, either directly to us, or to any independent, certified laboratory that we may 
designate, for testing. We may charge you a supplier evaluation fee (not to exceed the reasonable cost of 
the inspection and the actual cost of the test) to make the evaluation. We reserve the right to periodically 
re-inspect the facilities and products of any approved supplier and revoke our approval if the supplier does 
not continue to meet any of our criteria. 
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Revenue from Franchisee Purchases 

In 2023, we had total revenues of $2,767,570 based on the most recent audited financial statements, of 
which $114,327.68 or 4% was derived from rebates or other material consideration or required franchisee 
purchases or leases. 

The cost of purchasing required products and services to meet our specifications will represent 
approximately 52% of your total purchases in establishing your franchise and approximately 25% of your 
total purchases during the operation of your franchise. 

In 2023 we received $114,327.68of revenue or other consideration from suppliers for goods and services 
that we require or advise you to purchase. We reserve the right to enter into additional arrangements with 
suppliers in the future. However, in the event we enter agreements with any such suppliers, we anticipate 
that any revenue or other consideration received would probably include promotional allowances, rebates, 
volume discounts, and other payments, and would probably be equal to zero to ten percent (0-10%) of the 
amount of the goods or services you purchase from the supplier. We expect that at least some of these 
arrangements will generally allow us to obtain discounts off standard pricing and pass at least a portion of 
the savings on to you. 

Negotiated Prices, Cooperatives and Material Benefits 

We negotiate price terms and other purchase arrangements with suppliers for you for some items that we 
require you to lease or purchase in developing and operating a Franchised Businesses. There currently are 
no purchasing and distribution cooperatives. We do not provide any material benefits to you if you buy from 
sources we approve. 

We may choose to negotiate purchase agreements for certain equipment or supplies. You may purchase 
such equipment or supplies from such designated suppliers or from any approved supplier on such terms as 
you negotiate. The Manual for RDS contains details relating to such purchases. 

Insurance Specifications 

Before you open your Regional Developer Business, you must obtain certain minimum insurance coverage, 
naming the Company as an additional insured. We may increase these limits or have new types of coverage 
added at any time after giving you notice. You must maintain this insurance coverage, as required by your 
Regional Developer Agreement, from a responsible carrier. Our current insurance requirements are 
summarized in the Manual for RDS. You must obtain the insurance necessary to operate your franchise from 
our required vendor. If you fail to pay the premiums for insurance required to operate your franchise, we may 
obtain insurance for you, and you will be required to reimburse us within ten (10) days of receipt of a demand 
for reimbursement from us. We will have the right to debit your account the amounts owed to us for such 
premiums if you fail to pay us within ten (10) days of our request for reimbursement. 

Advertising Specifications 

You must obtain our approval before you use any advertising and promotional materials, signs, forms, and 
stationery unless we have prepared or approved them during the twelve (12) months prior to their proposed 
use. You must purchase certain advertising and promotional materials, brochures, fliers, forms, business 
cards and letterhead from approved vendors only. Further, you must not engage in any advertising of your 
Regional Developer Business unless we have previously approved the medium, content and method. 

Records 
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All of your bookkeeping and accounting records, financial statements, and all reports you submit to us must 
conform to the requirements set forth in Sections 6.10 and 6.11 of the Regional Developer Agreement, as 
well as those contained in our Manual for RDS. 

Computer-Related Equipment and Software 

You must purchase a computer system and operating software that meets the specifications that we specify 
from time to time. See Item 7 regarding the estimated initial cost of this equipment. You will also be 
required to pay a monthly technology fee of $325 for the continuing use and upgrade of our proprietary 
office management software. You will also be required to have access to a high speed Internet connection 
at all times. We may increase the technology fee upon written notice to you. 

We may require additional items to be purchased by the Franchise Owner from certain manufacturers or 
suppliers in the future. We will notify you of such requirements by sending to you such changes by 
modifying the Manual for RDS or sending you other written forms of communication. 

Disclosure Document for Redline Performance Center Redline Performance Centers 

You must deliver a copy of our franchise FDD to each Prospective Franchisee. We will provide you with 
one copy of the Franchisee FDD, although it is copyrighted, and you will not be authorized to reproduce it 
yourself without our prior written authorization. Currently, only we are the designated or approved supplier 
of our franchise FDD. There is no alternate supplier due to the need to maintain strict control of the contents 
of our franchise FDD. 

ITEM 9: 
FRANCHISEE'S OBLIGATIONS 

This table lists your principal obligations under the Regional Developer Agreement and other 
agreements. It will help you find more detailed information about your obligations in these 
agreements and in other items of this Disclosure Document. 
 

Obligations Section in Regional Developer  
Agreement 

Disclosure Document 
Item 

(a) Site selection and acquisition/lease Section 2.2  Item 11 

(b) Pre-opening purchases/leases Sections 6.5, 6.12 and 7 Items 5, 7 and 8 

(c) Site development and other pre-
opening requirements 

Not Applicable Items 7, 8, and 11 

(d) Initial and ongoing training Sections 5.1 and 6.13 Item 11 

(e) Opening Section 2.2 Item 11 

(f) Fees 
Sections 4, 5.2, 5.4, 6.5, 6.11, 7, 
11.3(i), 15.2 and 15.15 

Items 5, 6 and 7 

(g) Compliance with standards and 
policies 

Sections 5 and 6 Items 11 and 16 

(h) Trademarks and proprietary 
information 

Sections 9 and 10; Confidentiality 
Agreement (Exhibit E) 

Items 13 and 14 

(i) Restrictions on products/services 
offered 

Section 5.2(a)  Item 16 

(j) Warranty and Customer Service 
Requirements 

Section 6.1  None 
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Obligations Section in Regional Developer  
Agreement 

Disclosure Document 
Item 

(k) Territorial Development and Sales 
Quotas 

Section 2.1  Item 12 

(1) On-going products/services purchases Sections 5.4, 5.8, and 6.5 Item 8 

(m) Maintenance, appearance, and 
remodeling requirements 

Not Applicable None 

(n) Insurance Sections 6.5 and 6.6 Item 7 

(o) Advertising Sections 5.8, 6.7, and 6.8 Items 6, 7, and 11 

(p) Indemnification Section 15.2 Items 6, 13 and 17 

(q) Owners Participation 
management/staffing 

Section 6.13 Items 11, 15 and 16 

(r) Records/reports Sections 6.10 and 6.11 Item 6 

(s) Inspections/audits Section 5.7 Item 6 

(t) Transfer Section 11 Items 6 and 17 

(u) Renewal Section 4 Items 6 and 17 

(v) Post-termination obligations Section 13.2 Item 17 

(w) Non-competition covenants Section 12 Item 17 

(x) Dispute resolution Sections 14, 15.7, 15.8 and 15.9 Item 17 

(y) Guaranty Section 11.7 Item 15 

ITEM 10: 
FINANCING 

We do not offer direct or indirect financing. We do not guarantee your lease or obligation. 

ITEM 11: 
FRANCHISOR'S ASSISTANCE, ADVERTISING, COMPUTER SYSTEMS, AND TRAINING 

Except as Listed Below, We Are Not Required to Provide You Any Assistance. 

Pre-Opening 

Before your Regional Developer Business opens for business, we or our designee will: 

1. Within 60 days after you sign the Regional Developer Agreement, but not later than 30 days before 
you open your Regional Developer Business for business, provide the initial training program for our 
Regional Developer Businesses (Regional Developer Agreement — Section 5.1). 

The Company's initial training program is available to all Owners and one additional person. Before 
opening for business, the Owner must attend and complete the initial franchise management-training 
program to the satisfaction of the Company. We provide this initial training free of charge to you; however, 
you must pay the wages, food, lodging and travel expenses for all of your attendees. The initial training 
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program will last for approximately two (2) days and will be conducted by us or our designee at our 
corporate headquarters in Scottsdale, Arizona, or another location we designate. All persons who participate 
in our initial training program must complete it to our satisfaction. 

Our initial training program currently includes the following: 

TRAINING PROGRAM 
 

Subject Hours of 
Classroom 
Training 

Hours of On 

the Job 

Training 

Location 

Welcome, Introduction and RD Responsibilities 0.5  Corporate Office 

Franchise Sales Process and Legal Issues 1.0  Corporate Office 

FDD and Franchise Agreement 1.0  Corporate Office 

Developing a Compliance System 1.0  Corporate Office 

Profiles and Evaluation of Franchise Buyers 0.50  Corporate Office 

Marketing the Redline® Athletics Franchise 1.0  Corporate Office 

Dashboard 0.50  Corporate Office 
Demographics, Site Selection and Project 
Development Program 

1.0  Corporate Office 

Human Resources, System Standards and 
Ongoing Assistance 

1.0  Corporate Office 

MindBody Online Software 1.0 1.0 
Corporate Office/In 
Region 

Regional Sales Plan  1.0 In the Region 

Unit Pro-forma  1.0 In the Region 

Total Hours 9.5 4.0  

(a) Most of these subjects are integrated throughout the approximately two (2) day training 
program (comprised of 9.5 hours of classroom training and 4 hours of on the job training). On the job 
training may take place in a variety of ways, including via telephone conferences, or web-based meetings 
or courses. We plan to be flexible in scheduling training. Regional Developer training is typically 
conducted on a monthly basis but may be held more or less often depending on the circumstances, in 
particular, the number of Regional Developers that need to be trained. 

(b) The instruction materials for our training programs include handouts, computer training, 
the Manuals, group discussions, and lectures. 

(c) Although the individual instructors of the training program may vary, all of our instructors 
have at least 2 years' experience in their designated subject area(s). The following are our main instructors 
at this time along with a general description of their designated subject areas: 

(i) T.J. O’Connor —Vice President of Development 

Mr. O'Connor has been with us since June 2019.  

2. Lend you one copy of our Manual for RDS, which contains our mandatory and suggested 
specifications, standards, and procedures for operating Regional Developer Businesses (Regional 
Developer Agreement — Section 5.2). Exhibit C to this Disclosure Document sets forth the Table of 
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Contents for our Manual for RDS which is approximately 175 pages. We will also lend you one copy of 
our Operations Manual for Redline Performance Centers ("Manual for Locations"), which contains our 
mandatory and suggested specifications, standards, and procedures for operating Redline Performance 
Centers. Together, the Manual for RDS and Manual for Locations are referred to as the "Manuals." We 
may modify the Manuals periodically to reflect changes in System Standards, or as we deem appropriate. 
If your copy of either Manual is lost, destroyed, or significantly damaged, then you must obtain a 
replacement copy at our then-applicable charge, which is currently $250 (see Item 6). You may view our 
Manuals at our corporate headquarters before purchasing your Regional Developer Business but must first 
sign a Confidentiality/Non-Disclosure Agreement (Exhibit E) promising not to reveal any of the 
information contained in the Manuals without our permission. See Item 14 for additional information about 
our Manuals and Exhibit C. 

3. Prepare and/or register any disclosure documents or other documentation that must be prepared, 
amended, or registered for you to fulfill your responsibilities to solicit, recruit, and screen Prospective 
Franchisees (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 5.4). Federal and state franchise or business 
opportunity laws govern the sale and offering of Redline Performance Centers and may require the 
preparation, amendment, registration, or registration of all certain documentation and disclosures relating 
to the Redline Performance Centers offered in your Development Area (the "Documentation") before you 
can solicit prospective franchisees. While we will prepare and register all Documentation necessary for you 
to begin soliciting prospective franchisees, you must provide us with any documentation or information we 
may need to prepare or register the Documentation and will be responsible for all costs applicable to you. 
You must review and become fully familiar with all Documentation related to franchises sold in your 
Development Area. Before soliciting a Prospective Franchisee, you must take reasonable steps to confirm 
that the information contained in the Documentation or other materials related to the offer or sale of 
Redline Performance Centers is true, correct, and not misleading, or in violation of applicable state law 
related to registration of the Documentation. 

4. Review and approve or disapprove your advertising, marketing, and promotional materials 
(Regional Developer Agreement - Section 6.8). See the remainder of this Item 11 for additional 
information about our advertising-related requirements and approval process. 

5. You shall establish and operate a franchise sales office ("Sales Office") from any location you 
choose. We will not approve or disapprove of the location of the Sales Office. You must open your 
Regional Developer Business within 30 days after you receive your initial training from us, or 90 days 
after signing your Regional Developer Agreement, whichever occurs first. You are not required to secure 
a separate office location (although we recommend it) for your Regional Developer Business although you 
will be required to have adequate office space somewhere (whether at home, an office location, or if 
commercially reasonable) to operate your Regional Developer Business. (Regional Developer Agreement 
- Section 2.2) 

Post-Opening Obligations: 

After your Regional Developer Business opens for business, we or our designee will: 

1. As we deem appropriate, provide you with additional or refresher training programs (Regional 
Developer Agreement - Section 5.1). You will be required to participate in periodic webinars and sales 
calls scheduled by us for Regional Developer Businesses. We may require you to attend up to two (2) 
additional or refresher training courses each year at our corporate offices, or at another location we 
designate. You may also be required to attend a national business meeting or convention of up to three (3) 
days each year. We will determine the location, frequency, and instructors of these training programs. We 
may charge reasonable fees for any courses, conventions, webinars, sales calls, and programs (see Item 6). 
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You must also pay for all travel, lodging, meal, and personal expenses related to your attendance and the 
attendance of your personnel. 

2. Continue lending to you a copy of our Manual for RDS and Manual for Locations (Regional 
Developer Agreement - Section 5.2). 

3. Provide you with general guidance though bulletins or other written materials (Regional Developer 
Agreement - Section 5.3). 

4. If we agree to do so, provide you with additional or special guidance, training, or assistance that 
you request (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 5.1). If we provide this training, you must pay all 
of our then-applicable charges, including all per-diem fees and travel, lodging, meal, and living expenses 
of our personnel. See Item 6 for additional information. 

5. As necessary, amend, maintain, or renew any documentation and/or registrations necessary for 
you to continue to solicit Prospective Franchisees (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 5.4). 

6. Approve or disapprove prospective Franchisees (the "Prospective Franchisees") recommended by 
you, and their proposed franchise locations (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 5.5). You must 
advertise for, solicit, recruit, and screen Prospective Franchisees to purchase Redline Performance Centers 
in your Development Area. You must investigate each Prospective Franchisee and any proposed locations 
for Redline Performance Centers to determine if they meet our standards and policies. After ensuring that 
a Prospective Franchisee meets our standards, you may recommend to us the approval of the Prospective 
Franchisee. You must provide us with all information that we may request to evaluate your 
recommendation. We may approve or reject a Prospective Franchisee for any reason. If we disapprove of 
any Prospective Franchisee, we will notify you in writing of our reasons for the disapproval. If we approve 
the Prospective Franchisee, you must provide the Prospective Franchisee with a copy of our then-current 
Franchise Agreement for the Prospective Franchisee to sign. 

7. Review and approve or disapprove your advertising, marketing, and promotional materials 
(Regional Developer Agreement - Sections 6.8). See the remainder of this Item 11 for additional 
information about our advertising-related requirements and approval process. 

8. Pay you any compensation that you are owed under the Regional Developer Agreement (Regional 
Developer Agreement- Section 8). 

9. Allow you to continue using our Marks and Confidential Information in operating your Regional 
Developer Business (Regional Developer Agreement - Sections 9 and 10). See Items 13 and 14 for 
additional information. 

10. Indemnify you against damages and expenses you incur in a trademark infringement proceeding 
disputing your authorized use of any Mark in compliance with the Regional Developer Agreement 
(Regional Developer Agreement - Section 9.5). See Item 13 for additional information. 

11. If we establish a local or regional advertising cooperative that covers all or any part of your 
Development Area, approve or disapprove any advertising, marketing, or promotional materials created by 
the cooperative (Regional Developer Agreement - Sections 6.7 and 6.8). Though there currently are no 
local or regional cooperatives, we may create a cooperative to support the advertising and marketing needs 
of their respective members. See Items 6, 8, and the rest of this Item 11 for additional information about 
the local and regional advertising cooperatives that we may create. 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative  17 
Franchise Diclsoure Document 

12. Screen, qualify, and process applications from Prospective Franchisees in your Development Area 
sourced from leads generated by third party marketing firms retained by us on your behalf (Regional 
Developer Agreement- Section 5.5(a)). 

Advertising and Marketing  

Advertising by You 

You may develop, at your cost, advertising, and promotional materials for your use, but may not use them 
until after we have approved them in writing. You must submit to us for our approval samples of all 
advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by us that you wish to use. We 
will not unreasonably withhold our approval. If you do not receive our written disapproval within 15 days 
from the date we receive the materials, the materials will be deemed to have been approved. Any materials 
submitted to us for approval will become our intellectual property. (Regional Developer Agreement - 
Section 10.3) We anticipate that you will spend between $1,000 and $1,500 a month in advertising in your 
Development Area. 

Advertising by Us 

As of the date of this Disclosure Document, there is no RD Ad Fund. The Company has the right to create 
an RD Ad Fund and to decide how it will be run. It may do so in the future. The specific manner in which 
it will be organized and governed has yet to be determined. 

We may create a national advertising fund (the "RD Ad Fund") for our Regional Developer Businesses to 
promote and support franchise sales. (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 6.7). Each Regional 
Developer must contribute to the RD Ad Fund such amounts that we periodically require. The current 
contribution amount is one percent (1%) of your share of any initial franchise fees you are due under the 
Regional Developer Agreement and 1% of your share of any Royalty Fees you are due under the Regional 
Developer Agreement. See Item 6 for the amount of your required contribution to RD Ad Fund. We have 
the right to increase or decrease your contribution to the RD Ad Fund upon thirty (30) days written notice 
to you. The maximum contribution to the RD Ad Fund we may require from you will be two percent (2%) 
of your share of any Initial Franchise Fees or Royalty Fees you are due under your Regional Developer 
Agreement. Any Regional Developer Business owned by us must also contribute to the RD Ad Funds on 
the same basis as you. 

We will direct all marketing programs financed by the RD Ad Fund and will have sole discretion over the 
creative concepts, materials, and endorsements used by the RD Ad Fund, and the geographic, market, and 
media placement and allocation of the RD Ad Fund. RD Ad Fund contributions will be used primarily to 
promote and support the sale of Redline Performance Center franchises. RD Ad Fund contributions may be 
used to pay the costs of administering the program, including employing personnel, and paying for 
advertising and marketing activities that we deem appropriate, including the costs of participating in any 
national or regional trade shows. We are not under any obligation to spend any amount of money from the 
RD Ad Fund on advertising in your Development Area. 

It is anticipated that all monies from the RD Ad Fund will be spent to solicit new franchise sales. The RD 
Ad Fund will be accounted for separately from our other funds and will not be used to pay any of our general 
operating expenses, except for salaries, administrative costs, and overhead that we incur in activities 
reasonably related to the administration of the RD Ad Fund. We may spend, in any fiscal year, an amount 
greater or less than the aggregate contributions to the RD Ad Fund in that year, and the RD Ad Fund may 
borrow from us or other lenders to cover the RD Ad Fund's deficits or invest any surplus for future use by 
the RD Ad Fund. The RD Ad Fund is not audited. We will prepare an annual statement of monies collected 
and costs incurred by the RD Ad Fund and will provide it to you upon written request. 
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We may cause the RD Ad Fund to be incorporated or operated through an entity separate from us when we 
deem appropriate, and the entity will have the same rights and duties as we do under a Regional Developer 
Agreement. We do not have to ensure that the RD Ad Fund's expenditures in or affecting any geographic 
area are proportionate or equivalent to the contributions made by any Regional Developer in that geographic 
area, or that any Regional Developer will benefit from the development of advertising and marketing 
materials or the placement of advertising by the RD Ad Fund directly or in proportion to the Regional 
Developer's contribution to the RD Ad Fund. We assume no direct or indirect liability or obligation to you 
or any other franchise in connection with the establishment of an RD Ad Fund, or the collection, 
administration, or disbursement of monies paid into the RD Ad Fund. 

We may suspend contributions to, and the operations of, the RD Ad Fund for any period we deem 
appropriate and may terminate an RD Ad Fund upon 30 days' written notice to you. All unspent monies 
held by the RD Ad Fund on the date of termination will be distributed to us, our affiliates, and you and our 
other Regional Developer in proportion to each party's respective contributions to the RD Ad Fund during 
the preceding 12-month period. We may reinstate a terminated RD Ad Fund upon the same terms and 
conditions set forth in a Franchise Agreement upon 30 days' advance written notice to you. 

We do not have, nor do we plan to have, any advertising co-ops. Similarly, we do not have, nor plan to 
have, any advisory councils although we reserve the right to establish advertising co-ops and/or advisory 
councils in the future. 

We will have independent access to the information that will be generated and stored on your Computer 
System. There are no limitations on when or how we may access such information. 

Website 

You may not have a website separate from our website. You also may not host social media websites, 
applications, or platforms relating to the System, such as Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, or other similar 
sites or platforms without our written consent. (Regional Developer Agreement-Section 6.9) 

Computer System 

You must use the computer hardware and software (collectively "Computer System") that we periodically 
designate to operate your Regional Developer Business. (Regional Developer Agreement - Section 6.12) 
You must obtain the Computer System, software licenses, maintenance and support services, and other 
related services from the suppliers we specify (which may include or be limited to us and/or our affiliates). 
(See Items 6 and 7 for more information regarding the cost and fees associated with the Computer System) 
We may periodically modify the specifications for, and components of, the Computer System. These 
modifications and/or other technological developments or events may require you to purchase, lease, and/or 
obtain by license new or modified computer hardware and/or software and obtain service and support for 
the Computer System. The Regional Developer Agreement does not limit the frequency or cost of these 
changes, upgrades, or updates. We have no obligation to reimburse you for any Computer System costs. 
Within 60 days after you receive notice from us, you must obtain the components of the Computer System 
that we designate and ensure that your Computer System, as modified, is functioning properly. 

We may charge you a reasonable fee for: (i) installing, providing, supporting, modifying, and enhancing 
any proprietary software or hardware that we develop and license to you; and (ii) other Computer System 
related maintenance and support services that we or our affiliates provide to you. If we or our affiliates 
license any proprietary software to you or otherwise allow you to use similar technology that we develop 
or maintain, then you must sign any software license agreement or similar instrument that we or our 
affiliates may require. See Items 6 and 7 for information regarding the cost of required computer software, 
and the monthly fees associated with operating your Computer System. 
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You will have sole responsibility for: (1) the acquisition, operation, maintenance, and upgrading of your 
Computer System; (2) the manner in which your Computer System interfaces with our computer system and 
those of other third parties; and (3) any and all consequences that may arise if your Computer System is not 
properly operated, maintained, and upgraded. Your Computer System must be capable of supporting our 
required software with internet capability. The Computer System is used to track and store all data relating 
to the operation of your Regional Developer Business and the other Regional Developer Businesses in the 
System. We have the right to access all information stored on your Computer System which relates to your 
franchise. 

We estimate the cost of purchasing the Computer System and related software will range from $1,500 to 
$2,500. In addition to the cost of purchasing the hardware and software associated with the Computer 
System, you will be required to pay reoccurring charges associated with the continuing use and upgrade of 
our proprietary office management software. Currently this technology fee is $325/month but is subject to 
change. You will also be required to pay the monthly cost of maintaining high speed internet access at your 
site. We estimate that this cost will be less than $100 a month depending on the internet service provider. 

Periodic Inspections 

You must operate your Regional Developer Business in accordance with the Regional Developer 
Agreement and the Manual for RDS. We reserve the right to conduct period inspections of your Regional 
Developer Business to ensure that you are in compliance with your Regional Developer Agreement, Manual 
for RDS, and our other written directives and standards. We may terminate your Regional Developer 
Agreement if you do not operate your business in compliance with the Regional Developer Agreement or 
the Manual for RDS. 

Time to Open 

You must open your Regional Developer Business within 30 days after you receive your initial training from 
us, or 90 days after signing your Regional Developer Agreement, whichever occurs first (Regional Developer 
Agreement- Section 2.2). We estimate that Regional Developer Businesses will typically open for business 
approximately 2-3 months after signing the Regional Developer Agreement. Factors affecting this length of 
time include locating a site and signing a lease, if you choose to operate from a leased premises, construction 
or remodeling of the site, completion of required training, financing arrangements, local ordinance and building 
code compliance, delivery and installation of equipment or supplies, and hiring and training of your staff. We 
will not approve or disapprove the site where you choose to operate your Regional Developer Business. 

ITEM 12: 
TERRITORY 

Your Regional Developer Agreement grants you an exclusive Development Area, the specific size and 
location of which depend on population demographics, your capacity to recruit Prospective Franchisees 
and provide support services in the Development Area, and the number of Redline Performance Centers 
we believe the Development Area can sustain. You and we will mutually agree on your Development Area 
when you sign the Regional Developer Agreement. There is no specific minimum or maximum area that 
we must include in your Development Area. However, your Development Area will usually be a geographic 
area such as a state or county but could vary depending on the circumstances. Your Development Area may 
not be changed unless you and we both agree to the change in writing. 

If you are in compliance with your Regional Developer Agreement, we and our affiliates will not operate, 
establish, grant, or operate another Redline Performance Center Regional Developer Business in your 
Development Area. The continuation of your territorial exclusivity depends upon your compliance with the 
minimum development obligations defined in your Regional Developer Agreement. If you do not meet the 
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minimum development obligations of your Regional Developer Agreement, you will not have territorial 
exclusivity, and we may, at our option, terminate the Regional Developer Agreement. 

Your territorial exclusivity is limited to the total number of franchises you are authorized to develop in your 
Development Area at the time of signing your Regional Developer Agreement. You have the option to 
purchase the right to develop additional Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area and 
receive additional territorial protection for any additional Redline Performance Centers you purchase within 
your Development Area. However, if you choose not to exercise the right to purchase the rights to develop 
additional Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area, we retain the right to develop or 
sell the right to develop additional Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area, and you 
will not receive any compensation or Royalty Fees for such Redline Performance Centers. 

You may solicit Prospective Franchisees residing outside your Development Area but interested in opening 
a franchise within your Development Area without having to pay any special compensation to us or any 
other Regional Developer. Likewise, Regional Developer outlets owned by us, our affiliates (if applicable), 
or other Regional Developers may solicit Prospective Franchisees residing in your Development Area but 
interested in opening a franchise in another Development Area without having to pay you any special 
compensation. You may not solicit Prospective Franchisees for a Redline Performance Center located 
outside of your Development Area. We will forward to you any leads or referrals that we receive from 
Prospective Franchisees interested in purchasing a Franchised Business in your Development Area, and you 
will be entitled to the compensation referred to in Item 11 only if these Prospective Franchisees purchase a 
Franchise in your Development Area. 

Company Reserved Rights 

We and our affiliates reserve the right to engage in any activities we deem appropriate that your Regional 
Developer Agreement does not expressly prohibit, whenever and wherever we desire, including the right 
to: 

(a) establish and operate franchises, and granting rights to other persons to establish and 
operate franchises, on any terms and conditions we deem appropriate and at any locations other than within 
the Development Area; 

(b) establish and operate Redline Performance Centers and/or grant other persons the right to 
establish and operate Redline Performance Centers within the Development Area during the initial term, to 
the extent that such additional franchises exceed the total number of franchises you are authorized to 
develop within your Development Area, and you decline to purchase the right to develop such additional 
Redline Performance Centers; 

(c) provide and grant rights to other persons to provide, goods and services dissimilar to and/or 
not competitive with those provided by Redline Performance Centers to customers located within your 
Development Area; 

(d) acquire the assets or ownership interest of one or more businesses providing products and 
services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, and franchising, licensing, or creating 
similar arrangements with respect to these businesses once acquired, wherever these businesses (or the 
franchisees or licensees of these businesses) are located or operating (including within your Development 
Area); and 

(e) be acquired (regardless of the form of transaction) by a business providing products and 
services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, or by another business, even if such 
business operates, franchises and/or licenses competitive businesses within your Development Area. 
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Neither we nor our affiliates intend to use other channels of distribution, such as the Internet, catalogs sales, 
telemarketing, or other direct marketing, to make sales within your Development Area of Products and 
Services under trademarks different from the ones you will use under the Regional Developer Agreement. 
Neither we nor our affiliates plan to operate or franchise a business under a different trademark that sells 
or will sell sport performance training goods and services similar to those you will offer as a Redline 
franchise. 

ITEM 13: 
TRADEMARKS 

The Company grants you the right and license to use the Marks and the System solely in connection with 
your Franchised Business. You may use our trademark “Redline®” and such other Marks as are designated 
in writing by the Company for your use. In addition, you may use them only in the manner authorized and 
permitted by the Company and you may not directly or indirectly contest the Company’s ownership of or 
rights in the Marks. 

The following principal trademarks are registered with the United States Patent and Trademark Office 
(“USPTO”). 

Mark 
Registration  

Number 
Registration  

Date 
Register 

Redline Athletics® 4508971 April 8, 2014 Principal 

Redline® 4504435 April 1, 2014 Principal 

There are no agreements currently in effect that significantly limit the Company’s right to use or license 
the use of the Marks in a manner material to the franchise. With respect to the Marks, there are currently 
no effective material determinations of the UPSTO, the Trademark Trial and Appeal Board, or any state 
trademark administrator or court, or any pending infringement, opposition, or cancellation proceeding. For 
all principal federal registrations, all necessary required affidavits and renewals have been filed for all 
marks. 

The Company will indemnify against or reimburse for expenses you incur in defending claims of infringement 
or unfair competition arising out of your use of the Marks. You are required to notify the Company immediately 
when you become aware of the use, or claim of right to, a Mark identical or confusingly similar to our Marks. 
If litigation involving the Marks is instituted or threatened against you, you must notify the Company promptly 
and cooperate fully with the Company in defending or settling the litigation. The Company, at its option, may, 
but is not required to, defend, and control the defense of any proceeding relating to any Marks. The 
Company has exclusive right to control any litigation or other proceeding arising out of any actual or alleged 
infringement, challenge, or claim relating to any Marks. You agree to sign any documents, render any 
assistance, and do any acts that our attorneys say is necessary or advisable in order to protect and maintain 
our interests in any litigation or proceeding related to the Marks, or to otherwise protect and maintain our 
interests in the Marks. 

If it becomes advisable at any time in our sole judgment for the Company to modify or discontinue the use 
of any Mark or use one or more additional or substitute trade or service marks, including the Marks used 
as the name of the Company, then you agree, at your sole expense, to comply with our directions to modify 
or otherwise discontinue the use of the Mark, or use one or more additional or substitute trade or service 
marks, within a reasonable time after our notice to you. 

The Company has no actual knowledge of either superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially 
affect a Franchisee's use of the Marks in any state. 
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ITEM 14: 
PATENTS, COPYRIGHTS AND PROPRIETARY INFORMATION 

Patents Rights  

The Company owns no rights in or to any patents that are material to the franchise. 

Copyrights  

The Company claims a copyright and treats the information in the Manuals as confidential trade secrets, 
but you are permitted to use the material as part of your Regional Developer Business. 

The Company has no actual knowledge of superior prior rights or infringing uses that could materially 
affect a Franchise Owner's use of the Company's copyrighted materials in any state. 

Confidential Operations Manuals 

Under the Regional Developer Agreement, you must operate the Regional Developer Business in accordance 
with the standards, methods, policies, and procedures specified in the Manual for RDS. You will be loaned 
a copy of the Manual for RDS and Manual for Locations for the term of the Regional Developer Agreement 
when you have completed the initial training program to our satisfaction. You must operate your Regional 
Developer Business strictly in accordance with the Manual for RDS, as it may be revised by the Company 
from time to time. You must at all times treat the Manuals and the information in them, as well as any other 
materials created for or approved by use for the operation of your Regional Developer Business, as 
confidential, as required by the Regional Developer Agreement. You must make all reasonable efforts to 
keep this information secret and confidential. You must not copy, duplicate, record, or otherwise make them 
available to any unauthorized person. The Manuals will remain our sole property and must be returned in 
the event that you cease to be a Regional Developer Franchisee. 

We may from time to time revise the contents of the Manual for RDS and Manual for Locations, and you 
must comply with each new or changed provision in the Manual for RDS. You must ensure that our Manuals 
are kept current at all times. In the event of any dispute as to the contents of the Manual for RDS, the terms 
of the master copies maintained by us at Company's home office will be controlling. 

Confidential Information 

The Regional Developer requires you to maintain all Confidential Information of the Company as confidential 
both during and after the term of the Agreement. "Confidential Information" includes all information, data, 
techniques, and know-how designated or treated by the Company as confidential and includes the Manuals. 
You may not at any time disclose, copy, or use any Confidential Information except as specifically authorized 
by the Company. Under the Agreement, you agree that all information, data, techniques, and know-how 
developed or assembled by you or your employees or agents during the term of the Regional Developer 
Agreement and relating to the System will be deemed a part of the Confidential Information protected under 
the Regional Developer Agreement. See Item 15 below concerning your obligation to obtain confidentiality 
and non-competition agreements from persons involved in the Franchised Business. 

ITEM 15: 
OBLIGATION TO PARTICIPATE IN THE  

ACTUAL OPERATION OF THE FRANCHISED BUSINESS 

You must personally participate in the direct operation of your Regional Developer Business. If you do not 
personally participate in the direct operation of your franchise on a full-time basis, then you are obligated 
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to have a fully trained Manager operate the Regional Developer Business on a full-time basis. While we do 
not require that your Manager have an equity interest in the Regional Developer Business, we believe that 
only a person with an equity interest can adequately ensure that our standards of quality and competence 
are maintained. The Regional Developer Agreement requires that you be directly involved in the day-to-
day operations and utilize your best efforts to promote and enhance the performance of the Franchised 
Business. While in most cases Franchise Owners will seek additional assistance for the labor-intensive 
portions of the business, we have built our reputation on Owner participation and believe it is crucial for 
continued success. 

Any Manager you employ at the launching of your franchise operations must complete the initial 
management-training course required by the Company. All subsequent Managers must be trained fully 
according to our standards by either the Franchise Owner or the Company. However, the Company may 
charge a fee for this additional training. See Item 6 and the Manual for RDS for details. 

Each individual who holds an ownership interest in the Franchise Owner must personally guarantee all of 
the obligations of the Franchise Owner under the Regional Development Agreement. (See Exhibit 4 to the 
Regional Developer Agreement Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations) 

At the Company's request, you must obtain and deliver executed covenants of confidentiality and non-
competition from any persons who have or may have an ownership interest in the Owner or in the Regional 
Developer Business, or who receive or have access to Confidential Information under the System. The 
covenants must be in a form satisfactory to us and must provide that we are a third party beneficiary of and 
have the independent right to enforce the covenants. 

ITEM 16: 
RESTRICTIONS ON WHAT THE FRANCHISEE MAY SELL 

You must operate the Franchised Business in strict conformity with all prescribed methods, procedures, 
policies, standards, and specifications of the System, as set forth in the Manual for RDS and in other 
writings by the Company from time to time. You must use your Regional Developer Business Sales Office 
only for the operation of the Franchised Business and may not operate any other business at or from such 
office without the express prior written consent of the Company. 

The Company requires you to offer and sell only those goods and services that the Company has approved. 
The Company maintains a written list of approved goods and services in its Manual for RDS, which the 
Company may change from time to time (see Item 11 in this Disclosure Document). 

You must offer all goods and services that the Company designates as required for all franchises. In 
addition, the Company may require you to comply with other requirements (such as state or local licenses, 
training, marketing, insurance) before the Company will allow you to offer certain optional services. 

We reserve the right to designate additional required or optional services in the future and to withdraw any 
of our previous approvals. In that case, you must comply with the new requirements. There are no express 
limitations on our right to designate additional or operational services; however, such services will be 
reasonably related to our System or model. 

See Items 8, 9, 11 and 12 for more information about your obligations and restrictions. 
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ITEM 17: 
RENEWAL, TERMINATION, TRANSFER  

AND DISPUTE RESOLUTION 

This table lists important provisions of the Regional Developer Agreement. You should read these 
provisions in the agreements attached to this Disclosure Document. 

THE FRANCHISE RELATIONSHIP 

Provision 
Section in Regional 

Developer 
Agreement 

Summary 

a. Length of the term of the 
franchise 

Section 4 10 years. 

b. Renewal or extension of the 
term 

Section 4 Your renewal rights permit you to remain a 
Regional Developer after the Initial Term of 
your Regional Developer expires. If you 
wish to do so, and you satisfy the required 
pre-conditions to renewal, we will offer you 
the right to one (1) Renewal Term of 10 
years. 

c. Requirements for you to renew 
or extend 

Section 4 You must: have substantially complied with 
Regional Developer Agreement; give notice 
of intent to renew; sign new Regional 
Developer Agreement in our then-current 
form which may include terms and 
conditions materially different from those in 
the original Regional Developer Agreement, 
including (e.g., no further renewals, higher 
royalty fees, etc.); sign general release of 
claims against us and related parties (see 
Exhibit G); pay the applicable renewal fee 
(see Item 6); cure any defaults; and pay all 
amounts owed to us. 

d. Termination by you No provision You may terminate the Regional Developer 
Agreement on any grounds available at law. 

e. Termination by us without 
cause 

No provision Not applicable. 

f. Termination by us with cause Section 13.1 Only upon written notice to you. 

g. "Cause" defined - curable 
defaults 

Section 13.1 You do not pay us amounts due within 10 
days after written notice; or you do not 
comply with any other provision of the 
Regional Developer Agreement within 30 
days after written notice of default. 

h. "Cause" defined - defaults which 
cannot be cured 

Section 13.1 You make an unauthorized transfer; you fail 
to meet your Minimum Development 
Obligation for any development period; you 
make material misrepresentation or omission 
in acquiring or operating the franchise; you do 
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Provision 
Section in Regional 

Developer 
Agreement 

Summary 

not satisfactorily complete initial training; 
you are convicted of or plead guilty to a 
felony; you fail to maintain required 
insurance; you engage in dishonest, 
unethical, or illegal conduct, or any conduct 
that we believe adversely affects the 
reputation of us, our franchises, or goodwill 
of the Marks; you knowingly make 
unauthorized use or disclosure of the 
Manuals or Confidential Information; you 
fail on 2 or more occasions in any 12-month 
period or 3 or more separate occasions in any 
24-month period to timely pay amounts due 
or submit required reports, or comply with 
the Regional Developer Agreement; you 
become insolvent, or make an assignment 
for the benefit of creditors; or any 
attachment or seizure of the franchise assets 
is not vacated within 30 days. 

i. "Transfer" by you - defined Section 11.2(b) Transfer includes: any voluntary, 
involuntary, direct or indirect assignment, 
sale, or gift of the franchise; transfer of 
ownership, merger, exchange, issuance of 
additional ownership interests, redemption 
of ownership interests, or sale of exchange 
of voting interests in you (if you are a legal 
entity); transfer of interest in the Regional 
Developer Agreement, you, the franchise, or 
its assets because of divorce, insolvency or 
dissolution, or operation of law; transfer 
because of the death of you or an Owner of 
you; or any pledge of the Regional 
Developer Agreement or ownership interest 
in you. 

j. Your obligations on 
termination/non-renewal 

Section 13.2 You must cease using our Marks and 
Confidential Information; cease identifying 
yourself as our franchisee; cancel fictitious or 
assumed names related to your use of the 
Marks; deliver to us within 30 days all 
advertising, forms, and other materials 
containing the Marks or related to the 
franchise; notify search engines of 
termination and your right to use domain 
names, websites, or other search engines 
related to the Marks or our franchises; and 
provide us with evidence of your compliance 
with the above obligations within 30 days of 
termination. 
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Provision 
Section in Regional 

Developer 
Agreement 

Summary 

k. Assignment of contract by us Section 11.1 Fully transferable by us. 

1. Franchisor approval of transfer 
by franchisee. 

Section 11.2(b) Any assignment or transfer without our 
approval is a breach of this Agreement and 
has no effect. 

m. Conditions for our approval of 
transfer by you 

Section 11.3 and 11.4 You must pay all amounts owed to us; new 
owner assumes your obligations; new 
owner, its affiliates, and its owners do not 
have any interest in or work for a 
competitive business; new owner completes 
or agrees to complete initial training; new 
owners signs our then-current Regional 
Developer Agreement and ancillary 
agreements; new owner has strictly 
complied with obligations to us and is not in 
default of those obligations; you pay us a 
transfer fee (see Item 6); you sign a release; 
you do not identify yourself as current or 
former franchisee of ours, or use any Mark. 
You may transfer the Regional Developer 
Business and its assets to a newly formed 
legal entity principally controlled by you 
and your principals if the new entity 
operates the Regional Developer Business 
and complies with the Regional Developer 
Agreement, and you provide information 
about the transfer to us and the entities 
owners. 

n. Our right of first refusal to 
acquire your business 

Section 11.6 We have 15 days to match any offer. 

o. Our option to purchase your 
business 

No provision None. 

p. Your death or disability Section 11.5 Executor, administrator, or other 
representative must transfer interest of 
franchisee or Owner within 9 months of your 
or an Owner's death or disability. All 
transfers are subject to provisions in 
Regional Developer Agreement regulating 
transfers. 

q. Non-competition covenants 
during the term of the franchise 

Section 12.1 Neither you, your principals, nor any 
immediate family members of you or them 
may perform services for or have any 
interest in any competitive business subject 
to state law. 

r. Non-competition covenants 
after the franchise is terminated or 
expires 

Section 12.2 Neither you, your principals, nor any 
immediate family members of you or them 
may perform services for or have any interest 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative  27 
Franchise Diclsoure Document 

Provision 
Section in Regional 

Developer 
Agreement 

Summary 

in any competitive business within the 
Development Area, the Development Area of 
any other Regional Developer, or within 25 
miles of any Redline Performance Center for 
18 months. This provision is subject to state 
law. 

s. Modification of the agreement Section 15.11 No modifications unless you and we both 
sign; we may amend Manual for RDS at any 
time. 

t. Integration/merger clause Section 15.11 The Regional Developer Agreement 
supersedes all prior agreements, 
representations, and promises. However, 
nothing in the Regional Developer 
Agreement will have the effect of modifying 
or limiting the representations made in this 
Franchise Disclosure Document or any of its 
attachments or addenda. No claim made in 
any Regional Developer or Franchise 
Agreement is intended to disclaim the 
express representation made in this Franchise 
Disclosure Document (subject to state law). 

u. Dispute resolution by 
arbitration or mediation 

Section 14 Except for certain claims, you and we must 
arbitrate all disputes in Maricopa County, 
Arizona (subject to state law). 

v. Choice of forum Section 15.8 
Maricopa County, Arizona (subject to state 
law). 

w. Choice of law Section 15.7 Arizona law governs, except for matters 
regulated by the United States Trademark 
Act (subject to state law). 

ITEM 18: 
PUBLIC FIGURES 

We do not use any public figure to promote our franchises. You have no right to use the name of any public 
figure for purposes of promotional efforts, advertising, or endorsements, except with our prior written 
consent. No public figure has any investment in the System or us. 

ITEM 19: 
FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE REPRESENTATIONS 

The FTC's Franchise Rule permits a franchisor to provide information about the actual or potential financial 
performance of its franchised and/or franchisor-owned outlets, if there is a reasonable basis for the 
information, and if the information is included in the Disclosure Document. Financial performance 
information that differs from that included in Item 19 may be given only if: (1) a franchisor provides the 
actual records of an existing outlet you are considering buying; or (2) a franchisor supplements the 
information provided in this Item 19, for example by providing information about possible performance at a 
particular location or under particular circumstances. 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative  28 
Franchise Diclsoure Document 

We do not make any representations about a Regional Developer's future financial performance or the past 
financial performance of company-owned or franchised outlets. We also do not authorize our employees or 
representatives to make such representations either orally or in writing. If you are purchasing an existing 
outlet, however, we may provide you with the actual records of that outlet. If you receive any other financial 
performance information or projections of your future income, you should report it to our management by 
contacting T.J. O'Connor, Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260, (480) 386-9708., the Federal Trade Commission and the appropriate state 
regulatory agencies. 

[REMAINDER OF THIS PAGE INTENTIANLLY LEFT BLANK] 
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ITEM 20: 
OUTLETS AND FRANCHISEE INFORMATION  

(REGIONAL DEVELOPERS) 

Table No. 1 
Systemwide Outlet Summary  

for Years 2021 TO 2023 

Outlet Type Year 
Outlets at the Start of 

the Year 
Outlets at the End of the 

Year 
Net Change 

Franchisee 

2021 25 28 3 

2022 28 32 3 

2023 32 33 1 

Company-Owned 

2021 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 

Total Outlets 

2021 25 28 3 

2022 28 32 3 

2023 32 33 1 

 
Table No. 2  

Transfers of Outlets From Redline Performance Centers to New Owners  
(Other than the Franchisor)  

For Years 2021 TO 2023 

State(s) Year Number of Transfers 

Arizona 

2021 0 

2022 0 

2023 0 

Colorado 

2021 1 

2022 1 

2023 0 

Georgia 

2021 3 

2022 0 

2023 0 

Texas 

2021 1 

2022 1 

2023 0 

Total 

2021 5 

2022 2 

2023 0 
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Table No. 3 
Status of Franchised Outlets* 

For Years 2021 TO 2023 

State Year 
Outlets 
at Start 
of Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Terminations 
Non-

Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of the 
Year 

Arizona 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

California 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 1 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Colorado 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Florida 

2021 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2022 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

2023 3 0 0 0 0 0 3 

Georgia 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Idaho 

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Illinois 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Indiana 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Louisiana 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 
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State Year 
Outlets 
at Start 
of Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Terminations 
Non-

Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of the 
Year 

Maryland 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Michigan 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 1 0 0 0 0 0 

Minnesota 

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Missouri 

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Nevada 

2021 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New 
Hampshire 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New Jersey 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New Mexico 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

New York 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 1 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 
Outlets 
at Start 
of Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Terminations 
Non-

Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of the 
Year 

North 
Carolina 

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Ohio 

2021 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2022 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

2023 2 0 0 0 0 0 2 

Oklahoma 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Oregon 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Pennsylvania 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Tennessee 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Texas 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Virginia 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Washington 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Washington 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 
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State Year 
Outlets 
at Start 
of Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Terminations 
Non-

Renewals 

Reacquired 
by 

Franchisor 

Ceased 
Operations 

Other 
Reasons 

Outlets 
at End 
of the 
Year 

Wisconsin 

2021 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

2022 1 1 1 0 0 0 1 

2023 1 0 0 0 0 0 1 

Total 

2021 25 3 0 0 0 0 28 

2022 28 3 0 0 0 0 32 

2023 32 1 0 0 0 0 33 

Table No. 4 
Status of Company-Owned Outlets 

For Years 2021 TO 2023 

State Year 
Outlets at 
Start of 

Year 

Outlets 
Opened 

Outlets 
Reacquired 

from 
Franchisees 

Outlets 
Closed 

Outlets Sold 
to 

Franchisees 

Outlets 
at End 

of 
Year 

All States 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Total 

2021 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2022 0 0 0 0 0 0 

2023 0 0 0 0 0 0 

Table No. 5 
Projected Openings as of December 31, 2023, for 2024 

State 
Regional Developer 

Agreements Signed but 
Outlets Not Opened 

Projected New Regional 
Developer Outlets in 

2024 

Projected New Company-
Owned Outlets in 2024 

California 0 1 0 

Hawaii 0 0 0 

Kentucky 0 1 0 

Tennessee 0 1 0 

Total 0 3 0 

 
Exhibit F lists the names of all of our operating Regional Developer and Franchisees and their addresses 
and telephone numbers as of December 31, 2023. Exhibit F lists the Regional Developers who have signed 
RDAs for which were not yet operational as of December 31, 2023, and also lists the name, city and state, 
and business telephone number (or, if unknown, the last known home telephone number) of every Regional 
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Developer who had an outlet terminated, cancelled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily 
ceased to do business under a Regional Developer during the most recently completed fiscal year, or who 
has not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the Issuance Date of this disclosure document. If you 
buy this franchise, your contact information may be disclosed to other buyers when you leave System. 

There are no trademark-specific franchisee organizations associated with the franchise system being offered 
that have requested to be included in this Disclosure Document. 

In some instances, current and former Redline Regional Developers signed provisions restricting their 
ability to speak about their experience with Redline Athletics. You may wish to speak with current and 
former Regional Developers but be aware that not all such Regional Developers will be able to 
communicate with you. 

ITEM 21: 
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 

Attached to this Disclosure Document as Exhibit D are our audited financial statements for the fiscal years 
ending December 31, 2021, 2022 and 2023 and unaudited financial statements through May 2024. 

ITEM 22: 
CONTRACTS 

 Regional Developer Agreement with State-Specific Addenda (Exhibit B) 

 Owner's Guaranty and Assumption of Obligations (Exhibit 4 to Regional Developer Agreement) 

 General Release (Exhibit G) 

ITEM 23: 
RECEIPTS 

Exhibit J includes Receipts acknowledging that you received this Disclosure Document. Please return one 
Receipt to us and retain the other for your records. If you are missing these Receipts, please contact us at 
this address or telephone number: 

Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC 
14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101  

Scottsdale, Arizona 85260  
Telephone: (480) 386-9708  
www.Redlineathletics.com 

 

http://www.redlineathletics.com/
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EXHIBIT A 
STATE ADMINISTRATORS/AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

Following is information about our agents for service of process, as well as state agencies and administrators whom 
you may wish to contact with questions about Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC. 
 
Our agent for service of process in the State of Arizona is: 

Gallagher & Kennedy Service Corporation 
2575 E. Camelback Road, Suite 100  

Phoenix, Arizona 85016 

DIRECTORY OF FRANCHISE REGULATORS, STATE ADMINISTRATORS, 
AND AGENTS FOR SERVICE OF PROCESS 

 
Federal Franchise Regulators: 
Federal Trade Commission 
Division of Marketing Practices 
Seventh and Pennsylvania Avenues, N.W., Room 238 
Washington, DC 20580 
202-326-2970 

List of State Administrators 

CALIFORNIA: 
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation 
1-866-275-2677 

Los Angeles 
320 West 4th Street, Suite 750 
Los Angeles, CA 90013-2344 
(213) 576-7500 
 
Sacramento 

2101 Arena Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
(916) 445-7205 
 
San Diego 
1455 Franzee Road, Suite 315 
San Diego, CA 92108 
(619) 610-2093 
 
San Francisco 
One Sansome Street, Suite 600 
Sam Francisco, CA 94104 
(415) 972-8559 

 
HAWAII: 
Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Commerce and  
Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
(808) 586-2722 
 
ILLINOIS: 
Illinois Attorney General 

500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 
(217) 782-4465 
 
INDIANA: 
Securities Commissioner 
Securities Division, Room E-111 
302 West Washington Street 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
(317) 232-6681 
 
MARYLAND: 
Office of the Attorney General, Division of Securities 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
(410) 576-6360 
 
MICHIGAN: 
Kathryn Barron 
Franchise Administrator Antitrust  
and Franchise Unit 
Consumer Protection Division 
Department of Attorney General 
670 Law Building 
525 W. Ottawa Street 
Lansing, MI 48913 
(517) 373-7117 
 
MINNESOTA: 
Commissioner 
Department of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite #280 
St. Paul, MN 55101 
(651) 539-1600 
 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD  1 
Exhibit A State Administrators and Agents for Service of Process 

NEW YORK: 
NYS Department of Law 
Investor Protection Bureau 
28 Liberty Street, 21st Fl 
New York, NY 10005 
212-416-8222 
 
NORTH DAKOTA: 
North Dakota Securities Department 
State Capitol, 5th Floor 
600 East Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58505-0510 
(701) 328-2910 
 
OREGON: 
Div. of Finance & Corp. Securities 
(608) 266-8557 
Department of Consumer & Business Services, Room 410 
350 Winter Street, NE 
Salem, OR 97301-3881 
(503) 378-4140 
 
RHODE ISLAND: 
Department of Business Regulation Securities Division 
Bldg. 69, First Floor 
John O. Pasture Center 
1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Cranston, Rhode Island 02920 
(401) 462-9585 
 

SOUTH DAKOTA: 
Franchise Administrator 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 
124 South Euclid, Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501 
(605) 773-3563 
 
VIRGINIA: 
State Corporation Commission 
Division of Securities & 
Retail Franchising 
1300 East Main Street, 9th Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 
(804) 371-9051 
 
WASHINGTON: 
Securities Division 
Department of Financial Institutions 
150 Israel Road, SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 
(360) 902-8760 
 
WISCONSIN: 
Division of Securities 
Bureau of Regulation & Enforcement 
Department of Financial Institutions, 4th Floor 
345 W. Washington Avenue 
Madison, WI 53703
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List of Agents for Service of Process 
 
CALIFORNIA 
Commissioner of Financial Protection and Innovation 
Department of Financial Protection and Innovation 
2101 Arena Blvd. 
Sacramento, CA 95834 
 
DELAWARE 
Corporation Service Company 
251 Little Falls Drive 
Wilmington, Delaware 19808 
 
HAWAII 
Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Commerce and Consumer Affairs 
Business Registration Division 
Securities Compliance Branch 
335 Merchant Street, Room 203 
Honolulu, Hawaii 96813 
 
ILLINOIS 
Illinois Attorney General 
500 South Second Street 
Springfield, IL 62706 
 
INDIANA 
Securities Commissioner 
Indiana Secretary of State 
201 State House 
Indianapolis, IN 46204 
 
MARYLAND 
Maryland Securities Commissioner 
200 St. Paul Place 
Baltimore, MD 21202-2020 
410.576.6360 
 
MICHIGAN 
Michigan Department of Commerce 
Corporations and Securities Bureau 
6546 Mercantile Way 
Lansing, MI 48910 
 
MINNESOTA 
Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce 
85 7th Place East, Suite #280 
St. Paul, MN 55101 
651-539-1600 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

NEW YORK 
New York Secretary of State 
99 Washington Avenue 
Albany, NY 12231-0001 
 
NORTH DAKOTA 
Securities Commissioner of North Dakota 
State Capitol, 5th Floor 
600 East Boulevard Avenue 
Bismarck, ND 58505 
 
RHODE ISLAND 
Director of Department of Business Regulation 
Securities Division 
John O. Pastore Center, Bldg. 69, 1st Floor 
1511 Pontiac Avenue 
Cranston, RI 02920 
(401) 462-9585 
 
SOUTH DAKOTA 
Director 
Division of Insurance 
Securities Regulation 
124 S. Euclid Suite 104 
Pierre, SD 57501 
(605) 773-3563 
 
VIRGINIA 
Clerk, Virginia State Corporation Commission 
1300 East Main Street, 1st Floor 
Richmond, VA 23219 
(804) 371.9733 

WASHINGTON 
Director, Securities Division 
Department of Financial Institutions 
150 Israel Road, SW 
Tumwater, WA 98501 
 
WISCONSIN 
Wisconsin Commissioner of Securities 
Department of Financial Institutions, 4th Floor 
345 W. Washington Avenue 
Madison, WI 53703 
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REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

THIS REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT (the "Agreement") is made and entered into this
 ________ day of  , 20_ , (the "Effective Date"), by and between Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, 
an Arizona limited liability company ("Company" "Franchisor" "we" "us" or "our") and   
 ________ , a      ("Regional Developer" or “you”), with reference to the following 
facts: 

A. This Agreement has been written in an informal style to make it more easily readable and to be sure 
that you are thoroughly familiar with all of the important rights and obligations the Agreement covers before 
you sign it. This Agreement includes several exhibits, all of which are legally binding and are an integral 
part of the complete Franchise Agreement. We refer to you as “you,” or “Regional Developer.” If you are 
a corporation, partnership, or limited liability company, you will notice certain provisions that are 
applicable to those principal shareholders, partners, or members on whose business skill, financial 
capability, and personal character we are relying in entering into this Agreement. Those individuals will be 
referred to in this Agreement as “Principal Owners.”  

B. Through the expenditure of considerable time, effort, and money, we and our affiliates have devised 
a system for the establishment and operation of specialized training centers (each a “Redline Performance 
Center”) that offer sports performance training products and services to the public, with a focus on ages 8 
through 18 (the “Redline Program”) Our atmosphere is recreational, professional, and educational (all of 
these characteristics are referred to in this Agreement as the “System”). We identify the System by the use 
of certain trademarks, service marks and other commercial symbols, including the word marks “Redline 
Athletics®”, Redline®”, “Redline® Sports Performance Centers”, Speed Power Core®”, and “Train Like A 
Pro, With The Pros®”, and certain associated taglines, designs, artwork, and logos, which we may change 
or add to from time to time (the “Marks”). 

C. From time to time we grant to persons who meet our qualifications, the right to operate Redline 
Athletics Regional Developer Businesses who will open and operate or solicit and assist Franchisees in 
opening and operating an agreed number of Redline Performance Centers within a defined geographic area 
(the "Development Area") (the "Development Rights"). 

D. Regional Developer desires to establish a business (a "Regional Developer Business") under which 
it will solicit, qualify, train, and assist franchisees (the "Franchisees") to build and operate Redline 
Performance Centers within the Development Area, and we desire to grant to Regional Developer the right 
to operate the Regional Developer Business in accordance with the terms and upon the conditions contained 
in this Agreement. 

WHEREFORE, IT IS AGREED: 

1. GRANT OF RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, we hereby grant to Regional 
Developer, and Regional Developer hereby accepts the rights, during the Initial Term, to solicit, screen, 
qualify for final approval by us, train, and assist Franchisees to open and operate Redline Performance 
Centers in the Development Area. 

2. REGIONAL DEVELOPER'S DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION. 

2.1 Minimum Development Obligations and Development Schedule. 

(a) Regional Developer shall solicit, screen, qualify, train, and assist Franchisees to 
construct, equip, open, and operate the total number of Redline Performance Centers set forth in Exhibit 
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2 (the "Minimum Development Obligation"), in the manner and within each of the time periods specified 
therein (the "Development Schedule") within the Development Area. 

(b) Each Franchise shall be the subject of a separate Franchise Agreement (as defined 
herein). We and the Franchisee shall enter into our then-current form of franchise agreement (the "Franchise 
Agreement"). 

(c) Redline Performance Centers which are the subject of a Franchise Agreement 
executed pursuant to this Agreement shall be counted in determining whether the Minimum Development 
Obligation shall have been met within the applicable Development Schedule. 

(d) During the Term, if we or you wish to establish additional Redline Performance 
Centers within the Development Area over and above the Minimum Development Obligation, and we have 
determined, in our sole discretion, that the Development Area can sustain such additional Redline 
Performance Centers, you have the right to purchase the development rights for such additional Redline 
Performance Centers within thirty (30) days of receipt of our written offer or your written request, as 
applicable, to purchase the development rights for such additional Redline Performance Centers at the price 
set forth in Exhibit 1. If you decline our offer to purchase or fail to pay the amount due for such additional 
Redline Performance Centers before the end of the thirty (30) day period, we reserve the right establish and 
operate, and/or to grant other persons the right to establish and operate, such additional Redline 
Performance Centers within your Development Area. You will not receive any portion of the Initial 
Franchise Fees or Royalty Fees for any Redline Performance Centers for which you decline to purchase the 
development rights. 

2.2 Regional Developer Sales Office and Opening. Regional Developer shall establish and 
operate a franchise sales office ("Regional Developer Sales Office" or "Sales Office") from any location 
you choose. We will not approve or disapprove of the location of the Sales Office. You must open your 
Regional Developer Business within 30 days after you receive your initial training from us, or 90 days after 
signing your Regional Developer Agreement, whichever occurs first. 

3. EXCLUSIVITY. 

3.1 Territorial Rights. Except as provided in Section 3.2, as long as this Agreement is in effect, 
and you are in compliance with this Agreement, and meet the Minimum Development Obligation set forth 
in this Agreement, then we and our affiliates will not operate, establish or grant another Regional Developer 
Business offering Redline Performance Centers in your Development Area. 

3.2 Rights Maintained by Company. We (and any affiliates that we might have from time to 
time) shall at all times have the right to engage in any activities we deem appropriate that are not expressly 
prohibited by this Agreement, whenever and wherever we desire, including, but not limited to: 

(a) establish and operate Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer 
Businesses, and granting right to other persons to establish and operate Redline Performance Centers or 
Regional Developer Businesses, on any terms and conditions we deem appropriate and at any locations 
other than within your Development Area; 

(b) establish and operate Redline Performance Centers and/or grant other persons the 
right to establish and operate Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area to the extent 
that such additional Redline Performance Centers exceed the total number of franchises you are authorized 
to develop within your Development Area as set forth in Exhibit 1, and you decline to purchase the right to 
develop such additional Redline Performance Centers; 
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(c) acquire the assets or ownership interest of one or more businesses providing 
Products and Services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, and franchising, licensing, 
or creating similar arrangements with respect to these businesses once acquired, wherever these businesses 
(or the franchisees or licensees of these businesses) are located or operating, including within your 
Development Area; and 

(d) be acquired (regardless of the form of transaction) by a business providing 
Products and Services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, or by another business, 
even if such business operates, franchises and/or licenses competitive businesses within your Development 
Area. 

4. TERM. The initial term of this Agreement (the "Initial Term") shall be for a period of ten (10) 
years commencing on the Effective Date, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of 
Section 13. Regional Developer shall have the right to extend the Term for an additional period of ten (10) 
years (“Renewal Term”) if (i) Regional Developer has substantially complied with the Minimum 
Development Obligation and all of the other terms of this Agreement during the Initial Term; (ii) Regional 
Developer and all of its Principal Owners and their spouses sign our general release form; (iii) we and 
Regional Developer mutually agree on new Minimum Development Obligations for the Development Area 
for the extension period; and (iv) Regional Developer has paid a renewal fee equal to twenty-five percent 
(25%) of the original Development Fee set forth in Section 7. Under the general release, Regional Developer 
and its Principal Owners and their spouses will waive any and all claims against us, our affiliates, and our 
and their owners, officers, directors, employees, agents, successors and assigns. If Regional Developer 
wishes to extend the Initial Term, Regional Developer must notify us in writing no more than one hundred 
eighty (180) days and no less than ninety (90) days before the Initial Term would otherwise expire. The 
Initial Term and Renewal Term are collectively referred to as the “Term.” 

5. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS OF COMPANY AND REGIONAL DEVELOPER.  

5.1 Regional Developer Training. Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, but no later 
than thirty (30) days before you open your Regional Developer Business for business, we or our designee 
will provide approximately two (2) days of training to Regional Director on the operation of a Regional 
Developer Business. This training program may include classroom training and/or hands-on training and 
will be conducted at our corporate headquarters in Scottsdale, Arizona, and/or at any other location(s) we 
designate. Regional Developer must complete the initial training to our satisfaction and participate in all 
other activities we require before soliciting Franchisees in the Development Area. Although we provide 
this training at no additional cost to Regional Developer, Regional Developer must pay all travel and living 
expenses which it and its attendees incur. We will not approve or disapprove the site where you choose to 
operate your Regional Developer Business. 

(a) If we determine that Regional Developer cannot complete initial training to our 
satisfaction, we may, at our option, either (1) require Regional Developer to attend additional training at 
Regional Developer's expense (for which we may charge reasonable fees - not to exceed $500/day), or (2) 
terminate this Agreement. 

(b) Regional Developer shall participate in periodic webinars and sales calls scheduled 
by us for Regional Developer Businesses and attend a national business meeting or convention of up to 
three days each year. We may also require Regional Developer to attend up to two (2) additional or refresher 
training courses each year at our corporate offices, or another location we designate. We may charge 
reasonable fees for these courses, conventions, webinars, sales calls, and programs. Regional Developer is 
responsible for all travel and living expenses. 
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(c) Because you are not required to operate Redline Performance Centers it is unlikely 
that you will be required to organize or alter your business structure to ensure compliance with the laws 
that are applicable to Franchisees. We are not obligated to provide assistance in determining which specific 
state laws apply to you or Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area. 

5.2 Regional Developer Manual. 

(a) We shall loan to Regional Developer one (1) copy of our Regional Developer 
manual (the "Manual for RDS") and one (1) copy of our operations manual for Redline Performance Centers 
("Manual for Locations") (collectively referred to as the "Manuals"). Regional Developer shall conduct all 
business activities in strict accordance with our standard operational methods and procedures as prescribed 
from time to time in the Manual for RDS. As used in the Agreement, the term "Manuals" shall be deemed 
to include the Manuals delivered or made available to Regional Developer, all amendments to the Manuals, 
and all supplemental bulletins, notices and memoranda which prescribe standard methods or techniques of 
operation, and which we may from time to time deliver to Regional Developer. 

(b) We shall have the right to modify or supplement the Manuals. Such modifications 
and supplements shall be effective and binding on Regional Developer after notice thereof is mailed or 
otherwise delivered to Regional Developer. Regional Developer acknowledges and agrees that 
modifications of and supplements to the Manuals may obligate Regional Developer to invest additional 
capital or incur higher operating costs. 

(c) The Manuals are our property and may not be duplicated, copied, disclosed, or 
disseminated in whole or in part in any manner except with our express prior written consent. Regional 
Developer shall maintain the confidentiality of the Manuals. Upon the termination of this Agreement, 
Regional Developer shall return to us all copies of the Manuals in its possession or control. If Regional 
Developer's copy of the Manuals is lost, destroyed, or significantly damaged, Regional Developer agrees to 
obtain a replacement copy at our then-applicable charge. 

5.3 General Guidance. We will provide guidance to Regional Developer in the Manuals and 
other bulletins or other written materials, by electronic distribution, and/or by telephone consultation. If 
Regional Developer requests and we agree to provide additional or special guidance, assistance, or training, 
Regional Developer must pay our then-applicable charges, including our personnel's per diem charges and 
any travel and living expenses. 

5.4 Franchise Registration and Disclosure. Neither Regional Developer nor any representative 
of Regional Developer shall solicit Prospective Franchisees until we have registered our current Franchise 
Disclosure Document in applicable jurisdictions in the Development Area and have provided Regional 
Developer with the requisite documents, or at any time when we notify Regional Developer that our 
registration is not then in effect, or our documents are not then in compliance with applicable law. If 
Regional Developer's activities pursuant to this Agreement require the preparation, amendment, 
registration, or filing of information or any disclosure or other documents, then all requisite disclosure 
documents, ancillary documents, and registration applications shall be prepared and filed by us or our 
designee, and registration secured, before Regional Developer may solicit Prospective Franchisees for 
Redline Performance Centers. Costs of such registration applicable to Regional Developer shall be borne 
by Regional Developer. In particular, Regional Developer shall: 

(a) prepare and forward to us verified financial statements of Regional Developer in 
such form and for such periods as shall be designated by us, including audited financial statements, if 
necessary and appropriate to comply with applicable legal disclosure, filing, or other legal requirements; 
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(b) promptly provide all information reasonably required by us to prepare all requisite 
disclosure documents and ancillary documents for the offering of franchises throughout the Development 
Area; and 

(c) execute all documents required by us for the purpose of registering Regional 
Developer and us throughout the Development Area. 

Regional Developer agrees to review all information pertaining to Regional Developer prepared to comply 
with legal requirements for selling franchises in the Development Area and verify its accuracy if so 
requested by us. Regional Developer acknowledges that we and our affiliates and designees shall not be 
liable to Regional Developer for any errors, omissions or delays which occur in the preparation of such 
materials. 

5.5 Investigation and Qualification of Prospective Franchisees. 

(a) We will screen, qualify, and process applications from Prospective Franchisees in 
your Development Area sourced from leads generated by third party marketing firms retained by us on 
Regional Developer’s behalf. 

(b) Each Redline Performance Center opened by a Franchisee pursuant to this 
Agreement shall be the subject of a separate Franchise Agreement with us, in our then-current form of 
Franchise Agreement. Regional Developer shall have no right to modify or offer to modify any Franchise 
Agreement or other contract. 

(c) If we shall approve a Franchisee and a prospective franchise location, Regional 
Developer shall transmit to such Franchisee for execution copies of our then-current Franchise Agreement 
pertaining to the approved site and providing for a protected territory surrounding said Redline Performance 
Center, as determined by us. 

(d) Regional Developer shall investigate the qualifications of each prospective 
Franchisee (“Prospective Franchisees”) and the suitability of each prospective franchise location in the 
Development Area in accordance with our standards, policies and procedures relating to qualification of 
Franchisees then in effect and shall obtain all information required of Prospective Franchisees by us. 

(e) After Regional Developer is satisfied that a Prospective Franchisee meets the 
standards established by us, Regional Developer may recommend to us the approval of such Prospective 
Franchisee. Regional Developer shall then furnish to us all information relating to the Prospective 
Franchisee which shall be required by us in the form and manner customarily required by us. 

(f) We may conduct or obtain such credit reports and background checks on 
Prospective Franchisees as we deem necessary or convenient. We may then approve or disapprove a 
Prospective Franchisee for any reason and may seek further information with respect to the Prospective 
Franchisee. Regional Developer shall cooperate with us in any further investigation of the Prospective 
Franchisee. If we reject a Prospective Franchisee, we will provide Regional Developer with a written 
explanation of the reasons therefor. 

(g) Regional Developer shall deliver to us a copy of all correspondence with 
Franchisees which is material to the franchise relationship, concurrently with its being sent or received by 
Regional Developer. 
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(h) Regional Developer shall ensure that each Franchisee within your Development 
Area conducts a legal review of the laws applicable to Franchised Businesses within the Franchisee's state, 
and that such legal review is provided to us within thirty (30) days of signing their Franchise Agreement. 

5.6 Training and Support. Regional Developer agrees to implement any training programs 
developed by us for Redline Performance Centers and to provide such assistance and services as we shall 
reasonably request and require from time to time in connection with the construction, equipping and 
opening of Redline Performance Centers within the Development Area, the sourcing of equipment, fixtures, 
furnishings, inventory and supplies for such Redline Performance Centers, the advertising and promotion 
of such Redline Performance Centers, and the supervision of the use, and compliance with our quality 
control standards in the use of the Marks at such Redline Performance Centers. All services and assistance 
provided to Franchisees in connection with the operation of Redline Performance Centers located in the 
Development Area will be provided by Regional Developer and such obligations of Regional Developer 
will not be transferred, delegated, or subcontracted to any other person. 

5.7 Inspection of Redline Performance Centers and Operations. Regional Developer shall 
conduct inspections of all of the Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area and review the 
operations of all Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area, in accordance with the standards 
from time to time established by us, upon such schedules and according to such procedures as shall be 
agreed upon by us and Regional Developer, acting in good faith, but, in any event, at least once during each 
calendar quarter. Regional Developer shall provide reports to us with respect to the findings of such 
inspections, in such form and at such time as we shall require. We reserve the right to conduct periodic 
inspections of your Regional Developer Business to ensure that you are in compliance with this Agreement, 
the Manual for RDS, standards, and any of our other written directives. Regional Developer shall participate 
in all promotion and marketing activities required by us of our Regional Developers, as required in the 
Franchise Agreements, or otherwise. 

6. OPERATING STANDARDS.  

6.1 Standard of Service. Regional Developer shall at all times give prompt, courteous, and 
efficient service to Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area. Regional Developer shall, in 
all dealings with Franchisees, Prospective Franchisees and the public, adhere to the highest standards of 
honesty, integrity, fair dealings, and ethical conduct. 

6.2 Compliance with Laws and Good Business Practices. Regional Developer shall secure and 
maintain in force all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to Regional Developer's activities 
under this Agreement and operate in full compliance with all applicable laws, ordinances, and regulations. 
Regional Developer acknowledges being advised that many jurisdictions have enacted laws concerning the 
advertising, sale, renewal, and termination of, and continuing relationship between parties to a franchise 
agreement, including, without limitation, laws concerning disclosure requirements. Regional Developer 
agrees promptly to become aware of and to comply with all such laws and legal requirements in force in 
the Development Area and to utilize only disclosure documents that we have approved for use in the 
applicable jurisdiction. 

6.3 Accuracy of Information. Before it solicits a Prospective Franchisee, Regional Developer 
shall each time take reasonable steps to confirm that the information contained in any written materials, 
agreements and other documents related to the offer or sale of franchises is true, correct, and not misleading 
at the time of such offer or sale and that the offer or sale of such franchise will not at that time be contrary 
to or in violation of any applicable state law related to the registration of the franchise offering. We shall 
provide Regional Developer with any changes to our disclosure documents and other agreements on a 
timely basis and, upon request, provide Regional Developer with confirmation that the information 
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contained in any written materials, agreements or documents being used by Regional Developer is true, 
correct and not misleading, except for information specifically relating to disclosures regarding Regional 
Developer. If Regional Developer notifies us of an error in any information in our documents, we shall 
have a reasonable period of time to attempt to correct any deficiencies, misrepresentations, or omissions in 
such information. 

6.4 Notice of Litigation. Regional Developer shall notify us in writing within five (5) days 
after the commencement of any action, suit, arbitration, proceeding, or investigation, or the issuance of any 
order, writ, injunction, award and decree, by any court agency or other governmental instrumentality, which 
names Regional Developer or any of its Owners or otherwise concerns the operation or financial condition 
of Regional Developer, the Regional Developer Business or any Franchisee. 

6.5 Insurance. Regional Developer shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, maintain 
in force, at Regional Developer's sole expense, insurance written on an occurrence basis for the Regional 
Developer Business of the types, in the amounts and with such terms and conditions as we may from time to 
time prescribe in the Regional Developer Manual or otherwise. All of the required insurance policies shall 
name us and affiliates designated by us as additional insureds, contain waivers of the insurance company's 
right of subrogation against us and the designated affiliates, and provide that we will receive thirty (30) days' 
prior written notice of termination, expiration, cancellation, or modification of any such policy. You are 
responsible for any and all claims, losses, or damages, including to third persons, originating from, in 
connection with, or caused by your failure to name us as an additional insured on each insurance policy. You 
agree to defend, indemnify, and hold us harmless of, from, and with respect to any such claims, loss or damage 
arising out of your failure to name us as additional insured, which indemnity shall survive the termination or 
expiration and non-renewal of this Agreement. Notwithstanding the existence of such insurance, you are and 
will be responsible for all loss or damage and contractual liability to third persons originating from or in 
connection with the operation of the Regional Developer Business, and for all claims or demands for damages 
to property or for injury, illness or death of persons directly or indirectly resulting therefrom; and you agree 
to defend, indemnify and hold us harmless of, from, and with respect to any such claims, loss or damage, 
which indemnity shall survive the termination or expiration and non-renewal of this Agreement. In addition 
to the requirements of the foregoing paragraphs of this Section 6.5, you must maintain any and all insurance 
coverage in such amounts and under such terms and conditions as may be required in connection with your 
lease or purchase of any premises used to operate your Regional Developer Business. Your obligation to 
maintain insurance coverage as described in this Agreement will not be reduced in any manner by reason 
of any separate insurance we maintain on our own behalf, nor will our maintenance of that insurance relieve 
you of any obligations under this Agreement. If you fail to pay the premiums for insurance required to 
operate your franchise, we may obtain insurance for you, and you will be required to reimburse us within 
ten (10) days of receipt of a demand for reimbursement from us. We will have the right to debit your account 
the amounts owed to us for such premiums if you fail to pay us within ten (10) days of our request for 
reimbursement. 

6.6 Proof of Insurance Coverage. Regional Developer will provide proof of insurance to us 
before beginning operations of its Regional Developer Business. This proof will show that the insurer has 
been authorized to inform us in the event any policies lapse or are cancelled or modified. We have the right 
to change the types, amount, and terms of insurance that Regional Developer is required to maintain by 
giving Regional Developer prior reasonable notice. Noncompliance with these insurance provisions shall 
be deemed a material breach of this Agreement, and in the event of any lapse in insurance coverage, we 
shall have the right, in addition to all other remedies, to demand that Regional Developer cease operations 
of its Regional Developer Business until coverage is reinstated or, in the alternative, to pay any 
delinquencies in premium payments and charge the same back to Regional Developer. 

6.7 Advertising Requirements, Funds, and Cooperatives. 
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(a) Minimum Advertising Requirement. You must meet the minimum advertising 
requirement we establish for your Regional Developer Business ("Minimum Advertisement Requirement").  
We and you agree that your timely, monthly payment of the Development Marketing Fee shall satisfy the 
Minimum Advertising Requirement. 

(b) We will direct all marketing programs financed by the RD Ad Fund, and will have 
sole discretion over the creative concepts, materials and endorsements used by the RD Ad Fund, and the 
geographic, market, and media placement and allocation of any RD Ad Fund. RD Ad Fund contributions 
will be used primarily to promote and support the sale of Franchised Businesses. RD Ad Fund contribution 
may be used to pay the costs of administering such a program, including employing personnel, and paying 
for advertising and marketing activities that we deem appropriate, including the costs of participating in 
any national or regional trade shows. 

(c) The RD Ad Fund will be accounted for separately from our other funds and will 
not be used to pay any of our general operating expenses, except for salaries, administrative costs, and 
overhead that we incur in activities reasonably related to the administration of the RD Ad Fund. We may 
spend in any fiscal year an amount greater or less than the aggregate contributions to the RD Ad Fund in 
that year, and the RD Ad Fund may borrow from us or other lenders to cover the RD Ad Fund's deficits or 
invest any surplus for future use by the RD Ad Fund. We will prepare an annual statement of monies 
collected and costs incurred by the RD Ad Fund and will provide it to you upon written request. 

(d) We may cause the RD Ad Fund to be incorporated or operated through an entity 
separate from us when we deem appropriate, and the entity will have the same rights and duties as we do 
under a Regional Developer agreement. We do not have to ensure that the RD Ad Fund's expenditures in or 
affecting any geographic area are proportionate or equivalent to the contributions made by any Regional 
Developer in that geographic area, or that any Regional Developer will benefit from the development of 
advertising and marketing materials or the placement of advertising by the RD Ad Fund directly or in 
proportion to the Regional Developer's contribution to the RD Ad Fund. We assume no direct or indirect 
liability or obligation to you or any other franchise in connection with the establishment of an RD Ad Fund, 
or the collection, administration, or disbursement of monies paid into the RD Ad Fund. 

(e) We may suspend contributions to, and the operations of, the RD Ad Fund for any 
period we deem appropriate and may terminate an RD Ad Fund upon 30 days' written notice to you. All 
unspent monies held by the RD Ad Fund on the date of termination will be distributed to us, our affiliates, 
and you and our other Regional Developers in proportion to each party's respective contributions to the RD 
Ad Fund during the preceding 12-month period. We may reinstate a terminated RD Ad Fund upon the same 
terms and conditions set forth in this Agreement upon 30 days' advance written notice to you. 

6.8 Approval of Advertising. Prior to their use by Regional Developer, samples of all 
advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by us shall be submitted to us 
for approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withheld. Regional Developer shall not use any 
advertising or promotional materials that we have not approved or have disapproved. Regional Developer 
acknowledges and understands that certain states require the filing of franchise sales advertising materials 
with the appropriate state agency prior to dissemination. Regional Developer agrees fully and timely to 
comply with such filing requirements at Regional Developer's own expense unless such advertising has 
been previously filed with the state by us. We may charge Regional Developer for the costs incurred by us 
in printing large quantities of advertising and marketing materials supplied by us to Regional Developer at 
Regional Developer's request. 

6.9 Websites. As used in this Agreement, the term "Website" means an interactive electronic 
document contained in a network of computers linked by communications software that refers to the Marks, 
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System, and Redline Performance Centers, and includes but is not limited to, Internet and World Wide Web 
pages. You agree that you will not establish a separate Website for your Regional Developer Business, nor 
will you use any social media website, applications, or platforms, such as Facebook, Instagram, LinkedIn, 
etc., in connection with your franchise without our express written consent. 

6.10 Accounting, Bookkeeping and Records. Regional Developer shall maintain at its Sales 
Office in the Development Area all original invoices, receipts, checks, contracts, licenses, 
acknowledgement of receipt forms, and bookkeeping and business records we require from time to time. 
Regional Developer shall furnish to us, within one hundred twenty (120) days after the end of Regional 
Developer's fiscal year, a balance sheet and profit and loss statement (audited by a CPA, if requested by us) 
for Regional Developer's business for such year (or a monthly or quarterly statement if required by us, in 
which case such statements also shall reflect year-to-date information). In addition, upon our request, within 
ten (10) days after such returns are filed, exact copies of federal and state income, sales and any other tax 
returns and such other forms, records, books, and other information as we periodically require regarding 
Regional Developer's business, shall be furnished to us. Regional Developer shall maintain all records and 
report of the business conducted pursuant to this Agreement for at least two (2) years after the date of 
termination or expiration of this Agreement. 

6.11 Reports. Regional Developer shall, as often as required by us, deliver to us a written report 
of its Regional Developer Business activities in such form and detail as we may from time to time specify, 
including information about efforts to solicit Prospective Franchisees, the status of pending real estate 
transactions, and the status of Redline Performance Centers. 

6.12 Computer Systems.  

(a) Regional Developer agrees to use the computer systems and operating software 
("Computer System") that we specify from time to time in the development and operation of the Regional 
Developer's business. You acknowledge that we may modify such specifications and the components of the 
Computer System from time to time. As part of the Computer System, we may require you to obtain 
specified computer hardware and/or software, including without limitation a license to use proprietary 
software developed by us or others. Our modification of such specifications for the components of the 
Computer System may require you to incur costs to purchase, lease and/or obtain by license new or modified 
computer hardware and/or software, and to obtain service and support for the Computer System during the 
term of this Agreement. You acknowledge that we cannot estimate the future costs of the Computer System 
(or additions or modifications thereto), and that the cost to you of obtaining the Computer System (or 
additions or modifications thereto), including software, may not be fully amortizable over the remaining 
term of this Agreement. Nonetheless, you agree to incur such costs in connection with obtaining the 
computer hardware and software comprising the Computer System (or additions or modifications thereto). 
Within sixty (60) days after you receive notice from us, you agree to obtain the components of the Computer 
System that we designate and require. You further acknowledge and agree that we and our affiliates have 
the right to charge a reasonable systems fee for software or systems installation services; modifications and 
enhancements specifically made for us or our affiliates that are licensed to you; and other maintenance and 
support Computer System related services that we or our affiliates furnish to you. You will have sole 
responsibility for: (1) the acquisition, operation, maintenance, and upgrading of your Computer System; 
(2) the manner in which your Computer System interfaces with our computer system and those of third 
parties; and (3) any and all consequences that may arise if your Computer System is not properly operated, 
maintained, and upgraded. 

(b) The Company will provide you with its proprietary office management software 
(the "Company Software"), which you will be required to install onto the Computer System and use in the 
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operation of your Regional Developer Business. You will pay us a Technology Fee in exchange for your use 
of the Company Software. 

6.13 Management of Business. You must personally participate in the direct operation of your 
Regional Developer Business. If you do not personally participate in the direct operation of your Regional 
Developer Business on a full-time basis, then you are obligated to have a fully trained Manager operate the 
Regional Developer Business. We believe that only a person with an equity interest can adequately ensure 
that our standards of quality and competence are maintained. We require that you be directly involved in 
the day-to-day operations and utilize your best efforts to promote and enhance the performance of the 
Franchised Business. Any Manager you employ at the launching of your franchise operations must 
complete the initial management-training course required by the Company. All subsequent Managers must 
be trained fully according to our standards by either the Regional Developer or the Company. However, the 
Company may charge a fee for this additional training. 

7. FEES. 

7.1 Development Fee. Regional Developer shall pay to us a non-refundable "Development 
Fee" payable upon execution of this Agreement in the amount specified on Exhibit 1 to this Agreement. If 
we require Regional Developer to acquire an in-depth demographic analysis of the Development Area, 
Regional Developer shall also purchase the demographic analysis from us or our designated supplier for 
the then-applicable fee. 

7.2 Development Marketing Fee. You will pay us, on a monthly basis, via ACH, EFT, or 
similar electronic transaction, a marketing fee to assist you in the development of your Development Area 
(the “Development Marketing Fee”). The Development Marketing Fee you will pay us is based upon the 
number of unsold licenses in your Development Area. If you have ten (10) or more unsold licenses in your 
Development Area, the Development Marketing Fee is $1,000 per month. If you have less than ten unsold 
licenses, the Development Marketing Fee is $750 per month. 

7.3 Technology Fee. You are required to pay a monthly technology fee which allows you to 
access our intranet site, including, training programs and the Company Software. The monthly technology 
fee is currently $325/month. We may increase the technology fee upon written notice to you. In addition, we 
may, at any time and from time to time, contract with one or more software providers, business service 
providers, or other third parties (individually, a "Service Provider") to develop, license, or otherwise provide 
to or for the use and benefit of you and other franchises the Company Software, software applications, and 
software maintenance and support services related to the Computer System that you must or may use in 
accordance with our instructions with respect to your Computer System. 

8. PAYMENTS TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER. 

8.1 Initial Fee Commission and Conditions of Payment. During the term of this Agreement, 
Regional Developer shall be paid a commission, as set forth in this Section, paid from the initial franchise 
fees paid by Franchisees and/or Regional Developer for the purchase of Redline Performance Centers to be 
located within the Development Area (the "Initial Fee Commission"), subject to fulfillment of the following 
conditions: (a) the Franchisee was referred to us by Regional Developer; (b) the Franchisee (or Regional 
Developer) executes a Franchise Agreement with us and an initial franchise fee has been paid to and actually 
received by us (we shall not be deemed to have received any fees paid into escrow, if applicable, until such 
fees actually have been remitted to us); and (c) Regional Developer has complied with all of its other 
obligations under this Agreement with respect to such sale and has verified the same to us in writing in a form 
prescribed by us. The Initial Fee Commission with respect to the sale of Redline Performance Center 
franchises shall be forty percent (40%) of the initial franchise fee paid for each Redline Performance Center 
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franchise that is sold by Regional Developer pursuant to this Agreement minus any broker's fees or sales 
commissions, if any, and will be payable to Regional Developer within twenty (20) days after the conditions 
of this Section 8.1 have been fulfilled. 

8.2 Commissions on Royalty Fees. We shall pay to Regional Developer, on the 10th day of the 
month after royalty payments are actually received by us from each Franchisee located in the Development 
Area: 

(a) From Redline Performance Center Franchisees. Three percent (3%) of the gross 
revenues (which excludes advertising and marketing fees) actually received by us from each Franchisee 
located in the Development Area during the applicable period pursuant to their Franchise Agreement 
("Royalty Fees").  

(b) The terms "gross revenues" shall, for purposes of this Agreement, mean the total 
of all revenue and receipts derived from the operation of a Redline Business, including all amounts received 
at or away from the site of a Redline Performance Center, or through the business the Franchisee conducts 
(such as fees for the sale of any service or product, gift certificate sales, and revenue derived from products 
sales, whether in cash or by check, credit card, debit card, barter or exchange, or other credit transactions); 
and excludes only sales taxes collected from customers and paid to the appropriate taxing authority, and all 
customer refunds and credits the Franchisee actually makes. Notwithstanding the foregoing, if Regional 
Developer has failed to conduct the periodic inspections described in Section 5.9 and failed to perform in 
any material respect, with respect to one (1) or more Franchisees located in the Development Area, the 
other services described in Section 5 to be provided to Franchisees located in the Development Area during 
any applicable month, then Regional Developer shall not be entitled to receive commissions on Royalty 
Fees with respect to such Franchisees for the period during which reports or services were not provided. 

8.3 Commissions After Termination. All payments under this Section 8 shall immediately and 
permanently cease after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, although Regional Developer shall 
receive all amounts which have accrued to Regional Developer as of the effective date of expiration or 
termination. 

8.4 Application of Payments. Our payments to Regional Developer shall be based on amounts 
actually collected from Franchisees, not on payments accrued, due or owning. In the event of termination 
of a Franchise Agreement within the Development Area, we shall apply any payments received from a 
Franchisee to pay past due indebtedness of that Franchisee for Royalty Fees, advertising contributions, 
purchases from us or our affiliates, interest, or any other indebtedness on that Franchisee to us or our 
affiliates. To the extent that such payments are applied to a Franchisee's overdue Royalty Fee payments, 
Regional Developer shall be entitled to its pro rata share of such payments, less its pro rata share of the 
costs of collection paid to third parties. 

8.5 Setoffs. Regional Developer shall not be allowed to set off amounts owed to us for fees or 
other amounts due under this Agreement against any monies owed to Regional Developer by us, which 
right to set-off, is hereby expressly waived by Regional Developer. We shall be allowed to set off against 
amounts owed to Regional Developer for commissions, Royalty Fees, or other amounts due under this 
Agreement any monies owed to us by Regional Developer. 

9. MARKS.  

9.1 Ownership and Goodwill of Marks. Regional Developer's right to use the Marks is derived 
only from this Agreement and is limited to Regional Developer's operation of its Regional Developer 
Business. Regional Developer's unauthorized use of the Marks is a breach of this Agreement and infringes 
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our rights in the Marks. Regional Developer acknowledges and agrees that Regional Developer's use of the 
Marks and any goodwill established by that use are for our exclusive benefit and that this Agreement does 
not confer any goodwill or other interests in the Marks upon Regional Developer (other than the right to 
operate a Regional Developer Business under this Agreement). All provisions of this Agreement relating 
to the Marks apply to any additional and substitute trademarks and service marks we authorize Regional 
Developer to use. 

9.2 Limitations on Regional Developer's Use of Marks. Regional Developer may not use any 
Mark: (1) as part of any corporate or legal business name; (2) with any prefix, suffix or other modifying 
words, terms, designs, symbols other than logos we have licensed to Regional Developer; (3) in selling any 
unauthorized services or products; (4) as part of any domain name, electronic address or search engine, 
without our consent; or (5) in any other manner we have not expressly authorized in writing. Regional 
Developer may not use any Mark in advertising the transfer, sale, or other disposition of Regional 
Developer's business under this Agreement or an ownership interest in Regional Developer (if a 
corporation, partnership, limited liability company or another business entity holds the Regional Developer 
Business at any time during this Agreement's term) without our prior written consent. 

9.3 Notification of Infringements and Claims. Regional Developer agrees to notify us 
immediately of any apparent infringement of or challenge to Regional Developer's use of any Mark, or of any 
person's claim of any rights in any Mark, and not to communicate with any person other than us and our 
attorneys and Regional Developer's attorneys regarding any infringement, challenge, or claim. We may take 
action we deem appropriate (including no action) and control exclusively any litigation, U.S. Patent and 
Trademark Office proceeding or other administrative proceeding arising from any infringement, challenge or 
claim or otherwise concerning any Mark. Regional Developer agrees to sign any documents and take any 
actions that, in the opinion of our attorneys, are necessary or advisable to protect and maintain our interests in 
any litigation or Patent and Trademark Office or other proceeding or otherwise to protect and maintain our 
interests in the Marks. 

9.4 Discontinuance of Use of Marks. If we believe at any time that it is advisable for us and/or 
Regional Developer to modify or discontinue using any Mark and/or use one or more additional or 
substitute trademarks or service marks, Regional Developer agrees to comply with our directions within a 
reasonable time after receiving noticed. We need not reimburse Regional Developer for Regional 
Developer's expenses in complying with these directions, for any loss of revenue due to any modified or 
discontinued Mark, or for Regional Developer's expenses of promoting a modified or substitute trademark 
or service mark. 

9.5 Indemnification for Use of Marks. We agree to indemnify and reimburse Regional 
Developer against and for all damages for which Regional Developer is held liable in any trademark 
infringement proceeding arising out of Regional Developer's authorized use of any Mark pursuant to and 
in compliance with this Agreement, and for all costs Regional Developer reasonably incurs in the defense 
of any such claim in which Regional Developer is named as a party, so long as Regional Developer has 
timely notified us of the claim, and have otherwise complied with this Agreement. At our option, we may 
defend and control the defense of any proceeding relating to any Mark. We have the exclusive right to 
control any litigation or other proceeding arising out of any actual or alleged infringement, challenge, or 
claim relating to any Marks. Regional Developer agrees to sign any documents, render any assistance, and 
do any acts that our attorneys say is necessary or advisable in order to protect and maintain our interests in 
any litigation or proceeding related to the Marks, or to otherwise protect and maintain our interests in the 
Marks. 

10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.  
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10.1 We possess (and may continue to develop and acquire) certain confidential information 
relating to the development and operation of Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer 
Businesses (the "Confidential Information"), which includes (without limitation): site selection criteria; 
methods, formats, specifications, standards, systems, procedures, sales and marketing techniques, 
knowledge and experience used in developing and operating Redline Performance Centers and Regional 
Developer Businesses; marketing research and promotional, marketing, and advertising programs for 
Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer Businesses; knowledge of specifications for and 
suppliers, and methods of ordering, certain operating assets and products that Redline Performance Centers 
and Regional Developer Businesses use; knowledge of the operating results and financial performance of 
Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer Businesses; customer communication and retention 
programs, along with data used or generated in connection with those programs; graphic designs and related 
intellectual property; information generated by or used or developed in the operation of Redline 
Performance Centers and Regional Developer Businesses, including customer names, addresses, telephone 
numbers and related information; and any other information designated confidential or proprietary by us. 
Regional Developer acknowledges and agrees that by entering into this Agreement, Regional Developer 
will not acquire any interest in Confidential Information, other than the right to use certain Confidential 
Information in accordance with this Agreement, and that Regional Developer's use of any Confidential 
Information in any other business would constitute an unfair method of competition with us and our 
Franchisees.  

10.2 Regional Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential Information is 
proprietary, includes our trade secrets, and is disclosed to Regional Developer only on the condition that 
Regional Developer agrees, and it does agree, that Regional Developer: 

(a) will not use any Confidential Information in any other business or capacity; 

(b) will keep the Confidential Information absolutely confidential during and after this 
Agreement's term; 

(c) will not make unauthorized copies of any Confidential Information disclosure via 
electronic medium or in written or other tangible form; 

(d) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures that we periodically prescribe 
to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information, including, without limitation: (i) 
restricting its disclosure to Regional Developer's personnel and Franchisees needing to know such 
Confidential Information in order to develop and operate the Redline Performance Centers; and (ii) 
requiring those having access to Confidential Information to sign confidentiality and non-disclosure 
agreements. We have the right to regulate the form of agreement that Regional Developer uses and to be a 
third party beneficiary of that agreement with independent enforcement rights; and 

(e) will not sell, trade, or otherwise profit in any way from the Confidential 
Information, except using methods approved by us. 

10.3 All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials relating to Redline Performance Centers or 
Regional Developer Businesses, whether or not protectable intellectual property and whether created by or 
for Regional Developer or its employees, must be promptly disclosed to us and will be deemed to be our 
sole and exclusive property and works made-for-hire for us. To the extent any item does not qualify as a 
"work made-for-hire" for us, by this paragraph, Regional Developer assigns ownership of that item, and all 
related rights to that item, to us and agrees to sign whatever assignment or other documents we request to 
evidence our ownership or to help us obtain intellectual property rights in the item. 
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10.4 "Confidential Information" does not include information, knowledge, or know-how which 
is or becomes generally known in business consulting industry or which Regional Developer knew from 
previous business experience before we provided it to Regional Developer (directly or indirectly) or before 
Regional Developer attended our initial training program. If we include any matter in Confidential 
Information, anyone who claims that it is not Confidential Information must prove that the exclusion in this 
paragraph is fulfilled. 

11. ASSIGNABILITY.  

11.1 Assignability by Company. We have the right to assign this Agreement, or any of our rights 
and privileges under this Agreement to any other person, firm or corporation,  without Regional Developer's 
prior consent, and we shall not be liable for any obligations accruing under this Agreement after the 
effective date of such assignment; provided the Assignee shall expressly assume and agree to perform our 
obligations under this Agreement and is reasonably capable of performing them. We have the right, but not 
the obligation, to cause a subsidiary or affiliate of ours to perform any or all of our obligations and exercise 
any or all of our rights under this Agreement and under any Franchise Agreement, and to require Regional 
Developer to perform any or all of its obligations hereunder, in favor or such subsidiary or affiliate, by 
delivery of written notice thereof to Regional Developer. 

11.2 Assignments by Regional Developer. We have entered into this Agreement in reliance upon 
and in consideration of the singular personal skills, character, aptitude, business ability, financial capacity 
and qualifications of Regional Developer and the trust and confidence reposed in Regional Developer or, in 
the case of a business entity Regional Developer, its owners (individually, a "Principal Owner"). Therefore, 
neither Regional Developer's interest in this Agreement nor any of its rights or privileges hereunder shall be 
assigned or transferred, voluntarily or involuntarily, in whole or in part, by operation of law or otherwise, in 
any manner, without our prior written approval. Any assignment or transfer without our approval is a breach 
of this Agreement and has no effect.  

11.3 In this Agreement, the term "Transfer" includes any voluntary, involuntary, direct, or 
indirect assignment, sale, gift, or other disposition and includes the following events: 

(a) transfer of record or beneficial ownership of capital stock in Regional Developer 
(if Regional Developer is a corporation), a partnership or membership interest (if Regional Developer is a 
partnership or limited liability company), or any other ownership interest or right to receive all or a portion 
of Regional Developer's profits or losses; 

(b) a merger, consolidation or exchange of shares or other ownership interests, or 
issuance of additional ownership interest or securities representing or potentially representing shares or 
other ownership interests, or a redemption of shares or other ownership interests; 

(c) any sale or exchange of voting interests or securities convertible to voting interests, 
or any agreement granting the right to exercise or control the exercise of the voting rights of any Principal 
Owner or to control Regional Developer's operations or affairs; 

(d) transfer of an interest in Regional Developer, this Agreement, or Regional 
Developer Business or its assets (or any right to receive all or a portion of Regional Developer's business' 
profits or losses or any capital appreciation relating to the Regional Developer's business) in a divorce, 
insolvency or entity dissolution proceeding, or otherwise by operation of law; 

(e) if Regional Developer or an Owner (if Regional Developer is a business entity) 
dies, transfer of an interest in Regional Developer, this Agreement, or the Regional Developer Business or 
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its assets (or any right to receive all or a portion of Regional Developer's or the Regional Developer Business 
profits or losses or any capital appreciation relating to the Regional Developer Business) by will, declaration 
or transfer in trust, or under the law of intestate succession; or 

(f) pledge of this Agreement (to someone other than us) or of an ownership interest in 
Regional Developer (if Regional Developer is a business entity) as security, foreclosure upon the 
Development Area franchises, or Regional Developer's transfer, surrender, or loss of the regional 
development franchise possession, control, or management. 

11.4 Conditions for Approval of Assignment or Transfer. We may impose any reasonable 
condition(s) to the granting of our consent to such assignments. Without limiting the generality of the 
foregoing, the imposition by us of any or all of the following conditions to our consent to any such 
assignment shall be deemed to be reasonable: 

(a) that the Assignee (or the principal officers, shareholders, directors, or general 
partners of the Assignee in the case of a business entity Assignee) demonstrates that it has the skill, 
qualifications, and economic resources necessary, in our judgment, reasonably exercised, to own and 
operate the Regional Developer Business; 

(b) that Regional Developer has paid all amounts owed to us; 

(c) that the Assignee shall expressly assume in writing for our benefit all of the 
obligations of Regional Developer under this Agreement and any other agreements proposed to be assigned 
to such Assignee; 

(d) that neither the Assignee nor its owners or affiliates operates, has an ownership 
interest in or performs services for a Competitive Business (defined in Section 12.2); 

(e) that the Assignee shall have completed (or agreed to complete) our training 
program; 

(f) that the Assignee signs our then-current form of Regional Developer Agreement, 
the provisions of which may differ materially from any and all of those contained in this Agreement, and 
the term of which shall be the remaining term of this Agreement; 

(g) that as of the date of any such assignment, the assignor shall have strictly complied 
with all of its obligations to us, whether under this Agreement or any other agreement, arrangement or 
understanding with us; 

(h) that the Assignee is not then in default of any of the obligation to us under any 
agreement between such Assignee and us; 

(i) that the assignor shall pay to us a transfer fee of Thirty Thousand Dollars 
($30,000), except for Transfers pursuant to Section 11.5 below; 

(j) that the assignor and the assignor's spouse (if any) shall sign a general release, in 
a form satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our affiliates and our and their respective 
shareholders, officers, directors, employees, representatives, agents, successors and assigns; and 

(k) that assignor will not directly or indirectly at any time or in any manner identify 
himself, herself or itself or any business as a current or former Redline Performance Center or as one of our 
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Franchisees or Regional Developers, use any Mark, any colorable imitation of a Mark, or other indicia of a 
Redline Performance Center or Regional Developer Business in any manner or for any purpose, or utilize 
for any purpose any trade name, trademark, service mark or other commercial symbol that suggests or 
indicates a connection or association with us. 

Regional Developer shall not in any event have the right to pledge, encumber, charge, hypothecate or 
otherwise give any third party a security interest in this Agreement in any manner whatsoever without our 
express prior written permission, which permission may be withheld for any reason whatsoever in our sole 
subjective judgment. 

11.5 Assignment to Entity Principally Controlled by You. The Regional Developer Business 
and its assets and liabilities may be assigned to a newly formed corporation or other legal entity that 
conducts no business other than the operation of the Regional Developer Business and in which you and 
any of your principals own and control in the aggregate not less than ninety percent (90%) of the equity and 
voting power of all outstanding capital stock or ownership interest, provided as follows: 

(a) that the proposed transferee complies with the provisions of this Agreement; and 

(b) that you are empowered to act for said corporation or other legal entity; and 

(c) that you shall submit to us documentation that we may reasonably request to 
effectuate the transfer, including the approving and acknowledging execution of this Agreement; and 

(d) that you shall submit to us a true and complete list of the shareholders, members, 
or partners, showing number of shares or interests owned, and a list of the officers and directors if a 
corporation or managers if a limited liability company, or managing partners if a partnership. We shall be 
promptly notified of any changes in said lists; and 

(e) that all certificates of shares or interests issued by transferee at any time shall be 
endorsed thereon the appropriate legend to conform with state law, referring to this Agreement by date and 
name of parties hereto and stating, "Transfer to This Certificate is Limited by the Terms and Conditions of 
a Regional Development Agreement dated   ;" and 

(f) that a copy of this Agreement shall be given to every shareholder, member, or 
partner; and 

(g) that a copy of the organizational documents and any corporate resolutions and a 
Certificate of Good Standing will be furnished to us at our reasonable request, and prompt notification in 
writing of any amendments thereto will be provided to us; and 

(h) that the number of shares or interests issued or outstanding in the transferee will 
not be increased or decreased without prior written notice to us, which notice will in its terms guarantee 
compliance with this Agreement. In addition, new shareholders, members of partners must be approved by 
use and agree to be bound by this entire Agreement. Shareholders, members, or partners may make a 
separate agreement among them providing for purchase by the survivors amount them of the shares of any 
shareholders or interests of any members or partners upon death, or other agreements affecting ownership 
or voting rights, so long as voting control and a majority representation of the board of directors or members 
or partners remains with those individuals who initially applied for and were approved as Franchisees under 
this Agreement. Shareholders, members, or partners must notify us in writing of any such agreement which 
affects control of the transferee. 
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11.6 Death or Disability. 

(a) Upon the death or disability of Regional Developer or an Owner, the executor, 
administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must assign, sell, or transfer Regional 
Developer's interest in this Agreement, the Regional Developer Business and its assets, or the Owner's 
ownership interest in Regional Developer, to a third party approved by us. That transfer (including, without 
limitation, transfer by bequest or inheritance) must occur, subject to our rights, within a reasonable time, 
not to exceed nine (9) months from the date of death or disability and is subject to all of the terms and 
conditions in this Section 11. A failure to transfer such interest within this time period is a breach of this 
Agreement. The term "disability" means a mental or physical disability, impairment or condition that is 
reasonably expected to prevent or actually does prevent Regional Developer from supervising the 
Development Area management and operation for ninety (90) or more consecutive days. 

(b) If, upon the death or disability of Regional Developer or an Owner, a trained 
manager who we approve is not managing the day-to-day operations, then the executor, administrator, 
conservator, guardian or other personal representative must, within a reasonable time not to exceed thirty 
(30) days from the date of death or disability, appoint a manager that we must approve to operate the 
Regional Developer Business. The manager must, at Regional Developer's or the Owner's estate's expense, 
satisfactorily complete the training we designate with the specified time period. 

11.7 Company's Right of First Refusal.  

(a) If Regional Developer at any time determines to sell or transfer an interest in this 
Agreement or the Regional Developer Business, or if Owner determines to sell or transfer a controlling 
ownership interest in Regional Developer, then Regional Developer or the Owner, as applicable (the 
"Seller") must obtain from a responsible and fully disclosed buyer, and send us a true and complete copy 
of a bona fide, executed written offer relating exclusively to an interest in Regional Developer or this 
Agreement and the Regional Developer Business. The offer must include details of the payment terms of 
the proposed sale and the sources and terms of any financing for the proposed purchase price. To be a valid, 
bona fide offer, the proposed purchase price must be in a fixed dollar amount and without any contingent 
payments of purchase price (such as earn-out payments). 

(b) We may, by delivering written notice to the Seller within fifteen (15) days after we 
receive both an exact copy of the offer and all other information requested, elect to purchase the interest for 
the price and on the terms and conditions contained in the offer, provided that: (1) we may substitute cash 
for any form or payment proposed in the offer; (2) our credit will be deemed equal to the credit of any 
proposed buyer; (3) the closing will be not less than thirty (30) days after notifying the Seller of our election 
to purchase or, if later, the closing date proposed in the offer; and (4) we must receive, and the Seller agrees 
to make, all customary representations and warranties, given by the seller of the assets of a business or 
ownership interests in a legal entity, as applicable, including, without limitation, representations and 
warranties regarding ownership and condition of, and title to, assets and (if applicable) ownership interests 
and validity of contracts and the liabilities, contingent on otherwise, relating to the assets or ownership 
interests being purchased. If we exercise our right of first refusal, the Seller agrees that, for two (2) years 
beginning on the closing date, the Seller and members of its immediate family will be bound by the non-
competition covenant contained in Section 12.2 below. 

(c) If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, the Seller may complete the sale to 
the proposed buyer on the original offer's terms, subject to our approval of the transfer as provided above. 
If the Seller does not complete the sale to the proposed buyer within sixty (60) days after we notify the 
Seller that we do not intend to exercise our right of first refusal, or if there is a material change in the terms 
of the sale (which the Seller must let us know promptly), we will have an additional right of first refusal 
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during the thirty (30) day period following either the expiration of the sixty (60) day period or receipt of 
notice of the material change(s) in the sale's terms, either on the terms originally offered or the modified 
terms, at our option. 

11.8 Ownership Structure. Regional Developer represents and warrants that all persons holding 
direct or indirect, legal, or beneficial ownership interests in Regional Developer (collectively, the 
"Owners") are listed in Exhibit 3 and that its ownership structure is as set forth on Exhibit 3. In consideration 
of, and as an inducement to, the execution of this Agreement, each Owner of the Regional Developer and 
their respective spouses shall personally and unconditionally sign our form Guaranty and Acceptance of 
Obligations (Exhibit 4), guarantying to us and our successors and assigns that the Regional Developer will 
punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the 
Agreement; and agreeing to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and every 
provision in the Agreement. Regional Developer shall not change its ownership structure without 
complying with all of the terms and conditions of this Section 11. Within ten (10) days of any change in 
Regional Developer's ownership structure, Regional Developer shall submit a revised Exhibit 3 to us 
showing the new ownership structure, and any new Owners shall sign our form Guaranty and Acceptance 
of Obligations (Exhibit 4). 

12. NON-COMPETITION.  

12.1 During the Term of this Agreement, neither Regional Developer, any of the owners of 
Regional Developer ("Principal Owners"), nor any member of Regional Developer's or a Principal Owner's 
immediate family will have any direct or indirect interest (e.g., through a spouse) as a disclosed or beneficial 
owner, investor, partner, director, officer, controlling shareholder, employee, consultant, representative or 
agent, or in any other capacity, in a Competitive Business (defined below), whether located within or 
outside the Development Area, unless we shall first consent thereto in writing. 

12.2 For an eighteen (18) month period following the assignment, expiration, or termination of 
this Agreement, for any reason, neither Regional Developer, any Principal Owner, nor any member of 
Regional Developer's or a Principal Owner's immediate family will have any direct or indirect interest (e.g., 
through a spouse) as a disclosed or beneficial owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, 
consultant, representative or agent, or in any other capacity, in any Competitive Business located or 
operating: (a) within the Development Area; (b) within the Development Area of any of our other Regional 
Developers, (c) within twenty-five (25) miles of any Redline Performance Center or Regional Developer 
Business in operation or development on the date of assignment, expiration or termination; or (d) within 
any unsold development areas. The term "Competitive Business" means any business which derives more 
than Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000) of revenue per year from sports performance training classes, 
programs, education, and services and related retail products, or any business which grants franchises or 
licenses to others to operate such a business, other than a Redline Performance Center operated under a 
Franchise Agreement with us. 

13. TERMINATION. 

13.1 Termination by Company. We may terminate this Agreement, effective upon written notice 
of termination to Regional Developer, if: 

(a) Regional Developer or one of its Owners makes or attempts to make a transfer in 
violation of Section 11; 

(b) Regional Developer fails to meet the Minimum Development Obligation for any 
period of the Development Schedule; 
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(c) Regional Developer has made or makes a material misrepresentation or omission 
in acquiring the rights under this Agreement or in operating the Regional Developer Business; 

(d) Regional Developer does not satisfactorily complete initial training; 

(e) Regional Developer is convicted by a trial court of, or pleads no contest to, a 
felony; 

(f) Regional Developer fails to maintain the insurance we require from time to time; 

(g) Regional Developer or an Owner engages in any dishonest, unethical, or illegal 
conduct or any other conduct which, in our opinion, adversely affects our reputation, the reputation or other 
Redline Performance Centers or the goodwill associated with the Marks; 

(h) Regional Developer knowingly makes any unauthorized use or disclosure of any 
part of the Manuals or any other Confidential Information; 

(i) Developer (a) fails on three (3) or more separate occasions within any twenty-four 
(24) consecutive month period to submit when due reports or other data, information or supporting records, 
pay when due any amounts due to us (or our affiliates), or otherwise comply with this Agreement, whether 
or not Regional Developer corrects any of these failures after we deliver written notice to Regional 
Developer; or (b) fails on two (2) or more separate occasions within any twelve (12) consecutive month 
period to comply with the same obligations under this Agreement, whether or not Regional Developer 
corrects either of the failures after we deliver written notice to Regional Developer; 

(j) Regional Developer makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admits in 
writing insolvency or inability to pay debts generally as they become due; Regional Developer consents to 
the appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all or the substantial part of the assets of the Regional 
Developer Business; or the assets of the Regional Developer Business are attached, seized, subjected to a 
writ or distress warrant, or levied upon, unless the attachment, seizure, writ, warrant or levy is vacated 
within thirty (30) days following the order' entry; 

(k) Regional Developer fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement and 
does not correct the failure within thirty (30) days after we deliver written notice of the failure to Regional 
Developer;  

(l) Regional Developer fails to pay any sums due to us and does not correct the failure 
within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice of that failure to Regional Developer; or 

(m) Another agreement between Franchisor and Regional Developer or a Principal 
Owner or affiliate of Regional Developer is terminated. 

13.2 Rights and Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration. Upon the expiration of the Initial 
Term or Renewal Term, as the case may be, or upon the earlier termination of this Agreement, Regional 
Developer shall have no further right to construct, equip, own, open, or operate additional Redline 
Performance Centers (except pursuant to a Franchise Agreement between Regional Developer and us which 
is in full force and effect on the date of expiration or termination). Upon expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, we may ourselves construct, equip, open, own or operate, or license others to construct, equip, 
open, own or operate Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area, except as provided in any 
Franchise Agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement. When this Agreement expires or is terminated 
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for any reason and except as required to perform Regional Developer's obligations under a valid Franchise 
Agreement with us, Regional Developer shall: 

(a) not directly or indirectly at any time thereafter or in any manner: (a) identify itself 
or any business as a current or former Regional Developer or ours; (b) use any Mark, any colorable imitation 
of a Mark, any trademark, service mark or commercial symbol that is confusingly similar to any Mark or 
other indicia of an Redline Performance Center in any manner or for any purpose; or (c) use for any purpose 
any trade name, trademark, service mark or other commercial symbol that indicates or suggests a connection 
or association with us; 

(b) take the actions required to cancel all fictitious or assumed name or equivalent 
registrations relating to Regional Developer's use of any Mark; 

(c) deliver to us within thirty (30) days all advertising, marketing and promotional 
material, forms and other materials containing any Mark or otherwise identifying or relating to the Regional 
Developer Business or to a Redline Performance Center; 

(d) if applicable, notify all search engines of the termination or expiration of Regional 
Developer's right to use all domain names, Websites and other search engines associated directly or 
indirectly with the Marks or Redline Performance Centers and authorize those search engines to transfer to 
us or our designee all rights to the domain names, Websites and search engines relating to the Marks or 
Redline Performance Centers. We have the absolute right and interest in and to all domain names, Websites 
and search engines associated with the Marks or Redline Performance Centers, and Regional Developer 
hereby authorizes us to direct all applicable parties to transfer Regional Developer's domain names, 
Websites and search engines to us or our designee if this Agreement expires or is terminated for any reason 
whatsoever. All parties may accept this Agreement as conclusive of our right to such domain names, 
Websites and search engines and this Agreement will constitute the authority from Regional Developer for 
all parties to transfer all such domain names, Websites, and search engines to us; 

(e) immediately cease using any of our Confidential Information in any business or 
otherwise and return to us all copies of the Manuals and any other confidential materials that we have loaned 
Regional Developer; and 

(f) give us, within thirty (30) days after the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement, evidence satisfactory to us of Regional Developer's compliance with these obligations. 

13.3 Termination Fee. In the event Regional Developer terminates this Agreement or ceases to 
do business, or Company terminates this Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 13.1 of this Agreement, the 
Regional Developer shall pay Company a termination fee equal to one-half of our highest then-current 
development fee for Regional Developer Businesses, plus our attorneys' fees and costs incurred in 
connection with the early termination. 

14. MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION.  

14.1 Mediation. If a dispute arises under this Agreement, the parties agree to try to settle the 
dispute through good-faith participation in a mediation conducted by a mediator who is acceptable to both 
parties before proceeding to arbitration. However, we will not be required to proceed with mediation if we 
elect to enforce this Agreement or to seek temporary or permanent injunctive relief as provided above. 

14.2 Arbitration. Except insofar as we elect to enforce this Agreement or to seek temporary or 
permanent injunctive relief as provided above, all controversies, disputes or claims arising between us, our 
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affiliates, owners, officers, directors, agents and employees (in their representative capacity) and you (and 
your Principal Owners and guarantors) arising out of or related to: (i) this Agreement or any provision 
thereof or any related agreement (except for any lease or sublease with us or any of our affiliates); (ii) the 
relationship of the parties hereto; (iii) the validity of this Agreement or any related agreement, or any 
provision thereof; or (iv) any specification, standard or operating procedure relating to the establishment or 
operation of the Regional Developer Business, shall be submitted for arbitration to be administered by the 
office of the American Arbitration Association. Such arbitration proceedings shall be conducted in 
Maricopa County, Arizona, and, except as otherwise provided in this Agreement, shall be conducted in 
accordance with the commercial arbitration rules of the American Arbitration Association then in effect. 
The arbitrator shall have the right to award or include in his award any relief which he or she deems proper 
in the circumstances, including without limitation, money damages (with interest on unpaid amounts from 
date due), specific performance, injunctive relief, attorneys' fees, and costs. The award and decision of the 
arbitrator shall be conclusive and binding on all parties to this agreement and judgment on the award may 
be entered in any court of competent jurisdiction. Each party waives any right to contest the validity or 
enforceability of such an award. The provisions of this Paragraph are intended to benefit and limit third 
party non-signatories and will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding expiration 
or termination of this Agreement. The parties agree that arbitration shall be conducted on an individual, not 
a class-wide basis, and that any such arbitration shall not be consolidated with any other arbitration 
proceeding. 

15. GENERAL CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS. 

15.1 Relationship of the Parties.  

(a) You and we understand and agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary 
relationship between you and us, that you and we are and will be independent contractors, and that nothing 
in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a general or special agent, joint venturer, partner, or 
employee of the other for any purpose. You agree to identify yourself conspicuously in all dealings with 
customers, suppliers, public officials, employees, and others as the owner of your Redline Athletics 
business under a franchise we have granted and to place notices of independent ownership on the forms, 
business cards, stationery, advertising, and other materials we require from time to time. 

(b) We and you may not make any express or implied agreements, warranties, 
guarantees, or representations, or incur any debt, in the name or on behalf of the other or represent that our 
respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee. We will not be obligated for any damages to 
any person or property directly or indirectly arising out of your operation of the business you conduct under 
this Agreement. 

(c) We will have no liability for any sales, use, service, occupation, excise, gross 
receipts, income, property, or other taxes, whether levied upon you or your Redline Athletics business, due 
to the business you conduct (except for our income taxes). You are responsible for paying these taxes and 
must reimburse us for any taxes that we must pay to any state taxing authority on account of either your 
operation or payments that you make to us. 

15.2 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Regional Developer agrees to 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless us, our affiliates, and our and their respective shareholders, directors, 
officers, employees, agents, representatives, successors and assigns (the "Indemnified Parties") from and 
against, and to reimburse any one or more of the Indemnified Parties for any and all claims, obligations and 
damages directly or indirectly arising out of: (1) the Regional Developer Business conducted by Regional 
Developer pursuant to this Agreement, (2) Regional Developer's breach of this Agreement, or (3) Regional 
Developer's non-compliance or alleged non-compliance with any law, ordinance, rule or regulation. For 
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purposes of this indemnification, "claims" include all obligations, damages (actual, consequential, punitive 
or otherwise) and costs that any Indemnified Party reasonably incurs in defending any claim against it, 
including, without limitation, reasonable accountants', arbitrators', attorneys' and expert witness' fees, costs 
of investigation and proof of facts, court costs, travel and living expenses and other expenses of litigation, 
arbitration or alternative dispute resolution, regardless of whether litigation or alternative dispute resolution 
is commenced. Each Indemnified Party may defend and control the defense of any claim against it which 
is subject to this indemnification at Regional Developer's expense, and Regional Developer may not settle 
any claim or take any other remedial, corrective, or other actions relating to any claim without our consent. 
This indemnity will continue in full force and effect subsequent to and notwithstanding this Agreement's 
expiration or termination. An Indemnified Party need not seek recovery from an insurer or other third party, 
or otherwise mitigate its losses and expenses, in order to maintain and recover fully a claim against Regional 
Developer. Regional Developer agrees that a failure to pursue a recovery or mitigate a loss will not reduce 
or alter the amounts that an Indemnified Party may recover from Regional Developer. 

15.3 Waiver and Delay. Except as otherwise expressly provided to the contrary, no waiver by 
us of any breach or series of breaches or defaults in performance by the Regional Developer, and no failure, 
refusal or neglect of or by us to exercise any right, power or option given to us under this Agreement or 
under any other agreement between us and Regional Developer, whether entered into before, after or 
contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement (and whether or not related to this Agreement) or 
to insist upon strict compliance with or performance of the Regional Developer's obligations under this 
Agreement or any other agreement between us and Regional Developer, whether entered into before, after 
or contemporaneously with the execution of this Agreement (and whether or not related to this Agreement), 
shall constitute a novation, or a waiver of the provisions of this Agreement with respect to any subsequent 
breach thereof or a waiver of our right at any time thereafter to require exact and strict compliance with the 
provisions thereof. 

15.4 Survival of Covenants. The covenants contained in this Agreement which, by their terms, 
require performance by the parties after the expiration or termination of this Agreement or ancillary 
agreements, shall be enforceable notwithstanding said expiration or other termination of this Agreement for 
any reason whatsoever. 

15.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of 
the legal representatives, successors and assigns of us and Regional Developer. 

15.6 Joint and Several Liability. If either party consists of more than one person or entity, or a 
combination thereof, the obligations and liabilities of each such person or entity to the other under this 
Agreement are joint and several. 

15.7 Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 
(Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 et seq.) and except for all issues relating to arbitrability or the enforcement 
or interpretation of the agreement to arbitrate set forth in Section 14 that will be governed by the United 
States Arbitration Act (9 U.S.C. § 1 et seq.) and the federal common law relating to arbitration, this 
Agreement and the Regional Developer Business will be governed by the internal laws of the State of 
Arizona (without reference to its choice of law and conflict of law rules), except that the provisions of any 
Arizona law relating to the offer and sale of business opportunities or franchises or governing the 
relationship of a franchisor and its franchisees will not apply unless their jurisdictional requirements are 
met independently without reference to this Section. You agree that we may institute any action against you 
arising out of or relating to this Agreement (which is not required to be arbitrated hereunder or as to which 
arbitration is waived) in any state or federal court of general jurisdiction in Maricopa County, Arizona, and 
you irrevocably submit to the jurisdiction of such courts and waive any objection you may have to either 
the jurisdiction or venue of such court. 
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15.8 Consent to Jurisdiction. Subject to Section 14 and the provisions below, Regional Developer 
and its owners agree that all actions arising under this Agreement or otherwise as a result of the relationship 
between Regional Developer and us must be commenced in the State of Arizona, and in the state or federal 
court of general jurisdiction closest to where our principal business address then is located, and Regional 
Developer (and its Owners) irrevocably submits to the jurisdiction of those courts and waives any objection 
Regional Developer (or its owners) might have with either the jurisdiction of or venue in those courts. 
Nonetheless, Regional Developer and any of its Owners agree that we may enforce this Agreement and any 
arbitration orders and awards in the courts of the state or states in which Regional Developer or its Owners 
are domiciled. 

15.9 Waiver of Punitive Damages and Jury Trial. Except for Regional Developer's obligation 
to indemnify us under Section 15.2 above and except where authorized by federal statute, we and Regional 
Developer and its Owners waive to the fullest extent permitted by law any right to or claim for any punitive 
or exemplary damages against the other and agree that, in the event of a dispute between us and Regional 
Developer, the party making a claim will be limited to equitable relief and to recovery of any actual 
damages it sustains. We and Regional Developer irrevocably waive trial by jury in any action, proceeding 
or counterclaim, whether at law or in equity, brought by either party. 

15.10 Limitation of Claims. Any and all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or our 
relationship with Regional Developer, except for claims for indemnification under Section 15.2 above, will 
be barred unless a judicial or arbitration proceeding is commenced within one (1) year from the date on 
which the party asserting the claim knew or should have known of the facts giving rise to the claims. 

15.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Exhibits incorporated in the Agreement contain 
all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties to this Agreement with reference to the subject 
matter of this Agreement. No other agreements, and all prior agreements, understanding and representations 
are merged in this Agreement and superseded by this Agreement. Each party represents to the other that 
there are no contemporaneous agreements or understandings between the parties relating to the subject matter 
of this Agreement that are not contained in this Agreement. This Agreement cannot be modified or changed 
except by written instrument signed by all of the parties to this Agreement, provided that we may modify or 
amend the Manuals at any time without notice to, or approval of, Regional Developer or any other person. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall have the effect of disclaiming any of the information in the Franchise 
Disclosure Document or its attachments or addenda. 

15.12 Headings. Article and Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only 
and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms, provisions, covenants, 
or conditions of this Agreement. 

15.13 Gender. All terms used in any one number or gender shall extend to mean and include any 
other number and gender as the facts, context or sense of this Agreement or any section or paragraph hereof 
may require. 

15.14 Severability. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Section, 
paragraph, term and provision of this Agreement in severable, and if, for any reason, any part thereof, to be 
invalid or contrary to or in conflict with any applicable present or future law and regulation in a final, 
unappealable ruling issued by any court, agency or tribunal with competent jurisdiction, that ruling will not 
impair the operation or, or otherwise affect, any other portions of this Agreement, which will continue to 
have full force and effect and bind the parties. If any covenant which restricts competitive activity is deemed 
unenforceable by virtue of its scope in terms of area, business activity prohibited, and/or length of time, but 
would be enforceable if modified, we and Regional Developer agree that the covenant will be enforced to 
the fullest extent permissible under the laws and public policies applied in the jurisdiction whose law 
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determines the covenant's validity. If any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdiction requires more 
notice than this Agreement requires of this Agreement's termination or of our refusal to enter into a successor 
agreement, or if, under any applicable and binding law or rule of any jurisdiction, any provision of this 
Agreement is invalid or unenforceable or unlawful, the notice and/or other action required by the law or rule 
will be substituted for the comparable provisions of this Agreement, and we may modify the invalid or 
unenforceable provisions to the extent required to be valid and enforceable or delete the unlawful provision 
in its entirety. Regional Developer agrees to be bound by any promise or covenant imposing the maximum 
duty the law permits which is subsumed within any provision of this Agreement, as though it were separately 
articulated in and made a part of this Agreement. 

15.15 Fees and Expenses. Should any party to this Agreement commence any action or 
proceeding for the purpose of enforcing, or preventing the breach of, any provision of this Agreement, 
whether by arbitration, judicial or quasi-judicial action or otherwise, or for damages for any alleged breach 
of any provision of this Agreement, or for a declaration of such party's rights or obligations under this 
Agreement, then the prevailing party shall be reimbursed by the losing party for all costs and expenses 
incurred in connection therewith, including, but not limited to, reasonable attorneys' fees for the services 
rendered to such prevailing party. 

15.16 Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all written notices and reports 
permitted or required to be delivered by the parties pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed so delivered 
at the time delivered by hand, one (1) business day after transmission by mail, via registered or certified 
mail, return receipt requested; or one (1) business day after placement with Federal Express, or other 
reputable air courier service, requesting delivery on the most expedited basis available, postage prepaid and 
addressed as follows: 

If to Franchisor: Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC  
14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260  
Telephone: (480) 386-9708  
www.Redlineathletics.com 
Telephone: (480) 386-9708 
Attention: T.J. O’Connor 
E-mail: TJ@Redlineathletics.com  
 

If to Regional Developer:   
  
  
 

Or to such other addresses any such party may designate by ten (10) days' advance written notice to the 
other party.  

15.17 Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence for all purposes of this Agreement. 

15.18 Lien and Security Interest. To secure your performance under this Agreement and 
indebtedness for all sums due us or our affiliates, we shall have a lien upon, and you hereby grant us a security 
interest in, the following collateral and any and all additions, accessions, and substitutions to or for it and the 
proceeds from all of the same: (a) all inventory now owned or after-acquired by you and the Regional 
Developer Business, including but not limited to all inventory and supplies transferred to or acquired by you 
in connection with this Agreement; (b) all accounts of you and/or the Regional Developer Business now 
existing or subsequently arising, together with all interest in you and/or the Regional Developer Business, 
now existing or subsequently arising, together with all chattel paper, documents, and instruments relating to 

http://www.redlineathletics.com/
mailto:E-mail:%20TJ@Redlineathletics.com
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such accounts; (c) all contract rights of you and/or the Regional Developer Business, now existing or 
subsequently arising; and (d) all general intangibles of you and/or the Regional Developer Business, now 
owned or existing, or after-acquired or subsequently arising. You agree to execute such financing statements, 
instruments, and other documents, in a form satisfactory to us, that we deem necessary so that we may 
establish and maintain a valid security interest in and to these assets. 

15.19 Cross-Default. Any default by Regional Developer under any other agreement between 
Franchisor or its affiliate as one party and Regional Developer or any of Regional Developer's owners or 
affiliates as the other party, shall be deemed to be a default of this Agreement, and Franchisor shall have 
the right, at its option, to terminate this Agreement without affording Regional Developer an opportunity 
to cure, effective immediately upon notice to the Regional Developer. 

16. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall not be binding upon us unless and until 
it shall have been submitted to and signed by our authorized agent, and the date of said signing as set forth 
on the first page of this Agreement shall be the effective date of this Agreement. 

17. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS. To induce us to sign this Agreement and grant Regional Developer 
the rights contained in this Agreement, Regional Developer acknowledges: 

17.1 That Regional Developer has independently investigated the Regional Developer Business 
franchise opportunity and recognizes that, like any other business, the nature of the Regional Developer 
Business may, and probably will, evolve and change over time. 

17.2 That an investment in a Regional Developer Business involves business risks. 

17.3 That Regional Developer's business abilities and efforts are vital Regional Developer's 
success. 

17.4 That performing Regional Developer's obligations will require a high level of customer 
service and strict adherence to the System. 

17.5 That Regional Developer has not received or relied upon, and we expressly disclaim 
making any representation, warranty, or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, profits or success 
of a Regional Developer Business or any Redline Performance Center. 

17.6 That any information Regional Developer has acquired from Franchisees or other Regional 
Developers regarding their sales, profits or cash flows is not information obtained from us, and we make 
no representation about that information's accuracy. 

17.7 That Regional Developer has no knowledge of any representations made about the 
Regional Developer Business opportunity by us, our subsidiaries, or affiliates or any of their respective 
officers, directors, shareholders, or agents that are contrary to the statements made in our Franchise 
Disclosure Document or to the terms and conditions of this Agreement. 

17.8 That in all of their dealing with Regional Developer, our officers, directors, employees, 
and agents act only in a representative, and not in an individual capacity and that business dealings between 
Regional Developer and them as a result of this Agreement are only between Regional Developer and us. 

17.9 That Regional Developer has represented to us, to induce us to enter into this Agreement, 
that all statements Regional Developer has made, and all materials Regional Developer has given to us in 
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acquiring the Regional Developer Business are accurate and complete and that Regional Developer has 
made no misrepresentations or material omissions in obtaining the Regional Developer Business. 

17.10 That Regional Developer has read this Agreement and our Franchise Disclosure Document 
and understands and accepts that the terms and covenants in this Agreement are reasonably necessary for 
us to maintain our high standards of quality and service, as well as the uniformity of those standards at each 
Regional Developer Business and Redline Performance Center, and to protect and preserve the goodwill of 
the Marks. 

SIGNATURES ON FOLLOWING PAGE 

SIGNATURE PAGE 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties to this Agreement have caused this Agreement to be executed as 
of the first date set forth above. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC, an 

Arizona limited liability company 

 

  

By:        

Its:    

Date:    

 

REGIONAL DEVELOPER: 

 

 

  

By:        

Its:    

Date:    
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EXHIBIT 1 
DEVELOPMENT AREA AND DEVELOPMENT RIGHTS 

Development Fee:       

The Development Area referred to in Recital D of this Agreement shall be the following geographic area:  

 

 

The total Development Rights (total number of Redline Performance Centers authorized for 
development within the Development Area) are:  

 Redline Performance Centers 

If you purchase the right develop additional Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area 
during the Term, the cost to purchase such additional Redline Performance Centers shall be the greater of 
$12,250 or twenty five percent (25%) of the then-current franchise fee for each applicable Redline 
Business that you purchase. If you do not purchase the right to develop additional Redline Performance 
Centers, we will have the right, pursuant to Section 2.1(d) of the Agreement, to develop such additional 
Redline Performance Centers on our own, or to grant the development rights for such additional Redline 
Performance Centers to others. 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Regional Developer's Initials 
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EXHIBIT 2 
MINIMUM DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION 

DEVELOPMENT SCHEDULE  

Minimum Development Obligation: 

 Redline Performance Centers 

All Redline Performance Centers authorized for development as set forth in Exhibit 1. 

Development Schedule: 

All Redline Business authorized for development in Exhibit 1 must be open for business within five (5) years 
of the Effective Date of this Agreement. Accordingly, Regional Developer must sell the last Redline 
Performance Center franchise agreement authorized for development in Exhibit 1 no later than 4 1/2 years 
from the Effective Date of this Agreement. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

   
Regional Developer's Initials 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD 
Exhibit B - Regional Developer Agreement  29 

EXHIBIT 3 
OWNERSHIP STRUCTURE 

Owner Name Owner Address Percentage Ownership 

 
 

  

   
 

 
 

  

 
 

  

TOTAL  100% 
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EXHIBIT 4 
OWNER'S GUARANTY AND ASSUMPTION OF OBLIGATIONS 

In consideration of, and as an inducement to, the execution of the foregoing Regional Developer Agreement 
dated    , 20 ("Agreement") by Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, an Arizona limited 
liability company (“we” or "us"), and the Regional Developer ("Franchise Owner"), each of the undersigned 
owners of the Franchise Owner and their respective spouses ("you" or “Owner”), hereby personally and 
unconditionally (1) guarantees to us and our successors and assigns that the Franchise Owner will 
punctually pay and perform each and every undertaking, agreement and covenant set forth in the 
Agreement; and (2) agrees to be personally bound by, and personally liable for the breach of, each and 
every provision in the Franchise Agreement or this Agreement, including without limitation, monetary 
obligations, the obligations to take or refrain from taking certain actions and arbitration of disputes. 

Each of you waives (1) protest and notice of default, demand for payment or nonperformance of any 
obligations guaranteed by this Guaranty; (2) any right you may have to require that an action be brought 
against Franchise Owner or any other person as a condition of your liability; (3) all right to payment or 
reimbursement from, or subrogation against, the Franchise Owner which you may have arising out of your 
guaranty of the Franchise Owner's obligations; and (4) any and all other notices and legal or equitable 
defenses to which you may be entitled in your capacity as guarantor. 

Each of you consents and agrees that (1) your direct and immediate liability under this Guaranty shall be 
joint and several; (2) you will make any payment or render any performance required under the Agreement 
on demand if Franchise Owner fails or refuses to do so when required; (3) your liability will not be 
contingent or conditioned on our pursuit of any remedies against Franchise Owner or any other person; (4) 
your liability will not be diminished, relieved or otherwise affected by any extension of time, credit or other 
indulgence which we may from time to time grant to Franchise Owner or to any other person, including 
without limitation, the acceptance of any partial payment or performance, or the compromise or release of 
any claims; and (5) this Guaranty will continue and be irrevocable during the term of the Agreement and 
afterward for so long as the Franchise Owner has any obligations under the Agreement. 

We possess certain unique confidential and proprietary information and trade secrets consisting of the 
following categories of information, methods, techniques, products, and knowledge developed by us, 
including but not limited to: (1) services and products offered and sold at Redline Businesses; (2) 
knowledge of sales and profit performance of any one or more Redline Businesses; (3) knowledge of 
sources of products and services sold at Redline Businesses, advertising and promotional programs, and 
image and decor; (4) Redline Software; (5) methods, techniques, formats, specifications, procedures, 
information, systems, and knowledge of, and experience in, the development, operation, and franchising of 
your Redline Performance Centers; and (6) the selection and methods of training employees. We will 
disclose much of the above-described information to you in advising you about site selection, providing 
our Initial Training, the Operations Manual, Redline Software, and providing guidance and assistance to 
you under this Agreement. In addition, in the course of the operation of your Franchise, you or your 
employees may develop ideas, concepts, methods, or techniques of improvement relating to your Redline 
Performance Center that you disclose to us, and that we may then authorize you to use in the operation of 
your Franchise and may use or authorize others to use in other Redline Businesses owned or franchised by 
us or our affiliates. Any such information disclosed to or developed by you will be referred to in this 
Agreement as “Confidential Information.” 

You agree that your relationship with us does not vest in you any interest in the Confidential Information, 
other than the right to use it in the development and operation of your Redline Performance Center, and 
that the use or duplication of the Confidential Information in any other business would constitute an unfair 
method of competition. You acknowledge and agree that the Confidential Information belongs to us, may 
contain trade secrets belonging to us, and is disclosed to you or authorized for your use solely on the 
condition that you agree, and you therefore do agree, that you (1) will not use the Confidential Information 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD 
Exhibit B - Regional Developer Agreement  31 

in any other business or capacity; (2) will maintain the absolute confidentiality of the Confidential 
Information during and after the term of this Agreement; (3) will not make unauthorized copies of any 
portion of the Confidential Information disclosed in written form or another form that may be copied or 
duplicated; and (4) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures we may prescribe from time to time 
to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of the Confidential Information, including without limitation 
restrictions on disclosure to your employees, and the use of non-disclosure and non-competition agreements 
we may prescribe or approve for your shareholders, partners, members, officers, directors, employees, 
independent contractors, or agents who may have access to the Confidential Information. 

During the Term of the Franchise Agreement and for an eighteen (18) month period following the 
assignment, expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, neither Owner nor an Owner's 
immediate family will have any direct or indirect interest (e.g., through a spouse) as a disclosed or beneficial 
owner, investor, partner, director, officer, employee, consultant, representative or agent, or in any other 
capacity, in any Competitive Business located or operating: (a) within the Development Area; (b) within 
the Development Area of any of our other Regional Developers, (c) within twenty-five (25) miles of any 
Redline Performance Center or Regional Developer Business in operation or development on the date of 
assignment, expiration or termination; or (d) within any prospective development areas that we have made 
reasonable efforts to sell during the preceding 12 month. The term "Competitive Business" means any 
business which derives more than Fifty-Thousand Dollars ($50,000) of revenue per year from sports 
performance training classes, programs, education, and services and related retail products, or any business 
which grants franchises or licenses to others to operate such a business, other than a Redline Performance 
Center operated under a Franchise Agreement with us. 

If the scope of any restriction contained in this Guaranty is too broad to permit the enforcement of that 
restriction to its fullest extent, then that restriction will be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by 
law, and Franchisor and Franchisee each consents and agrees that the scope may be judicially limited or 
modified accordingly in any proceeding brought to enforce that restriction. Each provision contained in this 
Section 10 is independent and severable and, to the extent that any provision is declared by a court of 
competent jurisdiction to be illegal, invalid, or unenforceable, that declaration will not affect the legality, 
validity or enforceability of any other provision contained in this Agreement or the legality, validity, or 
enforceability of that provision in any other jurisdiction. 

If we are required to enforce this Guaranty in a judicial or arbitration proceeding, and prevail in such 
proceeding, we will be entitled to reimbursement of our costs and expenses, including, but not limited to, 
reasonable accountants', attorneys', attorneys' assistants', arbitrators' and expert witness fees, costs of 
investigation and proof of facts, court costs, other litigation expenses and travel and living expenses, 
whether incurred prior to, in preparation for or in contemplation of the filing of any such proceeding. If we 
are required to engage legal counsel in connection with any failure by you to comply with this Guaranty, 
you agree to reimburse us for any of the above-listed costs and expenses incurred by us. 

Any capitalized terms not defined herein shall be defined in a manner consistent with the Regional 
Developer Agreement and/or Franchise Agreement. This Guaranty is now executed as of the date set forth 
in the first paragraph of this Agreement. 
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SIGNATURE PAGE 

OWNERS OWNERS' SPOUSES 

  

Printed Name:  

Date:  
Address:  

  

  

  

Printed Name:  

Date:  
Address:  

  

  

 
  

Printed Name:  

Date:  

Address:  
  

  

 
  

Printed Name:  

Date:  

Address:  
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EXHIBIT 5 
STATE-SPECIFIC ADDENDA 

TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 
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CALIFORNIA ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. California Corporations Code Section 31512.1 -Franchise Agreement Provisions Void as Contrary 
to Public Policy: 

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire, 
or other writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed 
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable: 

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee. 
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents. 
(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibits thereto. 
(d) Violations of any provision of this division. 

2. California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to the 
franchisee concerning termination, transfer or non-renewal of a franchise. If the franchise agreement 
contains a provision that is inconsistent with the law, the law will control. 

3. If any of the provisions of the Agreement concerning termination are inconsistent with either the 
California Franchise Relations Act or with the Federal Bankruptcy Code (concerning termination of the 
Agreement on certain bankruptcy-related events), then such laws will apply. 

4. The Agreement requires that it be governed by Arizona law. This requirement may be unenforceable 
under California law. 

5. You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your franchise. California Corporations 
Code 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under Redline Business Investment Law (California Corporations 
Code 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your rights under 
Redline Business Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043). 

6. The Department has determined that we, the franchisor, have not demonstrated we are adequately 
capitalized and/or that we must rely on franchise fees to fund our operations.  The Commissioner has 
imposed a fee deferral condition, which requires that we defer the collection of all initial fees from 
California franchisees until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations, and you are open for 
business. 

7. Registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection 
and Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the Commissioner. 

8. The highest interest rate allowed by law in California for late payments is ten percent (10%) per 
annum.  

9. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under 
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed and delivered this California 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as the Regional Developer Agreement was 
executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 
  
By:  
Title:   
Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 
  
By:   
Title:   
Date:   
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HAWAII ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. The Franchise Agreements contain a provision requiring a general release as a condition 
of renewal and transfer of the Regional Developer Business. Such release will exclude claims arising under 
the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law. 

2. Any provisions of your Franchise Agreement that relate to non-renewal, termination, and 
transfer are only applicable if they are consistent with the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law. Otherwise, 
the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law will control. 

3. The Franchise Agreement permits us to terminate the Agreement on the bankruptcy of 
you and/or your affiliates. This Article may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law. (11 U.S.C. § 
101, et seq.). 

4. Each provision of this Addendum will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Hawaii Franchise Investment Law are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 

5. With respect to franchises governed by Hawaii law and based upon the franchisor's 
financial condition: initial franchise fees will be deferred until the franchisor has satisfied it's pre-opening 
obligations to the franchisee and the franchisee has commenced business operations. In addition, all 
development fees and initial payments by area developers shall be deferred until the first franchise under 
the development agreement opens. 

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Hawaii 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as Franchise Agreement was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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ILLINOIS ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Illinois law governs the agreements between the parties to this franchise. 

2. Section 4 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act states that any provision in a Franchise 
Agreement that designates jurisdiction and venue in a forum outside of the State of Illinois is void. 
However, a Franchise Agreement may provide for arbitration to take place outside of Illinois. 

3. Franchisees rights upon termination and non-renewal are set forth in sections 19 and 20 
of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act. 

4. Section 41 of the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act provides that any condition, stipulation, 
or provision purporting to bind any person acquiring any franchise to waive compliance with the Illinois 
Franchise Disclosure Act or any other law of Illinois is void. 

5. The Illinois attorney General's Office has imposed the following due to the Franchisor's 
financial condition: initial franchise (and Development) Fees will be deferred until the franchisor has 
satisfied its pre-opening obligations to the franchisee and the franchisee has commenced business 
operations (Section 200.508 of the Rules). 

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaim-ing 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Illinois 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as Franchise Agreement was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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INDIANA ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Articles 4 and 11.4 each contain a provision requiring a general release as a condition of 
renewal and transfer of the Regional Developer Business. Such provision is inapplicable under the Indiana 
Deceptive Franchise Practices Law, IC 23-2-2.7 § 1(5). 

2. Under Article 15.2, you will not be required to indemnify us for any liability imposed on 
us as a result of your reliance on or use of procedures or products which were required by us, if such 
procedures were utilized by you in the manner required by us. 

3. Article 14.2 is amended to provide that arbitration between you and us will be conducted 
at a mutually agreed-on location. 

4. Article 15.7 is amended to provide that in the event of a conflict of law, the Indiana 
Franchise Disclosure Law, I.C. 23-2-2.5, and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Law, I.C. 23-2-2.7, 
will prevail. 

5. Nothing in the Agreement will abrogate or reduce any rights you have under Indiana law. 

6. Each provision of this Addendum will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of the Indiana Franchise Disclosure Law, Indiana Code §§ 
23-2-2.5-1 to 23-2-2.5-51, and the Indiana Deceptive Franchise Practices Act, Indiana Code §§ 23-2-2.7-1 
to 23-2-2.7-10, are met independently without reference to this Addendum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Indiana 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as Franchise Agreement was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   

  



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD 
Exhibit B - Regional Developer Agreement  39 

MARYLAND ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

Notwithstanding anything to the contrary set forth in the Agreement, the following provisions will 
supersede and apply to all franchises offered and sold in the State of Maryland: 

1. The provision in Franchise Agreement which provides for termination upon bankruptcy 
of Franchisee may not be enforceable under federal bankruptcy law (11 U.S.C. Section 101 et seq.). 

2. The general release required as a condition of renewal, sale, and/or assignment/transfer 
shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

3. A franchisee may bring an action in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

4. Any limitation on the period of time litigation and/or arbitration claims may be brought 
shall not act to reduce the 3-year statute of limitations afforded a franchisee for bringing a claim arising 
under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. Any claims arising under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the Regional 
Developer Business. 

5. The acknowledgements and representations of Franchisee made in the Regional 
Developer agreement which disclaim the occurrence and/or acknowledge the non-occurrence of acts that 
would constitute a violation of your Redline Business Law are not intended to nor shall they act to release, 
estoppel or waive any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

6. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in 
connection with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any 
claims under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the 
franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the 
franchise. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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MINNESOTA ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Article 9 is amended to add the following: 

“We will protect your right to use the Marks and/or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising 
out of any claim, suit or demand regarding the use of the Marks.” 

2. Articles 4 and 11.4 each contain a provision requiring a general release as a condition of 
renewal and transfer of the Regional Developer Business. Such release will exclude claims arising under 
the Minnesota Franchise Law. 

3. Article 13 is amended to add the following: 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C. 14, 
Subds., 3, 4 and 5, which require, except in certain specified cases, that a franchisee be given 90 days’ 
notice of termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days’ notice for nonrenewal of your Franchise 
Agreement. 

4. Article 15.10 is amended as follows: 

Pursuant to Minn. Stat. § 80C.17, Subd. 5, the parties agree that no civil action pertaining to a violation of 
a franchise rule or statute can be commenced more than three years after the cause of action accrues. 

5. Articles 15.8, and 15.9 are each amended to add the following: 

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.2 1 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation or arbitration to 
be conducted outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in the Disclosure Document or Franchise Agreement 
can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights 
to any procedure, forum or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. Under this statute and 
rule, franchisor cannot require you to consent to injunctive relief; however, franchisor may seek injunctive 
relief from the Court. A court will determine if a bond is required. 

6. Article 15.9 is amended to add the following: 

Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J prohibits us from requiring you to waive your rights to a jury trial or waive 
your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction, or consenting 
to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. 

7. Each provision of this Agreement will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such 
provision, that the jurisdictional requirements of Minnesota law or the Rules and Regulations promulgated 
thereunder by the Minnesota Commissioner of Commerce are met independently without reference to this 
Addendum to the Agreement. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Minnesota 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same day as the Regional Developer Agreement was 
executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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NEW YORK ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Article 11.1 is amended to add the following: 

However, we will not make any such transfer or assignment except to a person who, in our good faith 
judgment, is willing and able to assume our obligations under this Agreement, and all rights enjoyed by 
you and any causes of action arising in its favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business 
Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will remain in force, it being the intent 
of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be 
satisfied. 

2. Article 15.7 is amended to add the following: 

However, all rights enjoyed by you and any causes of action arising in its favor from the provisions of 
Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York and the regulations issued thereunder will 
remain in force, it being the intent of this proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law 
Sections 687.4 and 687.5 be satisfied. 

3. Article 15.2 is amended to add the following: 

However, you will not be required to hold harmless or indemnify us for any claim arising out of a breach 
of this Agreement by us or any other civil wrong of us. 

4. Each provision of this Addendum will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of the General Business Law of the State of New York are met 
independently without reference to this Addendum. 

5. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under 
any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this New 
York Addendum to the Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as the Regional Developer 
Agreement was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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NORTH DAKOTA ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Articles 4 and 11.4 each contain a provision requiring a general release as a condition of renewal 
or transfer of the Regional Developer Business. Such release is subject to and will exclude claims arising 
under the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. 

2. Article 15.7 and 15.8 will be amended to state that litigation involving a franchise purchased in 
North Dakota must be held in a location mutually agreed or if the parties cannot agree on a location, at a 
location to be determined by the arbitrator. 

3. Article 15.4 is amended to add that covenants not to compete on termination or expiration of a 
Regional Developer Agreement are generally not enforceable in the State of North Dakota except in limited 
circumstances provided by North Dakota law. 

4. Article 15.7 will be amended to add that any claim or right arising under the North Dakota Franchise 
Investment Law may be brought in the appropriate state or federal court in North Dakota, subject to the 
arbitration provision of the Agreement. 

5. Article 15.8 will be amended to state that, in the event of a conflict of law, to the extent required 
by the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, North Dakota law will prevail. 

6. Article 15.9 requires Franchisee to waive a trial by jury, as well as exemplary and punitive damages. 
These requirements are not enforceable in North Dakota pursuant to Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota 
Franchise Investment Law and are therefore not part of the Regional Developer Agreement. 

7. Article 15.10 requirement that Regional Developer consent to a limitation of claims period of one 
year is not consistent with North Dakota law. The limitation of claims period under the Regional Developer 
Agreement shall therefore be governed by North Dakota law. 

8. Each provision of this Addendum will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law, N.D. Cent. Code §§ 
51-19-01 through 51-19-17, are met independently without reference to this Addendum.  

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this North Dakota 
Addendum to the Regional Developer Agreement on the same day as the Regional Developer Agreement 
was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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RHODE ISLAND ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

1. Articles 4 and 11.4 each contain a provision requiring a general release as a condition of renewal 
and transfer of the franchise. Such release will exclude claims arising under the Rhode Island Franchise 
Investment Act. 

2. This Agreement requires that it be governed by Arizona law. To the extent that such law conflicts 
with Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, it is void under Sec. 19-28.1-14. 

3. Article 15.8 of the Agreement will each be amended by the addition of the following, which will 
be considered an integral part of this Agreement: 

§ 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act provides that "A provision in a Regional 
Developer Agreement restricting jurisdiction or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the 
application of the laws of another state is void with respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this 
Act." 

4. Each provision of this Addendum will be effective only to the extent, with respect to such provision, 
that the jurisdictional requirements of Rhode Island Franchise Investment Act, §§ 19- 281.1 through 19-
28.1-34, are met independently without reference to this Addendum. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Rhode Island 
Addendum to the Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as the Regional Developer Agreement 
was executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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VIRGINIA ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchise to cancel 
a franchise without reasonable cause. If any grounds for default or termination stated in the Regional 
Developer Agreement does not constitute “reasonable cause,” as that term may be defined in the Virginia 
Retail Franchising Act or the laws of Virginia, that provision may not be enforceable. 

Pursuant to Section 13.1-564 of the Virginia Retail Franchising Act, it is unlawful for a franchise to use 
undue influence to induce a franchisee to surrender any rights given to him under the franchise. If any 
provision of the Regional Developer Agreement involved the use of undue influence by the Franchisor to 
induce Franchisee to surrender any rights given to him under the franchise, that provision may not be 
enforceable. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Virginia 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as the Regional Developer Agreement was 
executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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WASHINGTON ADDENDUM TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT 

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail. 

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including 
the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court decisions which may 
supersede the franchise agreement in your relationship with the franchisor including the areas of termination 
and renewal of your franchise. 

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation 
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration 
or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In 
addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or 
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington. 

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a 
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent 
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for 
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be 
enforceable. 

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual 
costs in effecting a transfer. 

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, 
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, 
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In 
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a 
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking 
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for 
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with 
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington. 

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) 
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any 
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or 
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

The undersigned does hereby acknowledge receipt of this addendum. 
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IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have duly executed, sealed, and delivered this Washington 
Addendum to Regional Developer Agreement on the same date as the Regional Developer Agreement was 
executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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EXHIBIT C 
TABLE OF CONTENTS OF MANUAL 

REGIONAL DEVELOPER OPERATIONS MANUAL  

Table of Contents 

Subject Pages (approx.) 

Regional Developer Operations         131 pages  

Development           44 pages  

Total Pages: Approximately 175 
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Independent Auditors' Report 

To the Members of 
RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC 

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Opinion 

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC (the 
Company), which comprise the balance sheets as of December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 and the related 
statements of operations and members' deficit, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the related 
notes to the financial statements. 

In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial 
position of the Company as of December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, and the results of its operations and its 
cash flows for the years then ended in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America. 

Basis for Opinion 

We conducted our audits in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of 
America (GAAS). Our responsibilities under those standards are further described in the Auditors' 
Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements section of our report. We are required to be 
independent of the Company and to meet our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with the relevant 
ethical requirements relating to our audits. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient 
and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion. 

Responsibilities of Management for the Financial Statements 

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in accordance 
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, and for the design, 
implementation and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation of 
financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error. 

In preparing the financial statements, management is required to evaluate whether there are conditions or 
events, considered in the aggregate, that raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a 
going concern within one year after the date that the financial statements are available to be issued. 
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Auditors' Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements 

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are free 
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditors' report that includes our 
opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance but is not absolute assurance and therefore is not 
a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with GAAS will always detect a material misstatement 
when it exists. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one 
resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations or the 
override of internal control. Misstatements are considered material if there is a substantial likelihood that, 
individually or in the aggregate, they would influence the judgment made by a reasonable user based on the 
financial statements. 

In performing an audit in accordance with GAAS, we: 

 Exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit.

 Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to
fraud or error, and design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks. Such procedures
include examining, on a test basis, evidence regarding the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements.

 Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures
that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the
effectiveness of the Company's internal control. Accordingly, no such opinion is expressed.

 Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of significant
accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluate the overall presentation of the
financial statements.

 Conclude whether, in our judgment, there are conditions or events, considered in the aggregate, that
raise substantial doubt about the Company's ability to continue as a going concern for a reasonable
period of time.

We are required to communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the 
planned scope and timing of the audit, significant audit findings, and certain internal control related matters 
that we identified during the audit. 

Tempe, Arizona 
June 4, 2024 



2023 2022 2021

Assets

Current Assets
Cash 112,540$           41,637$             272,066$           
Accounts receivable 106,791             118,379             99,928 
Prepaid expenses 2,272 10,652 9,224 
Deferred franchise costs, current portion 236,982             216,226             121,146             
Current portion of note receivable 64,576 - -

Total current assets 523,161             386,894             502,364             

Property and Equipment, Net
Leasehold improvements 99,225 99,225 99,225 
Software 46,405 46,405 42,500 
Furniture and equipment 32,167 32,167 40,939 

177,797             177,797             182,664             

Accumulated Depreciation and Amortization (121,896)           (96,826)             (71,098)             

Total property and equipment, net 55,901 80,971 111,566             

Operating Lease Right-of-Use Asset 651,896             336,564             -

Other Assets
Lease deposit 17,184 8,402 8,402 
Note receivable, net of current portion 200,291             - -
Deferred franchise costs, net of current portion 1,251,965          1,159,354          985,715             

Total other assets 1,469,440          1,167,756          994,117             

Total assets 2,700,398$        1,972,185$        1,608,047$        

Liabilities and Members' Deficit

Current Liabilities
Accounts payable 188,816$           227,857$           272,806$           
Accrued expenses 64,280 70,720 105,806             
Deferred franchise fees, current portion 738,887             728,556             470,654             
Deferred rent, current portion - - 6,386 
Due to related parties, current portion 364,983             873,114             696,490             
Settlement liabilities 122,750             206,229             215,375             
Current portion of operating lease liability 211,738             91,341 -

Total current liabilities 1,691,454          2,197,817          1,767,517          

Long-Term Liabilities
Deferred franchise fees, net of current portion 3,816,347          3,778,525          3,456,118          
Deferred rent, net of current portion - - 54,246 
Due to related parties, net of current portion 1,081,336          92,149 143,243             
Operating lease liability, net of current portion 490,537             298,847             -

Total long-term liabilities 5,388,220          4,169,521          3,653,607          

Total liabilities 7,079,674          6,367,338          5,421,124          

Members' Deficit (4,379,276)        (4,395,153)        (3,813,077)        

Total liabilities and members' deficit 2,700,398$        1,972,185$        1,608,047$        

RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC
Balance Sheets
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022 2021

Revenues
Regional developer fees 340,875$           292,001$           255,021$           
Franchise fees 564,687             246,025             151,325             
Royalty fees 1,014,754          872,313             692,350             
Technology fees 420,505             349,985             219,725             
Advertising fund fees 153,593             125,532             105,030             
Other revenues 273,156             250,192             42,410 

Total revenues 2,767,570          2,136,048          1,465,861          

Cost of Revenues
Regional developer royalties 432,401             331,328             248,445             
Regional developer commissions 279,213             149,630             73,284 
Technology cost of revenues 415,646             411,868             275,647             
Other cost of revenues 13,317 - 29,561 

Total cost of revenues 1,140,577          892,826             626,937             

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses
Salaries and benefits 979,811             977,745             794,145             
Selling and marketing expenses 343,962             261,462             203,373             
Depreciation and amortization 25,070 34,502 35,460 
Other general and administrative expenses 491,629             414,893             389,388             

Total selling, general and
administrative expenses 1,840,472          1,688,602          1,422,366          

Other Income (Expense)
Interest expense (15,680)             (12,697)             (14,945)             
Forgiveness of PPP loan - - 205,445             
Employee Retention Credit 220,383             - - 
Other income 24,653 6,001 - 
Other expense - (130,000) (161,750)           

Total other income (expense), net 229,356             (136,696)           28,750 

Net income (loss) 15,877 (582,076)           (554,692)           

Members' Deficit, Beginning (4,395,153)        (3,813,077)        (3,158,385)        

Member distributions - - (100,000)           

Members' Deficit, Ending (4,379,276)$      (4,395,153)$      (3,813,077)$      

RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC
Statements of Operations and Members' Deficit
Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2020

See notes to financial statements
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2023 2022 2021

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Net income (loss) 15,877$             (582,076)$         (554,692)$         
Adjustment to reconcile net income (loss) to

net cash (used in) provided by operating
activities:

Bad debt provision 4,703 21,900 - 
Depreciation and amortization 25,070 34,502 35,460 
Amortization of right-of-use asset 186,479             81,215 - 
Forgiveness of PPP loan - - (205,445)           
(Increase) decrease in:

Accounts receivable 6,885 (40,351)             27,130 
Deferred franchise costs (113,367)           (268,719)           (210,737)           
Prepaid expenses 8,380 (1,428) (6,565) 
Lease deposit (8,782) - - 

Increase (decrease) in:
Accounts payable (39,041)             (19,280)             225,910             
Accrued expenses (6,440) (60,755)             69,408 
Deferred franchise fees 48,153 580,309             491,321             
Settlement liabilities (83,479)             (9,146) 191,000             
Deferred rent - - (3,681) 
Operating lease liability (189,724)           (88,223)             - 

Net cash (used in) provided by 
operating activities (145,286)           (352,052)           59,109 

Cash Flows From Investing Activities
Issuance of note receivable (280,479)           - - 
Principal payments on note receivable 15,612 - - 
Purchases of property and equipment - (3,907) - 

Net cash (used in) provided by 
investing activities (264,867)           (3,907) - 

Cash Flows From Financing Activities
Member distributions - - (100,000)           
Net advances from related parties 481,056             125,530             54,945 

Net cash provided by (used in)
financing activities 481,056             125,530             (45,055)             

Net increase (decrease) in cash 70,903 (230,429)           14,054 

Cash, Beginning 41,637 272,066             258,012             

Cash, Ending 112,540$           41,637$             272,066$           

RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC
Statements of Cash Flows
Years Ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2020

See notes to financial statements
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1. Nature of Operations and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies Financial

Nature of Operations

RedLine Athletics Franchising, LLC (the Company) was organized as an Arizona limited liability 
company on April 5, 2013, for the purpose of developing, managing, operating, and selling athletic 
training franchises throughout the United States. The franchising of such locations is regulated by the 
Federal Trade Commission and various state authorities.  

The following table summarizes the number of training centers in operation under franchise 
agreements and as company-owned: 

2023 2022 2021 

Franchised training centers: 
Training centers open at beginning of 

year  46 39 31
Training centers opened during the year  13 9 10
Training centers closed during the year  (11) (2) (2)

Training centers as of the end of 
the year 48 46 39

Training centers sold but not yet 
operational  50 54 43

Cash and Cash Equivalents 

For purposes of the statements of cash flows, the Company considers all highly liquid investments 
purchased with an original maturity of three months or less at date of acquisition to be cash 
equivalents. 

Accounts Receivable 

Accounts receivable represent amounts due from franchisees for franchise fees, royalty fees and 
advertising fund fees. Generally, royalty fees and advertising fund fees are drafted from the 
franchisee's bank account the month subsequent to when they are earned. The Company recognizes 
an allowance for credit losses for trade and other receivables to present the net amount expected to 
be collected as of the balance sheet date. Such allowance is based on the credit losses expected to 
arise over the life of the asset which includes consideration of past events and historical loss 
experience, current events and also future events based on our expectation as of the balance sheet 
date. Receivables are written off when the Company determined that such receivables are deemed 
uncollectible. The Company pools its receivables based on similar risk characteristics in estimating its 
expected credit losses. In situations where a receivable does not have the same risk characteristics 
with other receivables, the Company measures those receivables individually. The Company also 
continuously evaluates such pooling decisions and adjusts as needed from period to period as risk 
characteristics change.  
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The Company utilizes the loss rate method in determining its lifetime expected credit losses on its 
receivables. This method is used for calculating an estimate of losses based primarily on the 
Company's historical loss experience. In determining its loss rates, the Company evaluates 
information related to its historical losses, adjusted for current conditions and further adjusted for the 
period of time that can be reasonably forecasted. Qualitative and quantitative adjustments related to 
current conditions and the reasonable and supportable forecast period consider all of the following: 
past due receivables, the customer creditworthiness, effect of other external forces such as 
competition, and legal and regulatory requirements on the level of estimated credit losses in the 
existing receivables. For receivables that are not expected to be collected within the normal business 
cycle, the Company considers current and forecasted direction of the economic and business 
environment. Such forecasted information includes: GDP growth, unemployment rates and interest 
rates amongst others. The Company determined that an allowance for credit losses was not 
necessary as of December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021.  

Deferred Franchise Costs 

The Company incurs commissions in connection with the sale of regional developer regions and 
franchise agreements. These commissions are deferred and recognized in cost of revenues when the 
related revenue for the sale of the regional developer region or franchise agreement is recognized. 

Property and Equipment 

Property and equipment is recorded at cost. The Company depreciates its property and equipment on 
the straight-line method using estimated useful lives. Leasehold improvements are amortized using 
the straight-line method over the lesser of the terms of the lease or the estimated lives of the 
improvements. Expenditures for maintenance and repairs that do not materially prolong the normal 
useful life of an asset are charged to expense as incurred. Additions and betterments that 
substantially extend the useful life of an asset are capitalized. Upon sale or other disposition of 
assets, the cost and related accumulated depreciation are removed from their respective accounts 
and any gain or loss is included in other income (expense). 

Depreciation and amortization expense was $25,070, $34,502 and $35,460 for the years ended 
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Revenue Recognition 

The Company generates revenues through regional developer fees, initial franchise fees, royalty 
fees, technology fees, advertising fund fees, transfer fees and training program revenue. 

Regional Developer Fees 

The Company has established a regional developer program to bring on independent contractors 
to assist in developing a specified geographical region or unit. Regional developers pay a fee per 
training center to obtain the rights to develop the training center within a specified geographical 
region and generally receive 40% - 50% of all franchise fees collected and 3% of all collections 
made by the franchisees within their region. The regional developer agreement requires the 
Company to provide various services throughout the term of the agreement including training and 
ongoing operational support. These services are highly interrelated with the development of the 
region and the resulting franchise licenses sold by the regional developer and as such are 
considered to represent a single performance obligation. This regional developer fee is due upon 
signing of a regional developer agreement and is recognized as revenue on a straight-line basis 
over the term of the agreement, commencing upon the execution of the agreement.  
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Regional developer agreements specify the total number of franchises that must be developed by 
the regional developer within a certain amount of time. Failure to comply with this minimum 
development obligation could result in the termination of the regional developer agreement. Upon 
termination of an agreement, the Company recognizes as revenue the remaining unamortized 
regional developer fee. No regional developers were terminated during 2023, 2022 or 2021.  

Initial Franchise Fees 

The Company generally requires the entire initial franchise fee to be paid upon execution of the 
franchise agreement, which has an initial term of ten years from the date of the training center 
opening. The franchise agreement requires the Company to provide various services throughout 
the term of the agreement including training and ongoing operational support. These services are 
highly interrelated with the franchise license and as such are considered to represent a single 
performance obligation. Recognition of franchise fees is deferred until the training center opening 
and is then recognized over the term of the franchise agreement. 

Royalty Fees 

The Company collects royalty fees, as stipulated in the franchise agreement, equal to 7% of 
gross sales. Royalties are sales-based, relate to the Company's performance obligation under the 
franchise agreement, and are recognized as franchisee level sales occur. 

Technology Fees 

The Company collects a monthly technology fee for use of the Company's proprietary software, 
computer support and internet services support. Technology fees are recognized as revenue 
when earned over the term of the respective franchise agreement. 

Advertising Fund Fees 

Advertising fund fees are collected, as stipulated in the franchise agreement, equal to 1% of 
gross sales. The advertising fund fees support research, development and support costs and are 
used to develop and promote brand name for marketing purposes. Advertising fund fees are 
sales-based, relate to the Company's performance obligation under the franchise agreement, and 
are recognized as revenue as franchisee level sales occur. Any amounts collected in excess of 
marketing expenditures are included in restricted cash on the balance sheets of the Company.  

Transfer Fees 

Transfer fees are paid as consideration for the same rights and services as the initial franchise 
fee and occur when a former franchise transfers ownership of their location to a new franchisee. 
Transfer fees are recognized as revenue over the remaining life of the transferred franchise 
agreement. Transfer fees recognized as revenue were approximately $31,100, $30,600 and 
$22,300 for the years ending December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively, and are included 
in franchise fees on the accompanying statements of operations and members' deficit. 

Advertising 

Advertising costs are charged to expense as incurred. Advertising expenses were $343,962, 
$261,462 and $212,229 for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 
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Income Taxes 

The Company has elected to be treated as a pass-through entity for income tax purposes and, as 
such, will not be subject to income taxes. Rather, all items of taxable income, deductions and tax 
credits will be passed through to and reported by its members on their respective income tax returns. 
The Company's tax status as a pass-through entity is based on its legal status as a limited liability 
company. Accordingly, the Company is not required to take any tax positions in order to qualify as a 
pass-through entity. The Company is required to file and does file tax returns with the Internal 
Revenue Service and other taxing authorities. Accordingly, these financial statements do not reflect a 
provision for income taxes and the Company has no other tax positions which must be considered for 
disclosure.  

Use of Estimates 

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in 
the United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumptions that affect 
the amounts reported in the financial statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ 
from those estimates. 

Adoption of New Accounting Standard  

Effective January 1, 2022, the Company adopted Financial Accounting Standards Board (FASB) 
Accounting Standards Update (ASU) No. 2016-02, Lease (Topic 842), and all related amendments 
using the modified retrospective approach. The Company's 2021 financial statements continue to be 
accounted for under the FASB's Topic 840 and have not been adjusted.  

ASU No. 2016-02 requires lessees to recognize the assets and liabilities that arise from leases on the 
balance sheets. At lease inception, leases are classified as either finance leases or operating leases 
with the associated right-of-use asset and lease liability measured at the net present value of future 
lease payments. Operating lease right-of-use assets are expensed on a straight-line basis as lease 
expense over the noncancelable lease term. At the date of adoption, the Company recorded an 
operating lease right-of-use asset and lease liability of $417,779 and $477,634, respectively.  

The new standard provides for several optional practical expedients. Upon transition to Topic 842,  
the Company elected the package of practical expedients permitted under the transition guidance 
which does not require the Company to reassess prior conclusions regarding whether contracts are 
or contain a lease, lease classification and initial direct lease costs.  

The new standard also provides for several accounting policy elections. The Company has elected 
the following accounting policies: 

 When the rate implicit in the lease is not determinable, rather than use the Company's
incremental borrowing rate, the Company elected to use a risk-free discount rate for the initial
and subsequent measurement of lease liabilities for all asset classes.

 The Company elected not to apply the recognition requirements to leases with a original term
of 12 months or less, for which the Company is not likely to exercise a renewal option or
purchase the asset at the end of the lease; rather, short term leases will continue to be
recorded on a straight-line basis over the lease term.

Additional required disclosures for Topic 842 are contained in Note 6. 
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In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments—Credit Losses (Topic 326). 
The ASU introduces a new credit loss methodology, Current Expected Credit Losses (CECL), which 
requires earlier recognition of credit losses, while also providing additional transparency about credit 
risk. Since its original issuance in 2016, the FASB has issued several updates to the original ASU. 
The CECL methodology utilizes a lifetime "expected credit loss" measurement objective for the 
recognition of credit losses at the time the financial asset is originated or acquired. The expected 
credit losses are adjusted each period for changes in expected lifetime credit losses. The 
methodology replaces the multiple existing impairment methods in current GAAP, which generally 
require that a loss be incurred before it is recognized. On January 1, 2023, the Company adopted the 
ASU using the modified-retrospective approach. There was no adjustment to members' deficit upon 
adoption.  

Date of Management's Review 

In preparing these financial statements, the Company has evaluated events and transactions for 
potential recognition or disclosure through June 4, 2024, the date the financial statements were 
available to be issued. 

2. Related-Party Transactions

Due to Related Parties

During September 2018, the Company entered into a note agreement with a member to consolidate 
prior member loans in the amount of $323,313. This note requires monthly payments of $5,000, 
including principal and interest of 7.5%. The note is secured by all the Company's assets and matures 
September 2025. The outstanding balance on the note as of December 31, 2022 and 2021 was 
$143,125 and $190,428, respectively. Interest expense incurred on the consolidated note for the 
years ended December 31, 2022 and 2021 was approximately $13,000 and $16,200, respectively. 

During 2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company borrowed an additional $356,000, $172,833 and 
$368,000, respectively, from this member, which have no specific repayment terms and bear no 
interest. During 2022, the Company did not make payments on these borrowings. As of 
December 31, 2022 and 2021, the outstanding balance on the additional borrowings was $822,138 
and $649,305, respectively. These amounts are reflected as current liabilities on the accompanying 
balance sheets.  

During 2019, the Company entered into a loan agreement with a related party owned by a member of 
the Company in the amount of $100,000 that accrued interest at 3%, matured in 2024, and required 
no payments, including interest, until maturity. During 2020, the Company borrowed an additional 
$31,000 from this related party which had no specific repayment terms and bore no interest. As of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the combined outstanding balance on the note and additional 
borrowings was $131,000 and $100,000, respectively. During 2021, the Company paid in full the total 
borrowings including interest. 

During 2019, the Company entered into a loan agreement in the amount of $100,000 with a related 
party owned by an immediate family member of a member of the Company. The loan accrued interest 
at 3%, matured in 2024, and required no payments, including interest, until maturity. As of 
December 31, 2020 and 2019, the outstanding balance on the note was $100,000. During 2021,  
the Company paid in full the total borrowings including interest. 

During January 2023, the Company entered into a note agreement with a related party owned by a 
member of the Company in the amount of $300,000. The note requires monthly payments of $1,879, 
including principal and interest of 6.5%. The note is secured by all of the Company's assets and 
matures in February 2027. 
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During 2023, the Company entered into a note agreement with a member to consolidate all prior 
member loans in the amount of $1,602,029. At consolidation, approximately $300,000 was interest 
bearing at 6.50%, and the remaining balance was noninterest bearing. This note requires varying 
monthly payments, including principal and interest. The note is secured by all the Company's assets 
and matures in October 2027. The outstanding balance on the note as of December 31, 2023 was 
$1,446,319 of which $1,330,340 is noninterest bearings. 

Principal maturities of the related party notes are as follows: 

Years ending December 31: 
2024  $ 364,983 
2025  379,324 
2026  393,324 
2027  308,688 

Total  $ 1,446,319 

Consulting Fees 

An executive of one of the members of the Company also owns a consulting firm that provided 
strategic advisory services to the Company. The Company entered into a consulting agreement with 
the firm and incurred $28,000 of consulting expenses during 2021 under the agreement. The 
consulting agreement was terminated during 2021. 

3. Concentrations of Credit Risk

Financial instruments that subject the Company to potential concentrations of credit risk consist
principally of cash. The Company maintains its cash in bank accounts, which at times may exceed
federally insured limits. The Company has not experienced any losses in such accounts and believes it is
not exposed to any significant credit risk.

4. Revenue Recognition

Disaggregation of Revenue

The Company believes that the captions contained on the statements of operations and members' 
deficit appropriately reflect the disaggregation of its revenue by major type for the years ended 
December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021. 

Contract Balances 

Contract liabilities consist of deferred initial franchise fees, regional developer fees and transfer fees. 
These are reported as deferred franchise fees on the balance sheets. These fees are recognized as 
revenue over the term of the respective agreement or the remaining life of the transferred franchise 
agreement as further described in Note 1. As these fees are generally received in cash at or near the 
beginning of the agreement, the cash received is initially recorded as a contract liability until 
recognized as revenue over time. 
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Beginning of the year contract liabilities consisted of the following: 

2023 2022 2021 

Deferred franchise fees $ 4,507,081 $ 3,561,924 $ 3,459,826 

Contract assets consist of commissions paid in connection with the sale of regional developer 
agreements and franchise agreements, and the transfer of such agreements. These are reported as 
deferred franchise costs on the balance sheets. These costs are recognized as expense when the 
respective revenue associated with contract liabilities is recognized. As these costs are generally paid 
in cash at the beginning of the respective agreement, the cash paid is initially recorded as a contract 
asset until recognized as expense over time. 

Contract balances also consist of accounts receivable which represent amounts due from franchisees 
for franchise fees, royalty fees and advertising fund fees.  

Beginning of the year contract assets and account receivable consisted of the following: 

2023  2022 2021 

Contract assets: 
Deferred franchise costs $ 1,375,580 $ 1,106,861 $ 896,124 

Accounts receivable $ 118,379 $ 99,928 $ 127,058 

5. Paycheck Protection Program (PPP) Loan

In May 2020, the Company received $205,445 in loan proceeds under the CARES Act Paycheck
Protection Program (the Program) administered by the U.S. Small Business Administration (SBA).
The loan can be forgiven in full if it is used to fund payroll, rent, utilities and other costs as described
under the Program and subject to approval by the originating bank and SBA. The loan bore interest at
a rate of 1.00% per year. Payments were deferred until the SBA determines the amount to be forgiven.
In August 2021, the Company received notice from the SBA that the loan and related interest were
eligible for and granted full forgiveness. As a result, the loan was written off and reflected in other
income for the year ended December 31, 2021.

6. Leasing Activities

Beginning in March 2020, the Company leased its corporate headquarters from a related party. The lease
agreement called for escalating monthly payments ranging from $7,300 to $8,000 through February 2027.
In addition, the Company received $42,500 in tenant improvement allowances. The Company was also
required to pay its proportionate share of operating leases for the property incurred by the landlord. The
lease did not contain any early renewal or termination options.

In February 2023, the Company assumed the master lease for its corporate headquarters from the
related party. The lease agreement calls for escalating monthly payments ranging from $18,900 to
$20,700 through January 2027. The Company is also required to pay its proportionate share of operating
leases for the property incurred by the landlord. The lease does not contain any early renewal or
termination options.
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Right-of-use assets represent the Company's right to use an underlying asset for the lease term, while 
lease liabilities represent the Company's obligation to make lease payments arising from the lease. 
Right-of-use assets and lease liabilities are recognized at the commencement date of a lease based on 
the net present value of lease payments over the lease term. Any lease incentives received in the form of 
tenant improvement allowances reduce the recognized right-of-use assets. 

In determining the discount rate used to measure the right-of-use assets and lease liabilities, the 
Company uses the rate implicit in the lease, or if not readily available, the Company uses a risk-free rate 
based on U.S. Treasury note or bond rates for a similar term. 

Right-of-use assets are assessed for impairment in accordance with the Company's long-lived asset 
policy. The Company reassesses lease classification and remeasures right-of-use assets and lease 
liabilities when a lease is modified and that modification is not accounted for as a separate new lease or 
upon certain other events that require reassessment in accordance with Topic 842. 

The following table summarizes the operating lease right-of-use asset and operating lease liability as of 
December 31: 

2023 2022 

Operating lease right-of-use assets $ 651,896   $ 336,564 

Operating lease liabilities: 
Current  $ 211,738 91,341  
Long-term  490,537 298,847  

Total operating lease liabilities  $ 702,275  $ 390,188 

Below is a summary of expenses incurred pertaining to leases during the years ended December 31: 

2023  2022 

Operating lease expense $ 212,746  $ 86,618 

The following table summarizes the weighted average remaining lease term and discount rate as of 
December 31: 

2023 2022 

Weighted average remaining lease term (in years):
Operating leases 3.10 4.10 

Weighted average discount rate: 
Operating leases 3.62% 1.24% 
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The table below summarizes the Company's scheduled future minimum lease payments for years ending 
after December 31, 2023: 

Years ending December 31: 
2024  $ 233,050 
2025  240,362 
2026  247,604 
2027  20,684 

Total lease payments   741,700 

Less present value discount  (39,425) 

Total lease liabilities  702,275 

Less current portion  (211,738) 

Long-term lease liabilities $ 490,537 

The following table includes supplemental cash flow and noncash information related to the leases for the 
years ended December 31: 

2023 2022 

Cash paid for amounts included in the measurement of lease 
liabilities:

Operating cash flows from operating leases $ 215,991  $ 92,849 

Operating lease right-of-use assets obtained in exchange 
for lease liabilities   501,811 - 

Accounts payable due to the related party under the Company's operating lease was approximately 
$11,900 and $9,600 at December 31, 2022 and 2021, respectively. 

Prior to 2022, any difference between recorded lease expense, recognized on a straight-line basis 
from the inception of the lease, and the amounts actually paid were reflected as deferred rent in the 
accompanying balance sheets. In addition, tenant improvement allowances received were included in 
deferred rent and amortized as a reduction of lease expense over the term of the lease. With the adoption 
of Topic 842, previously recognized deferred rent reduced the right-of-use asset recognized at the 
adoption date.  

During 2023, 2022 and 2021, the Company subleased a portion of their corporate headquarters to a 
related party under a lease on a month-to-month basis. Total rental income under the sublease was 
approximately $198,000, $46,000 and $21,000 for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, 
respectively. The rental income offsets the above noted rental expense which is included in other general 
and administrative expenses on the accompanying statement of operations and members' deficit. 

7. Note Receivable

In February 2023, the Company entered into a note receivable agreement in the amount of $280,479 with
a related party for the purpose of the related party purchasing an existing franchise location in Scottsdale,
Arizona. The note bears interest at 6.5%, matures in January 2027, and is repayable in escalating
monthly payments that range from $1,773 to $9,000. The loan is secured by substantially all assets of the
borrower. Funding for the loan by the Company was provided from additional borrowings from the
Company's member described in Note 2. Interest income under the note receivable agreement was
approximately $13,700 for the year ended December 31, 2023.
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8. Commitments and Contingencies 

Settlement Liabilities 

During 2020 and 2021, the Company entered into settlement agreements with five regional 
developers which were terminated in 2020. The Company agreed to refund a portion of the 
developers' regional developer fees up to a specified amount. Per the settlements, the refunds will be 
paid through future franchise and region sales in the developers' respective areas. During the years 
ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, payments of $26,812, $65,813 and $19,500, 
respectively, were refunded as part of the settlements. As of December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021, the 
outstanding balance of the settlement agreements was $122,750, $149,562 and $215,375, 
respectively. As a result of entering into the settlement agreements during 2021 for certain regional 
developers that were terminated in 2020, the Company recognized a settlement expense of 
$161,750, which is included in other expense on the statement of operations and members' deficit for 
the year ended December 31, 2021. 

During 2022, the Company entered into settlement agreements with four former or current employees 
of the Company, whereby the employees released their claims with respect to transaction bonuses 
they would be due upon a future change of control of the Company. In return for the release, the 
Company agreed to make one-time payments of $130,000 to the former employees, which is 
recognized as settlement expense within other expense on the statement of operations and members' 
deficit for the year ended December 31, 2022. Of the $130,000, $73,333 was paid in 2022 with the 
remainder of $56,667 paid in 2023.  

Legal Proceedings 

The Company is involved in legal disputes that may arise from time to time under the normal course 
of business. In the opinion of management, the resolution of such matters will not have a material 
adverse impact on the Company's financial position, results of operations or cash flows.  

 
9. Liquidity 

The Company has sustained recurring operating losses and negative cash flows from operations. These 
factors create an uncertainty about the Company's financial stability. These factors are attributed to the 
Company only being in existence since 2013 and the deferral of regional developer and franchise license 
revenue, which is deferred over the term of the respective agreements. The Company projects continued 
growth in 2024, including the sale of additional regional developer licenses and franchise licenses under 
existing regional developers, which will increase cash flow and revenue. In addition, with the opening of 
new franchise locations in 2023 and into 2024, the Company expects continuing royalties from its 
franchised training services to cover its operating costs.  

Part of the Company's working capital is provided by loans received from the majority member of the 
Company. The Company expects to repay these loans over the next four years based upon current cash 
flow projections. The majority member has also committed to the Company that additional financial 
support will continue for the foreseeable future as needed by the Company. 

Management believes that as a result of the expected cash flows, combined with the commitment of 
majority member, the Company has adequate resources to meet any obligations as they become due in 
the ordinary course of business for 2024 and beyond. 
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10. Members' Operating Agreement 

The Company's operating agreement defines the rights and obligations of the members. Generally, 
income and losses are allocated to all members based on their percentage interests. Percentage 
interests of each member are adjusted upon the sale, transfer, assignment or withdrawal of a member's 
interest. The members are not required to make additional capital contributions to the Company beyond 
the initial commitment contributions unless additional contributions are needed as determined by a 
majority of the members. No manager, officer or member shall be personally liable for the debts, 
obligations or liabilities of the Company. The Company will continue in existence in perpetuity until a 
majority of the members consent to the dissolution of the Company. 

 
11. Employee Retention Credit (ERC) 

The Employee Retention Credit (ERC), which was included as part of the Coronavirus Aid, Relief and 
Economic Security (CARES) Act and amended by the Consolidated Appropriations Act (CAA), the 
American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA), and the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act (IIJA), incentivizes 
employers severely impacted by the COVID-19 pandemic to retain their employees when they might 
otherwise find it difficult to do so. The fully refundable tax credit is allowed against the employer's share of 
employment taxes for qualified wages paid after March 12, 2020 and before October 1, 2021. Credits in 
excess of the tax amounts paid by an employer are treated as overpayments and are also refunded to the 
employer. The ERC is calculated as a percentage of qualified wages (as defined in the CARES Act, as 
amended) paid by an eligible employer. The Company qualified for the ERC as it experienced a 
significant decline in gross receipts (for 2020, defined as a 50% decline in gross receipts when compared 
to the same calendar quarter in 2019, and for 2021, defined as a 20% decline in gross receipts when 
compared to the same quarter in 2019). In addition, the Company qualified for the ERC as its operations 
were partially suspended during the third calendar quarter of 2021 due to orders from various 
governmental authorities where they operate limiting certain of its activities due to COVID-19. The 
Company averaged less than 100 full-time employees (FTEs) during 2019, therefore, it was considered a 
small employer during 2020 and 2021. As a small employer, all of the Company's otherwise qualified 
wages were eligible for the ERC. For 2020, the ERC equaled 50% of an employee's qualified wages up to 
$10,000 per employee per calendar quarter with a maximum annual credit for each employee of $5,000. 
For 2021, the ERC equaled 70% of an employee's qualified wages up to $10,000 per employee per 
calendar quarter with a maximum annual credit of $21,000 for each employee. 

The Company applied for the ERC by amending its previously filed forms 941, and as a result, the 
Company has accounted for this government grant by way of analogy to FASB Accounting Standards 
Codification (ASC) 410, Asset Retirement and Environmental Obligations. ASC 410-30-35-8 indicates 
that a claim for recovery should be recognized only when the claim is probable of recovery as defined in 
ASC 450-20-25-1 (i.e. Contingencies). Accordingly, the Company has recorded $199,943 in ERC income, 
and $20,440 in related interest income, in the statement of operations and members' deficit as of and for 
the year ended December 31, 2023. 

 
12. Supplemental Disclosures of Cash Flow Information 

The Company had noncash financing transactions relating to the forgiveness of the PPP loan during the 
year ended December 31, 2021 of $205,445. 

Interest paid for the years ended December 31, 2023, 2022 and 2021 was approximately $25,100, 
$12,700 and $20,400, respectively. 
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These Financial Statement Have Been Prepared Without An Audit. Prospective Franchisees or Sellers of 
Franchises Should be Advised That No Independent Certified Public Accountant Has Audited These Figures 
or Expressed An Opinion With Regard to Their Content or Form.
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Balance Sheet PY Comparison
As of May 31, 2024

Total

As of May 31, 2024 As of May 31, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

ASSETS

Current Assets

Bank Accounts

1010 Bank Of America Operating - 1494 (deleted) 0.00 2,895.08 -2,895.08 -100.00 %

1011 BMO Ad Fund (7019) 24,268.60 29,352.06 -5,083.46 -17.32 %

1012 BMO Operating (7027) 230,284.14 50,745.33 179,538.81 353.80 %

1015 Bank of America Ad Fund - 1407 (deleted) 0.00 -776.10 776.10 100.00 %

1015 Stripe Clearing Account (USD) 0.82 0.82

Total Bank Accounts 254,553.56 82,216.37 172,337.19 209.61 %

Accounts Receivable

1100 Accounts Receivable 7,616.85 123,240.54 -115,623.69 -93.82 %

Total Accounts Receivable 7,616.85 123,240.54 -115,623.69 -93.82 %

Other Current Assets

1200 Undeposited Funds 50,516.65 51,498.84 -982.19 -1.91 %

1201 Shopify Undeposited Funds 0.00 0.00 0.00

1215 Prepaid Ins D&O, EPL, E&O 5,235.49 2,241.42 2,994.07 133.58 %

1220 Prepaid Other 10,540.47 600.00 9,940.47 1,656.75 %

1250 BK Performance Loan (S/T) 0.00 38,900.72 -38,900.72 -100.00 %

1290 Deferred Costs-Current 190,434.13 240,969.33 -50,535.20 -20.97 %

Total Other Current Assets 256,726.74 334,210.31 -77,483.57 -23.18 %

Total Current Assets 518,897.15 539,667.22 -20,770.07 -3.85 %

Fixed Assets

1400 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET

1410 Software - RAF 46,405.00 46,405.00 0.00 0.00 %
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Total

As of May 31, 2024 As of May 31, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

1415 Furniture and Equipment - RAF 33,247.03 32,166.54 1,080.49 3.36 %

1435 Leasehold Improvements RAF HQ 99,224.59 99,224.59 0.00 0.00 %

1520 Accumulated Depreciation -131,364.74 -108,715.83 -22,648.91 -20.83 %

Total 1400 PROPERTY AND EQUIPMENT, NET 47,511.88 69,080.30 -21,568.42 -31.22 %

Total Fixed Assets 47,511.88 69,080.30 -21,568.42 -31.22 %

Other Assets

1705 Security Deposits 43,813.62 43,813.62 0.00 0.00 %

1750 BK Performance Loan (L/T) 0.00 240,813.48 -240,813.48 -100.00 %

1800 Deferred Costs

1810 Deferred Costs - RD 235,230.96 248,884.20 -13,653.24 -5.49 %

1820 Deferred Costs - Franchise 1,106,045.45 1,130,824.04 -24,778.59 -2.19 %

1830 Deferred Costs - Transfer 90,589.26 35,824.37 54,764.89 152.87 %

1890 Deferred Costs - current, offset -190,434.13 -240,969.33 50,535.20 20.97 %

Total 1800 Deferred Costs 1,241,431.54 1,174,563.28 66,868.26 5.69 %

1850 Right of Use Assets 568,258.00 766,752.04 -198,494.04 -25.89 %

Total Other Assets 1,853,503.16 2,225,942.42 -372,439.26 -16.73 %

TOTAL ASSETS $2,419,912.19 $2,834,689.94 $ -414,777.75 -14.63 %

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY

Liabilities

Current Liabilities

Accounts Payable

2000 Accounts Payable 206,277.79 136,574.09 69,703.70 51.04 %

Total Accounts Payable 206,277.79 136,574.09 69,703.70 51.04 %

Credit Cards

2020 American Express 0.00 0.00 0.00

2021 AMEX (1007/1023) 17,773.12 18,814.04 -1,040.92 -5.53 %
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Total

As of May 31, 2024 As of May 31, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

Total 2020 American Express 17,773.12 18,814.04 -1,040.92 -5.53 %

2025 Credit Card (5277) 1,391.46 987.34 404.12 40.93 %

Total Credit Cards 19,164.58 19,801.38 -636.80 -3.22 %

Other Current Liabilities

2120 Accrued Expenses 2,072.00 13,633.16 -11,561.16 -84.80 %

2130 Payroll Liabilities 0.00 0.00 0.00

2131 AZ Income Tax 290.29 0.00 290.29

2132 AZ Unemployment Tax 0.28 3.51 -3.23 -92.02 %

2133 Federal Taxes (941/943/944) 4,671.27 0.00 4,671.27

2134 Federal Unemployment (940) 390.94 418.63 -27.69 -6.61 %

2138 Accrued Payroll 28,638.19 37,076.35 -8,438.16 -22.76 %

2139 Benefit Liability 0.00 572.21 -572.21 -100.00 %

Total 2130 Payroll Liabilities 33,990.97 38,070.70 -4,079.73 -10.72 %

2210 Settlement Liability - Termed RDs 113,000.00 130,062.50 -17,062.50 -13.12 %

2211 Settlement Liability - TBA's 0.00 10,000.00 -10,000.00 -100.00 %

2250 Lease Liabilities - Current 218,021.89 203,573.87 14,448.02 7.10 %

2280 Due to Related Parties-Current 240,000.00 193,358.54 46,641.46 24.12 %

2290 Deferred Rev - Current 654,393.22 710,705.24 -56,312.02 -7.92 %

Total Other Current Liabilities 1,261,478.08 1,299,404.01 -37,925.93 -2.92 %

Total Current Liabilities 1,486,920.45 1,455,779.48 31,140.97 2.14 %

Long-Term Liabilities

2300 Deferred Revenue

2310 Deferred Revenue - RD 2,075,032.03 2,095,378.87 -20,346.84 -0.97 %

2320 Deferred Revenue - Fran. Sales 2,226,511.53 2,284,257.91 -57,746.38 -2.53 %

2330 Deferred Revenue - Transfer 218,512.84 119,473.32 99,039.52 82.90 %

2390 Deferred Rev - current, offset -654,393.22 -710,705.24 56,312.02 7.92 %

Total 2300 Deferred Revenue 3,865,663.18 3,788,404.86 77,258.32 2.04 %
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Total

As of May 31, 2024 As of May 31, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

2420 Security Deposit 26,630.21 26,630.21 0.00 0.00 %

2450 Lease Liability - Long Term 397,246.23 615,268.12 -218,021.89 -35.44 %

2500 Due to Related Parties 0.00 0.00 0.00

2531 USC Loan (01/2023) 1,307,941.17 1,579,924.40 -271,983.23 -17.21 %

2590 Due to Related Parties-Offset to Current -240,000.00 -193,358.54 -46,641.46 -24.12 %

Total 2500 Due to Related Parties 1,067,941.17 1,386,565.86 -318,624.69 -22.98 %

Total Long-Term Liabilities 5,357,480.79 5,816,869.05 -459,388.26 -7.90 %

Total Liabilities 6,844,401.24 7,272,648.53 -428,247.29 -5.89 %

Equity

3100 Spieker Investment - Cash 420,000.00 420,000.00 0.00 0.00 %

3150 Spieker Investment - Equipment 493,830.75 493,830.75 0.00 0.00 %

3160 Spieker - Commissions -51,208.32 -51,208.32 0.00 0.00 %

3200 Retained Earnings -5,241,898.08 -5,257,776.55 15,878.47 0.30 %

Net Income -45,213.40 -42,804.47 -2,408.93 -5.63 %

Total Equity -4,424,489.05 -4,437,958.59 13,469.54 0.30 %

TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY $2,419,912.19 $2,834,689.94 $ -414,777.75 -14.63 %
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Profit and Loss PY Comparison
January - May, 2024

Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

INCOME

4000 Amortized Revenue

4010 RD License Sales 172,543.87 134,121.90 38,421.97 28.65 %

4020 Franchise Sales 168,883.59 260,513.69 -91,630.10 -35.17 %

Total 4000 Amortized Revenue 341,427.46 394,635.59 -53,208.13 -13.48 %

4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income

4110 Royalty Fees 440,802.87 425,325.01 15,477.86 3.64 %

4210 Technology Fees 178,554.92 178,765.60 -210.68 -0.12 %

4310 National Ad Fund Fees 66,332.79 64,335.46 1,997.33 3.10 %

Total 4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income 685,690.58 668,426.07 17,264.51 2.58 %

4600 Other Revenue

4615 RD Conference Sponsorship 4,925.35 4,925.35

4620 Services 37,004.40 76,497.20 -39,492.80 -51.63 %

4625 Vendor Residuals 10,300.00 54,688.67 -44,388.67 -81.17 %

4630 Franchisee Centralized Marketing 2.00 2.00

Total 4600 Other Revenue 52,231.75 131,185.87 -78,954.12 -60.18 %

4700 Sales of Product Income

4710 Merchandise 2,531.89 4,694.99 -2,163.10 -46.07 %

Total 4700 Sales of Product Income 2,531.89 4,694.99 -2,163.10 -46.07 %

Total Income 1,081,881.68 1,198,942.52 -117,060.84 -9.76 %

COST OF GOODS SOLD

5000 Amortized Costs

5010 Cost of Revenue - RD 19,448.53 16,311.79 3,136.74 19.23 %

5020 Cost of Revenue - Franchise 76,833.08 101,160.18 -24,327.10 -24.05 %
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

Total 5000 Amortized Costs 96,281.61 117,471.97 -21,190.36 -18.04 %

5110 RD Royalty Fees Earned 188,849.81 179,253.00 9,596.81 5.35 %

5200 Technology Cost of Revenues

5210 Axle Mobile App 66,841.64 67,488.82 -647.18 -0.96 %

5215 Fusionetics -2,377.96 21,966.18 -24,344.14 -110.83 %

5220 Mindbody 65,444.62 75,583.77 -10,139.15 -13.41 %

5230 Email Accounts 16,555.06 12,381.36 4,173.70 33.71 %

5235 Listen360 9,151.60 -9,151.60 -100.00 %

5240 Data Service Subscriptions 42,576.42 616.82 41,959.60 6,802.57 %

Total 5200 Technology Cost of Revenues 189,039.78 187,188.55 1,851.23 0.99 %

5645 Apparel Merchandise Expense 2,566.71 4,685.87 -2,119.16 -45.22 %

Total Cost of Goods Sold 476,737.91 488,599.39 -11,861.48 -2.43 %

GROSS PROFIT 605,143.77 710,343.13 -105,199.36 -14.81 %

EXPENSES

6000 Salaries and Benefits

6010 Salaries & Wages 283,262.62 286,663.52 -3,400.90 -1.19 %

6025 Salaries & Wages - Commission 15,625.00 39,554.00 -23,929.00 -60.50 %

6030 Bonus 24,000.00 -24,000.00 -100.00 %

6040 Salaries & Wages - Taxes 27,846.87 31,853.38 -4,006.51 -12.58 %

6050 Health Insurance 38,954.11 38,364.89 589.22 1.54 %

6060 Salaries & Wages - Fees 837.16 899.79 -62.63 -6.96 %

Total 6000 Salaries and Benefits 366,525.76 421,335.58 -54,809.82 -13.01 %

6100 Selling and Marketing

6110 Advertising & Marketing 23,989.25 888.32 23,100.93 2,600.52 %

6120 Franchisee CRM - High Level 3,842.12 33,477.75 -29,635.63 -88.52 %

Total 6100 Selling and Marketing 27,831.37 34,366.07 -6,534.70 -19.01 %

6200 National Ad Fund Expenses
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

6210 RD National Marketing 35,100.52 54,763.66 -19,663.14 -35.91 %

6215 NAF-Local Store Mktg Brand Cont 5,400.00 22,204.00 -16,804.00 -75.68 %

6220 NAF-Social Media Mgt Contractor 1,690.19 -1,690.19 -100.00 %

6225 Video Production 5,897.00 -5,897.00 -100.00 %

6235 NAF-Website Revamp 1,190.75 194.92 995.83 510.89 %

6240 NAF-Content Creation 87.00 -87.00 -100.00 %

6250 NAF-Brand Project 10,779.90 1,764.75 9,015.15 510.85 %

Total 6200 National Ad Fund Expenses 52,471.17 86,601.52 -34,130.35 -39.41 %

6310 Rent 120,182.09 102,300.02 17,882.07 17.48 %

6311 Sublet Rent Offset -83,129.80 -74,214.58 -8,915.22 -12.01 %

6320 Utilities 3,360.55 2,059.39 1,301.16 63.18 %

6321 Telephone/Cable/Internet 1,777.25 2,424.16 -646.91 -26.69 %

6325 Janitorial 3,190.00 3,045.00 145.00 4.76 %

6410 Insurance 1,561.93 1,626.20 -64.27 -3.95 %

6415 Insurance D&O, EPL, E&O 10,361.92 10,565.55 -203.63 -1.93 %

6500 Professional Fees

6510 Accounting & Audit Fees 64,280.98 66,189.20 -1,908.22 -2.88 %

6515 Legal Fees 19,789.05 22,556.17 -2,767.12 -12.27 %

6530 Outside Services 15,000.00 2,025.00 12,975.00 640.74 %

Total 6500 Professional Fees 99,070.03 90,770.37 8,299.66 9.14 %

6610 Travel 9,479.76 15,645.94 -6,166.18 -39.41 %

6630 Meals 3,149.63 2,094.54 1,055.09 50.37 %

6710 Office & General 1,737.05 6,544.24 -4,807.19 -73.46 %

6715 Dues & Subscriptions 10,063.40 9,159.68 903.72 9.87 %

6720 Learning Management System 809.05 -809.05 -100.00 %

6725 Postage, Delivery & Freight 332.25 -332.25 -100.00 %

6730 Printing & Copies 1,076.29 -1,076.29 -100.00 %
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

6745 RD Conference Summit 9,576.15 -9,576.15 -100.00 %

6755 Gifts 88.58 3,066.69 -2,978.11 -97.11 %

6810 Licenses & Permits 225.00 50.00 175.00 350.00 %

6820 Taxes 800.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 %

6900 Bank Service Charges 15,160.04 -15,160.04 -100.00 %

6901 Bank Fees 1,654.64 1,654.64

6904 Merchant Fees 11,810.71 11,810.71

6905 Shopify Fees 107.71 147.91 -40.20 -27.18 %

6906 Stripe Fee 1.18 1.18

Total 6900 Bank Service Charges 13,574.24 15,307.95 -1,733.71 -11.33 %

Total Expenses 642,319.93 745,342.06 -103,022.13 -13.82 %

NET OPERATING INCOME -37,176.16 -34,998.93 -2,177.23 -6.22 %

OTHER INCOME

7010 Interest Income 4,247.94 4,557.03 -309.09 -6.78 %

7020 Other Income 6,049.00 -6,049.00 -100.00 %

Total Other Income 4,247.94 10,606.03 -6,358.09 -59.95 %

OTHER EXPENSES

8010 Interest Expense 2,816.62 2,816.62

8011 N/P UCS - Interest Expense (deleted) 6,522.18 -6,522.18 -100.00 %

8040 Depreciation Expense 9,468.56 11,889.39 -2,420.83 -20.36 %

Total Other Expenses 12,285.18 18,411.57 -6,126.39 -33.27 %

NET OTHER INCOME -8,037.24 -7,805.54 -231.70 -2.97 %

NET INCOME $ -45,213.40 $ -42,804.47 $ -2,408.93 -5.63 %
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Profit and Loss by Month
January - May, 2024

Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 Total

INCOME

4000 Amortized Revenue 0.00

4010 RD License Sales 60,557.94 27,537.11 27,537.11 27,537.11 29,374.60 172,543.87

4020 Franchise Sales 51,283.00 31,552.56 48,957.51 18,498.84 18,591.68 168,883.59

Total 4000 Amortized Revenue 111,840.94 59,089.67 76,494.62 46,035.95 47,966.28 341,427.46

4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income 0.00

4110 Royalty Fees 93,584.14 82,967.81 85,268.54 94,697.49 84,284.89 440,802.87

4210 Technology Fees 33,811.12 33,212.12 32,613.12 39,024.78 39,893.78 178,554.92

4310 National Ad Fund Fees 14,316.90 12,893.75 12,599.26 13,719.82 12,803.06 66,332.79

Total 4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income 141,712.16 129,073.68 130,480.92 147,442.09 136,981.73 685,690.58

4600 Other Revenue 0.00

4615 RD Conference Sponsorship 4,925.35 4,925.35

4620 Services 6,420.00 6,004.40 640.00 10,640.00 13,300.00 37,004.40

4625 Vendor Residuals 3,500.00 3,100.00 3,700.00 10,300.00

4630 Franchisee Centralized Marketing 2.00 2.00

Total 4600 Other Revenue 9,920.00 6,004.40 3,740.00 10,640.00 21,927.35 52,231.75

4700 Sales of Product Income 0.00

4710 Merchandise 1,259.48 307.05 872.64 92.72 2,531.89

Total 4700 Sales of Product Income 1,259.48 307.05 872.64 92.72 2,531.89

Total Income 264,732.58 194,474.80 211,588.18 204,118.04 206,968.08 1,081,881.68

COST OF GOODS SOLD

5000 Amortized Costs 0.00

5010 Cost of Revenue - RD 5,891.75 3,351.70 3,351.69 3,351.69 3,501.70 19,448.53

5020 Cost of Revenue - Franchise 21,076.15 14,710.92 24,702.67 8,171.67 8,171.67 76,833.08
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Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 Total

Total 5000 Amortized Costs 26,967.90 18,062.62 28,054.36 11,523.36 11,673.37 96,281.61

5110 RD Royalty Fees Earned 40,026.16 35,231.87 36,045.77 40,101.13 37,444.88 188,849.81

5200 Technology Cost of Revenues 0.00

5210 Axle Mobile App 13,262.54 13,423.82 13,045.02 14,154.56 12,955.70 66,841.64

5215 Fusionetics 363.88 33.32 -2,775.16 -2,377.96

5220 Mindbody 13,247.12 13,367.53 13,109.51 12,862.17 12,858.29 65,444.62

5230 Email Accounts 3,285.74 3,291.42 3,298.98 3,323.61 3,355.31 16,555.06

5240 Data Service Subscriptions 6,542.78 7,948.07 9,649.89 9,374.51 9,061.17 42,576.42

Total 5200 Technology Cost of Revenues 36,702.06 38,064.16 36,328.24 39,714.85 38,230.47 189,039.78

5645 Apparel Merchandise Expense 1,301.84 478.14 667.56 37.17 82.00 2,566.71

Total Cost of Goods Sold 104,997.96 91,836.79 101,095.93 91,376.51 87,430.72 476,737.91

GROSS PROFIT 159,734.62 102,638.01 110,492.25 112,741.53 119,537.36 605,143.77

EXPENSES

6000 Salaries and Benefits 0.00

6010 Salaries & Wages 64,752.50 58,295.54 57,380.10 60,027.20 42,807.28 283,262.62

6025 Salaries & Wages - Commission 2,800.00 3,550.00 200.00 3,850.00 5,225.00 15,625.00

6040 Salaries & Wages - Taxes 8,923.82 5,251.30 4,415.50 4,914.89 4,341.36 27,846.87

6050 Health Insurance 7,909.69 7,423.97 7,499.73 7,041.11 9,079.61 38,954.11

6060 Salaries & Wages - Fees 156.13 253.25 156.13 148.79 122.86 837.16

Total 6000 Salaries and Benefits 84,542.14 74,774.06 69,651.46 75,981.99 61,576.11 366,525.76

6100 Selling and Marketing 0.00

6110 Advertising & Marketing 5,973.94 3,117.93 1,056.27 6,542.77 7,298.34 23,989.25

6120 Franchisee CRM - High Level 816.35 1,021.35 1,110.16 723.29 170.97 3,842.12

Total 6100 Selling and Marketing 6,790.29 4,139.28 2,166.43 7,266.06 7,469.31 27,831.37

6200 National Ad Fund Expenses 0.00

6210 RD National Marketing 5,000.00 5,000.00 5,000.01 10,050.27 10,050.24 35,100.52

6215 NAF-Local Store Mktg Brand Cont 2,700.00 2,700.00 2,500.00 -2,500.00 5,400.00

6235 NAF-Website Revamp 34.95 34.95 34.95 542.95 542.95 1,190.75
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Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 Total

6250 NAF-Brand Project 1,499.00 3,282.90 2,999.00 2,999.00 10,779.90

Total 6200 National Ad Fund Expenses 9,233.95 11,017.85 10,533.96 8,093.22 13,592.19 52,471.17

6310 Rent 25,815.39 23,591.68 23,591.67 23,591.67 23,591.68 120,182.09

6311 Sublet Rent Offset -13,633.16 -13,633.16 -13,965.87 -27,931.74 -13,965.87 -83,129.80

6320 Utilities 428.20 519.59 885.89 967.81 559.06 3,360.55

6321 Telephone/Cable/Internet 355.57 355.57 355.57 355.27 355.27 1,777.25

6325 Janitorial 580.00 725.00 580.00 580.00 725.00 3,190.00

6410 Insurance 312.40 312.39 312.38 312.38 312.38 1,561.93

6415 Insurance D&O, EPL, E&O 2,072.38 2,072.38 2,072.39 2,072.39 2,072.38 10,361.92

6500 Professional Fees 0.00

6510 Accounting & Audit Fees 11,190.50 5,863.25 13,392.75 10,380.75 23,453.73 64,280.98

6515 Legal Fees 3,358.68 12,025.90 1,753.50 1,938.47 712.50 19,789.05

6530 Outside Services 5,000.00 7,500.00 2,500.00 15,000.00

Total 6500 Professional Fees 14,549.18 22,889.15 15,146.25 19,819.22 26,666.23 99,070.03

6610 Travel 502.28 2,168.05 5,768.88 1,040.55 9,479.76

6630 Meals 494.26 693.24 1,962.13 3,149.63

6710 Office & General 410.31 309.89 266.46 266.46 483.93 1,737.05

6715 Dues & Subscriptions 1,661.83 2,137.49 1,888.16 2,543.72 1,832.20 10,063.40

6755 Gifts 88.58 88.58

6810 Licenses & Permits 50.00 25.00 150.00 225.00

6820 Taxes 800.00 800.00

6900 Bank Service Charges 0.00

6901 Bank Fees 59.00 146.13 90.17 72.95 1,286.39 1,654.64

6904 Merchant Fees 2,580.55 2,330.10 2,019.30 2,042.61 2,838.15 11,810.71

6905 Shopify Fees 50.89 9.80 43.73 3.29 107.71

6906 Stripe Fee 1.18 1.18

Total 6900 Bank Service Charges 2,690.44 2,486.03 2,153.20 2,115.56 4,129.01 13,574.24
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Jan 2024 Feb 2024 Mar 2024 Apr 2024 May 2024 Total

Total Expenses 136,855.46 134,558.49 124,168.96 116,059.01 130,678.01 642,319.93

NET OPERATING INCOME 22,879.16 -31,920.48 -13,676.71 -3,317.48 -11,140.65 -37,176.16

OTHER INCOME

7010 Interest Income 1,435.29 1,415.67 1,396.26 0.20 0.52 4,247.94

Total Other Income 1,435.29 1,415.67 1,396.26 0.20 0.52 4,247.94

OTHER EXPENSES

8010 Interest Expense 781.57 629.02 767.86 635.84 2.33 2,816.62

8040 Depreciation Expense 1,882.91 1,882.91 1,900.91 1,900.91 1,900.92 9,468.56

Total Other Expenses 2,664.48 2,511.93 2,668.77 2,536.75 1,903.25 12,285.18

NET OTHER INCOME -1,229.19 -1,096.26 -1,272.51 -2,536.55 -1,902.73 -8,037.24

NET INCOME $21,649.97 $ -33,016.74 $ -14,949.22 $ -5,854.03 $ -13,043.38 $ -45,213.40
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Profit and Loss YTD Comparison
January - May, 2024

Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

INCOME

4000 Amortized Revenue

4010 RD License Sales 172,543.87 134,121.90 38,421.97 28.65 %

4020 Franchise Sales 168,883.59 260,513.69 -91,630.10 -35.17 %

Total 4000 Amortized Revenue 341,427.46 394,635.59 -53,208.13 -13.48 %

4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income

4110 Royalty Fees 440,802.87 425,325.01 15,477.86 3.64 %

4210 Technology Fees 178,554.92 178,765.60 -210.68 -0.12 %

4310 National Ad Fund Fees 66,332.79 64,335.46 1,997.33 3.10 %

Total 4100 Monthly Franchisee/RD Income 685,690.58 668,426.07 17,264.51 2.58 %

4600 Other Revenue

4615 RD Conference Sponsorship 4,925.35 4,925.35

4620 Services 37,004.40 76,497.20 -39,492.80 -51.63 %

4625 Vendor Residuals 10,300.00 54,688.67 -44,388.67 -81.17 %

4630 Franchisee Centralized Marketing 2.00 2.00

Total 4600 Other Revenue 52,231.75 131,185.87 -78,954.12 -60.18 %

4700 Sales of Product Income

4710 Merchandise 2,531.89 4,694.99 -2,163.10 -46.07 %

Total 4700 Sales of Product Income 2,531.89 4,694.99 -2,163.10 -46.07 %

Total Income 1,081,881.68 1,198,942.52 -117,060.84 -9.76 %

COST OF GOODS SOLD

5000 Amortized Costs

5010 Cost of Revenue - RD 19,448.53 16,311.79 3,136.74 19.23 %

5020 Cost of Revenue - Franchise 76,833.08 101,160.18 -24,327.10 -24.05 %
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

Total 5000 Amortized Costs 96,281.61 117,471.97 -21,190.36 -18.04 %

5110 RD Royalty Fees Earned 188,849.81 179,253.00 9,596.81 5.35 %

5200 Technology Cost of Revenues

5210 Axle Mobile App 66,841.64 67,488.82 -647.18 -0.96 %

5215 Fusionetics -2,377.96 21,966.18 -24,344.14 -110.83 %

5220 Mindbody 65,444.62 75,583.77 -10,139.15 -13.41 %

5230 Email Accounts 16,555.06 12,381.36 4,173.70 33.71 %

5235 Listen360 9,151.60 -9,151.60 -100.00 %

5240 Data Service Subscriptions 42,576.42 616.82 41,959.60 6,802.57 %

Total 5200 Technology Cost of Revenues 189,039.78 187,188.55 1,851.23 0.99 %

5645 Apparel Merchandise Expense 2,566.71 4,685.87 -2,119.16 -45.22 %

Total Cost of Goods Sold 476,737.91 488,599.39 -11,861.48 -2.43 %

GROSS PROFIT 605,143.77 710,343.13 -105,199.36 -14.81 %

EXPENSES

6000 Salaries and Benefits

6010 Salaries & Wages 283,262.62 286,663.52 -3,400.90 -1.19 %

6025 Salaries & Wages - Commission 15,625.00 39,554.00 -23,929.00 -60.50 %

6030 Bonus 24,000.00 -24,000.00 -100.00 %

6040 Salaries & Wages - Taxes 27,846.87 31,853.38 -4,006.51 -12.58 %

6050 Health Insurance 38,954.11 38,364.89 589.22 1.54 %

6060 Salaries & Wages - Fees 837.16 899.79 -62.63 -6.96 %

Total 6000 Salaries and Benefits 366,525.76 421,335.58 -54,809.82 -13.01 %

6100 Selling and Marketing

6110 Advertising & Marketing 23,989.25 888.32 23,100.93 2,600.52 %

6120 Franchisee CRM - High Level 3,842.12 33,477.75 -29,635.63 -88.52 %

Total 6100 Selling and Marketing 27,831.37 34,366.07 -6,534.70 -19.01 %

6200 National Ad Fund Expenses
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

6210 RD National Marketing 35,100.52 54,763.66 -19,663.14 -35.91 %

6215 NAF-Local Store Mktg Brand Cont 5,400.00 22,204.00 -16,804.00 -75.68 %

6220 NAF-Social Media Mgt Contractor 1,690.19 -1,690.19 -100.00 %

6225 Video Production 5,897.00 -5,897.00 -100.00 %

6235 NAF-Website Revamp 1,190.75 194.92 995.83 510.89 %

6240 NAF-Content Creation 87.00 -87.00 -100.00 %

6250 NAF-Brand Project 10,779.90 1,764.75 9,015.15 510.85 %

Total 6200 National Ad Fund Expenses 52,471.17 86,601.52 -34,130.35 -39.41 %

6310 Rent 120,182.09 102,300.02 17,882.07 17.48 %

6311 Sublet Rent Offset -83,129.80 -74,214.58 -8,915.22 -12.01 %

6320 Utilities 3,360.55 2,059.39 1,301.16 63.18 %

6321 Telephone/Cable/Internet 1,777.25 2,424.16 -646.91 -26.69 %

6325 Janitorial 3,190.00 3,045.00 145.00 4.76 %

6410 Insurance 1,561.93 1,626.20 -64.27 -3.95 %

6415 Insurance D&O, EPL, E&O 10,361.92 10,565.55 -203.63 -1.93 %

6500 Professional Fees

6510 Accounting & Audit Fees 64,280.98 66,189.20 -1,908.22 -2.88 %

6515 Legal Fees 19,789.05 22,556.17 -2,767.12 -12.27 %

6530 Outside Services 15,000.00 2,025.00 12,975.00 640.74 %

Total 6500 Professional Fees 99,070.03 90,770.37 8,299.66 9.14 %

6610 Travel 9,479.76 15,645.94 -6,166.18 -39.41 %

6630 Meals 3,149.63 2,094.54 1,055.09 50.37 %

6710 Office & General 1,737.05 6,544.24 -4,807.19 -73.46 %

6715 Dues & Subscriptions 10,063.40 9,159.68 903.72 9.87 %

6720 Learning Management System 809.05 -809.05 -100.00 %

6725 Postage, Delivery & Freight 332.25 -332.25 -100.00 %

6730 Printing & Copies 1,076.29 -1,076.29 -100.00 %
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Total

Jan - May, 2024 Jan - May, 2023 (PY) Change % Change

6745 RD Conference Summit 9,576.15 -9,576.15 -100.00 %

6755 Gifts 88.58 3,066.69 -2,978.11 -97.11 %

6810 Licenses & Permits 225.00 50.00 175.00 350.00 %

6820 Taxes 800.00 800.00 0.00 0.00 %

6900 Bank Service Charges 15,160.04 -15,160.04 -100.00 %

6901 Bank Fees 1,654.64 1,654.64

6904 Merchant Fees 11,810.71 11,810.71

6905 Shopify Fees 107.71 147.91 -40.20 -27.18 %

6906 Stripe Fee 1.18 1.18

Total 6900 Bank Service Charges 13,574.24 15,307.95 -1,733.71 -11.33 %

Total Expenses 642,319.93 745,342.06 -103,022.13 -13.82 %

NET OPERATING INCOME -37,176.16 -34,998.93 -2,177.23 -6.22 %

OTHER INCOME

7010 Interest Income 4,247.94 4,557.03 -309.09 -6.78 %

7020 Other Income 6,049.00 -6,049.00 -100.00 %

Total Other Income 4,247.94 10,606.03 -6,358.09 -59.95 %

OTHER EXPENSES

8010 Interest Expense 2,816.62 2,816.62

8011 N/P UCS - Interest Expense (deleted) 6,522.18 -6,522.18 -100.00 %

8040 Depreciation Expense 9,468.56 11,889.39 -2,420.83 -20.36 %

Total Other Expenses 12,285.18 18,411.57 -6,126.39 -33.27 %

NET OTHER INCOME -8,037.24 -7,805.54 -231.70 -2.97 %

NET INCOME $ -45,213.40 $ -42,804.47 $ -2,408.93 -5.63 %
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A/P Aging Detail
As of December 31, 2021

Date Transaction Type Num Vendor Due Date Past Due Amount Open Balance

91 or more days past due

05/01/2021 Bill 305715 Henry + Horne 05/25/2021 1137 20,900.00 6,000.00

06/30/2021 Bill 6.30.2021 Henry + Horne 07/01/2021 1100 313.50 313.50

07/31/2021 Bill 7.31.2021 Henry + Horne 08/01/2021 1069 240.00 240.00

08/31/2021 Bill 8.31.2021 Henry + Horne 09/01/2021 1038 240.00 240.00

08/31/2021 Bill 89051421 Gallagher & Kennedy 09/30/2021 1009 7,189.00 2,189.00

08/31/2021 Bill 89051422 Gallagher & Kennedy 09/30/2021 1009 550.00 550.00

08/31/2021 Bill 89051423 Gallagher & Kennedy 09/30/2021 1009 157.50 157.50

09/30/2021 Bill 9.30.2021 Henry + Horne 10/01/2021 1008 240.00 240.00

Total for 91 or more days past due $29,830.00 $9,930.00

1 - 30 days past due

11/06/2021 Bill 12077
Franchise Focused 
Marketing, LLC 12/01/2021 947 1,200.00 1,200.00

11/30/2021 Bill 2236 Fusionetics LLC V 12/01/2021 947 6,554.14 6,554.14

11/30/2021 Bill 2789 Fiscal Partners, LLC 12/01/2021 947 4,627.97 4,627.97

12/01/2021 Bill 12119
Franchise Focused 
Marketing, LLC 12/01/2021 947 400.00 400.00
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Date Transaction Type Num Vendor Due Date Past Due Amount Open Balance

12/01/2021 Bill 20210052987 City of Scottsdale 12/01/2021 947 50.00 50.00

11/30/2021 Bill SAR-0017 Slightly Average Ryan LLC 12/10/2021 938 375.00 375.00

12/07/2021 Bill 1931
Tom and Lin Catering 
(deleted) 12/11/2021 937 1,549.20 1,549.20

12/12/2021 Bill 104 Chad Petzinger (deleted) 12/13/2021 935 2,600.00 2,600.00

11/30/2021 Bill 21-11-16472 WIPFLI 12/15/2021 933 3,193.75 3,193.75

12/17/2021 Bill 12145
Franchise Focused 
Marketing, LLC 12/17/2021 931 2,400.00 2,400.00

11/18/2021 Bill 89056320 Gallagher & Kennedy 12/18/2021 930 592.50 592.50

11/18/2021 Bill 89056322 Gallagher & Kennedy 12/18/2021 930 100.00 100.00

12/21/2021 Bill 12161
Franchise Focused 
Marketing, LLC 12/21/2021 927 4,050.00 4,050.00

11/22/2021 Bill RD Miami (OConnor) V 12/22/2021 926 19,500.00 19,500.00

11/30/2021 Bill 182433 ProMevo LLC 12/30/2021 918 1,719.18 1,719.18

Total for 1 - 30 days past due $48,911.74 $48,911.74

Current

12/16/2021 Bill 13154 C Squared Social V 12/31/2021 917 16,200.00 16,200.00

12/31/2021 Bill Skinner 18 RD Iowa Region V 12/31/2021 917 78,000.00 78,000.00

12/31/2021 Journal Entry Audit Adjustment 0066 Oregon V (deleted) 12/31/2021 917 39,000.00 39,000.00
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Date Transaction Type Num Vendor Due Date Past Due Amount Open Balance

12/31/2021 Journal Entry Audit Adjustment

RD Oregon_SW 
Washington Region 
(deleted) 12/31/2021 917 19,500.00 1,650.00

12/31/2021 Journal Entry Audit Adjustments
RD Midwest IA-NE-MN-SD 
V 12/31/2021 917 15,600.00 15,600.00

12/31/2021 Bill LANSD1221RD
RD Dallas_Ft Worth Region 
V 12/31/2021 917 7,698.99 7,698.99

12/31/2021 Bill 21-10-16391 WIPFLI 12/31/2021 917 4,287.50 4,287.50

12/31/2021 Bill LL1221RD RD Colorado Region V 12/31/2021 917 2,731.53 2,731.53

12/31/2021 Bill FSPT1221RD RD Tampa (OConnor) V 12/31/2021 917 2,288.54 2,288.54

12/31/2021 Bill EJRP1221RD RD Philadelphia V (deleted) 12/31/2021 917 1,788.26 1,788.26

12/31/2021 Bill EAC1221RD
RD E North Carolina 
Region V 12/31/2021 917 1,393.69 1,393.69

12/31/2021 Bill YSNJ1221RD RD N New Jersey Region V 12/31/2021 917 610.23 610.23

12/16/2021 Bill 2806 RLA Scottsdale, LLC 01/01/2022 916 9,588.62 9,588.62

12/22/2021 Bill 86092086R Brad Hinkle 01/01/2022 916 84.00 84.00

12/23/2021 Bill RD Colorado Region V 01/01/2022 916 14,040.00 14,040.00

12/31/2021 Bill BAO1221RD RD S Ohio Region 01/01/2022 916 2,138.60 2,138.60

12/31/2021 Bill MD1221RD
RD Arizona Region V 
(deleted) 01/01/2022 916 1,349.37 1,349.37

12/31/2021 Bill 19947523 Mailgun Technologies, Inc 01/02/2022 915 35.00 35.00
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Date Transaction Type Num Vendor Due Date Past Due Amount Open Balance

12/20/2021 Bill 13220 C Squared Social V 01/03/2022 914 100.00 100.00

12/31/2021 Bill 2266 Fusionetics LLC V 01/03/2022 914 6,554.14 6,554.14

12/31/2021 Bill 105 Chad Petzinger (deleted) 01/03/2022 914 1,100.00 1,100.00

12/31/2021 Bill 2910 Fiscal Partners, LLC 01/05/2022 912 4,097.94 4,097.94

12/20/2021 Bill 89057745 Gallagher & Kennedy 01/19/2022 898 1,322.31 1,322.31

12/31/2021 Bill TWM1221RD
RD W Missouri_E Kansas 
Region 01/31/2022 886 2,191.01 2,191.01

12/31/2021 Bill 184354 ProMevo LLC 02/02/2022 884 1,764.70 1,764.70

12/31/2021 Vendor Credit

RD Oregon_SW 
Washington Region 
(deleted) 0 -19,500.00 -1,650.00

Total for Current $213,964.43 $213,964.43

TOTAL $292,706.17 $272,806.17
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A/R Aging Detail
As of December 31, 2021

Date Transaction Type Num Customer Due Date Amount Open Balance

91 or more days past due

07/01/2021 Invoice 08022464 0053 Irving Park IL (deleted) 01/01/2021 575.00 575.00

05/20/2021 Invoice 08022525 RD DFW_Austin_Houston 05/25/2021 628.29 628.29

08/05/2021 Journal Entry ADP081330 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 08/05/2021 227.80 227.80

08/20/2021 Journal Entry ADP081331 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 08/20/2021 318.78 318.78

09/07/2021 Journal Entry ADP092424 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 09/07/2021 166.70 166.70

09/21/2021 Journal Entry ADP092425 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 09/21/2021 373.95 373.95

Total for 91 or more days past due $2,290.52 $2,290.52

61 - 90 days past due

10/07/2021 Journal Entry ADP100824 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/07/2021 11.88 11.88

10/16/2021 Journal Entry ADP100828 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/16/2021 21.45 21.45

10/16/2021 Journal Entry ADP100827 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/16/2021 150.16 150.16

10/31/2021 Journal Entry ADP100837 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/31/2021 19.65 19.65

10/31/2021 Journal Entry ADP100838 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/31/2021 137.56 137.56

10/31/2021 Journal Entry ADP111222 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 10/31/2021 412.50 412.50

Total for 61 - 90 days past due $753.20 $753.20
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Date Transaction Type Num Customer Due Date Amount Open Balance

31 - 60 days past due

11/19/2021 Journal Entry ADP111236 0016 Farmington Hills (deleted) 11/19/2021 558.68 558.68

Total for 31 - 60 days past due $558.68 $558.68

1 - 30 days past due

12/08/2021 Journal Entry ADP120324
0067 Crowley Burleson 
(deleted) 12/08/2021 487.50 487.50

12/17/2021 Journal Entry ADP121722 0023 Webster (deleted) 12/17/2021 684.07 684.07

Total for 1 - 30 days past due $1,171.57 $1,171.57

Current

12/31/2021 Credit Memo LFC03.25-T 0066 Oregon #3 (deleted) 12/31/2021 -9,750.00 -9,750.00

12/31/2021 Credit Memo LFC03.26-T 0066 Oregon #3 (deleted) 12/31/2021 -9,750.00 -9,750.00

12/31/2021 Invoice 0066 Refund
RD Oregon_SW Washington 
(deleted) 12/31/2021 19,500.00 19,500.00

12/31/2021 Journal Entry Audit Adjustment 0066 Oregon #3 (deleted) 12/31/2021 39,000.00 19,500.00

12/30/2021 Invoice 0053 Irving Park IL (deleted) 01/29/2022 900.00 900.00

12/30/2021 Invoice PV1221A6 0086 Ft. Myers 01/29/2022 1,800.00 1,800.00

12/30/2021 Invoice PV1221R18 0113 Woodbury (Eagan, MN) 01/29/2022 39,000.00 19,500.00

Total for Current $80,700.00 $41,700.00

TOTAL $85,473.97 $46,473.97
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EXHIBIT E 
CONFIDENTIALITY/NON-DISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

CONFIDENTIALITY/NONDISCLOSURE AGREEMENT 

THIS AGREEMENT made and entered into this ______ day of   , 20____, by and 
between Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company, (hereinafter referred
 to as “the Company”) and , whose address is (hereinafter referred to as 
“Prospective Franchisee”). 

WHEREAS, Prospective Franchisee desires to obtain certain confidential and proprietary information from 
the Company for the sole purpose of inspecting and analyzing said information in an effort to determine 
whether to purchase a franchise from the Company; and 

WHEREAS, the Company is willing to provide such information to Prospective Franchisee for the limited 
purpose and under the terms and conditions set forth herein; 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the premises and the mutual covenants and promises herein 
contained, and other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which are hereby 
acknowledged by the parties hereto, the parties hereto agree as follows: 

1. DEFINITION. “Confidential Information” is used herein to mean all information, 
documentation and devices disclosed to or made available to Prospective Franchisee by the Company, 
whether orally or in writing, as well as any information, documentation or devises heretofore or hereafter 
produced by Prospective Franchisee in response to or in reliance on said information, documentation and 
devises made available by the Company. 

2. TERM. The parties hereto agree that the restrictions and obligations of Paragraph 3 of this 
Agreement shall be deemed to have been in effect from the commencement on the ______ day of 

 ________________________ , 20____, of the ongoing negotiations between Prospective Franchisee and  
the Company and continue in perpetuity until disclosed by the Company. 

3. TRADE SECRET ACKNOWLEDGEMENT. Prospective Franchisee acknowledges 
and agrees the Confidential Information is a valuable trade secret of the Company and that any disclosure 
or unauthorized use thereof will cause irreparable harm and loss to the Company. 

4. TREATMENT OF CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION. In consideration of the 
disclosure to Prospective Franchisee of Confidential Information, Prospective Franchisee agrees to treat 
Confidential Information in confidence and to undertake the following additional obligations with respect 
thereto: 

(a) To use Confidential Information for the sole purpose of inspecting and analyzing the 
information in an effort to determine whether to purchase a franchise from the Company and solely in its 
operation of Redline Performance Centers pursuant to the Regional Developer and/or Franchise Agreement; 

(b) Not to disclose Confidential Information to any third party; 

(c) To limit dissemination of Confidential Information to only those of prospective 
Redline Franchisees' officers, directors and employees who have a need to know to perform the limited 
tasks set forth in Item 4 (a) above; and who have agreed to the terms and obligations of this Agreement by 
affixing their signatures hereto; 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD 
Exhibit E - Confidentiality Agreement  2 

(d) Not to copy Confidential Information or any portions thereof; and 

(e) To return Confidential Information and all documents, notes or physical evidence 
thereof, to the Company upon a determination that Prospective Franchisee no longer has a need therefore, 
or a request therefore, from the Company, whichever occurs first. 

5. SURVIVAL OF OBLIGATIONS. The restrictions and obligations of this Agreement 
shall survive any expiration, termination or cancellation of this Agreement and shall continue to bind 
Prospective Franchisee, his heirs, successors and assigns in perpetuity. 

6. NEGATION OF LICENSES. Except as expressly set forth herein, no rights to licenses, 
expressed or implied, are hereby granted to Prospective Franchisee as a result of or related to this 
Agreement. 

7. APPLICABLE LAW. This Agreement shall be construed and enforced in accordance 
with the laws of the State of Arizona. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be duly executed. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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EXHIBIT F 

LIST OF REGIONAL DEVELOPERS 
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LIST OF REGIONAL DEVELOPERS 

REGIONAL DEVELOPERS 

Current Regional Developers as of December 31, 2023: 

 State Region Name of Regional Developer Address 
Phone 

Number 

1 AZ Arizona 
Brad Hinkle, TJ O'Connor, 
Chance Pearson 

14000 Hayden Rd Suite, 
Scottsdale, AZ 85260 517.262.0234 

2 CA Los Angeles County Paul Joseph 
3511 Malibu Country Dr. 
Malibu, California 90265 310.600.5149 

3 CA Orange County 
Emmy & Jeff Tseng, 
David LeBlond & Tina Wang 

31875 Saddletree Dr 
Westlake Village, CA 91361 323.236.5552 

4 CA San Diego James and Holly Campbell 
7520 Shadow Estates Way Las 
Vegas Nevada 89113 702.769.3252 

5 CO Colorado Jim Little 
730 Grenville Cir, 
Erie, CO 80516 262.716.6115 

6 DC/MD 
Washington DC & 
Maryland Mark Lindsey 

6003 Henning Street 
Bethesda, MD 20817 202.465.6213 

7 FL Miami TJ O'Connor 
15184 Butler Lake Dr #201 
Naples, FL 34109 239.821.6739 

8 FL Tampa TJ O'Connor 
15184 Butler Lake Dr #201 
Naples, FL 34109 239.821.6739 

9 FL North Florida TJ O'Connor 
15184 Butler Lake Dr #201 
Naples, FL 34109 239.821.6739 

10 GA Georgia Adam Jefferson 
2620 Wilderness Drive 
Little Elm, TX 75068 469.388.2610 

11 IA Iowa Travis O'Connor 
300 Centennial Drive #295 
Noth Sioux City, SD 57049 712.899.2720 

12 
ID/SD/ND/
WY/MT InterMountain Blake Kingsley 

4961 West Grand Rapids Dr. 
Meridian, ID 83642 503.686.8423 

13 IN Indiana Steve Mehmert 
N35 W28364 Taylors Woods Rd 
Pewaukee, WI 53072 262.488.4645 

14 MI Michigan Christian & Elise Cullen 
1281 S Oxford Road Grosse 
Pointe Woods, MI 48236 910.723.1649 

15 MN/NE 
Minnesota & Iowa 
&Nebraska Travis O'Connor 

300 Centennial Drive #295 
Noth Sioux City, SD 57049 712.899.2720 

16 MO/IL 
Eastern Missouri & 
Illinois Steve Mehmert 

N35 W28364 Taylors Woods Rd 
Pewaukee, WI 53072 262.488.4645 

17 MO/KS 
Western Missouri & 
Eastern Kansas Lisa & Casey Tinkler 

6416 E State Hwy A 
Strafford, MO 65757 417.880.0826 

18 NC Eastern North Carolina Chad (Ralph) Fields 
101 Gentlewoods Dr 
Cary, NC 27518 919.271.5862 

19 NC/SC Western Carolinas Brandon Curtis 
4295 Acacia Circle 
Coconut Creek, FL 33066 9546821697 

20 NH/MA 
New Hampshire & 
Massachusetts Rachel & Elie Elfata 

37 Chester Turnpike 
Auburn, NH 03032 6032890946 

21 NJ North New Jersey Kelly & Eric Gillenwater 
306 Roanoke Rd 
Westfield, NJ 07090 201.982.2125 

22 NM/TX 
New Mexico & 
Northwest Texas Jodi Medell 

460 St Michael's Dr #100 
Santa Fe, NM 87505 505.670.0136 

23 NV/UT Nevada & Utah James and Holly Campbell 
7520 Shadow Estates Way Las 
Vegas Nevada 89113 702.769.3252 
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 State Region Name of Regional Developer Address 
Phone 

Number 

24 NY Northern New York Anthony Richmond 
444 West Lake Road Oswego, 
NY 13126 315.806.2607 

25 OH Southern Ohio Tom & Theresa Holderread 
1985 Buckeye Field Court 
Lebanon OH 45036 513.267.9426 

26 OH Northern Ohio Brett & Jenny Coluccio 
4901 Country Walk Ln 
Sylvania, OH 43560 417.399.6847 

27 OK/AR 
Northeast Oklahoma 
& Northwest Arkansas Lisa Tinkler 

6416 E State Hwy A 
Strafford, MO 65757 417.880.0826 

28 PA Philadelphia Mark Lindsey 
6003 Henning Street 
Bethesda, MD 20817 202.465.6213 

29 TX 
DFW & Austin & 
Houston Adam Jefferson 

2620 Wilderness Drive 
Little Elm, TX 75068 469.388.2610 

30 TX San Antonio Travis O'Connor 
300 Centennial Drive #295 
Noth Sioux City, SD 57049 712.899.2720 

31 VA Virginia Mark Lindsey 
6003 Henning Street 
Bethesda, MD 20817 202.465.6213 

32 WA Washington Tim Hatten 
258 SE Orchard Dr #202 
North Bend, WA 98045 815.540.2510 

33 WI Wisconsin Steve Mehmert 
N35 W28364 Taylors Woods Rd 
Pewaukee, WI 53072 262.488.4645 

 

Signed but Not Opened as of December 31, 2023:  

None. 

The following lists the name, city and state, and the current business telephone number (or, if 
unknown, the last known home telephone number) of Regional Developers who had an outlet 
terminated, canceled, not renewed, or otherwise voluntarily or involuntarily ceased to do business 
under the Regional Developer Agreement with us during our most recently completed fiscal year or 
who had not communicated with us within 10 weeks of the Issuance Date of this Disclosure Document. 

None 
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GENERAL RELEASE  

THIS GENERAL RELEASE AGREEMENT (“Release”) is made and entered into this ______ day of 

 _____ , 20__, by and between Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, an Arizona limited liability company 

(“Franchisor”), and __________________________________ , a _________ corporation/limited liability  
company/partnership (circle one) (“Franchisee”), and each shareholder/member/partner of Franchisee and 
his or her spouse (individually, an “Owner,” and collectively, the “Owners”) (collectively, Franchisor, 
Franchisee, and the Owners are referred to hereinafter as the “Parties”). 

WHEREAS, the Parties previously entered into that certain Regional Developer Agreement dated  
  , 20___ (the “Agreement”), granting Franchisee a single Redline Business of Franchisor 
for the Initial Term (as defined in the Agreement); and 

WHEREAS, Franchisee desires to renew the Agreement for a Renewal Term (as defined in the Agreement); 
and 

WHEREAS, the Agreement requires Franchisee and each of its Owners and their respective spouses to 
execute, in favor of Franchisor and its officers, directors, agents, and employees, and Franchisor’s affiliates 
and their officers, directors, agents, and employees, as a condition to renew the Agreement, a general release 
from liability of all claims that Franchisee, its Owners, and their respective spouses may have against 
Franchisor, its affiliates, and their respective owners, officers, directors, employees, and agents; and 

WHEREAS, the Parties desire to enter into this Release to comply with the requirements of the Agreement 
and preserve Franchisee’s eligibility to renew the Agreement. 

NOW, THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual agreements contained herein and other valuable 
consideration, the Parties hereby agree as follows: 

1. Recitals. The foregoing Recitals are incorporated into and made part of this Release. 

2. Release. Franchisee, each Owner and his or her spouse, and their present or former affiliated 
entities, officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, employees, contractors, agents, predecessors, 
successors, assigns, attorneys, representatives, heirs, personal representatives and any spouses of each, as 
well as all other persons, firms, corporations, limited liability companies, associations or partnerships or 
other affiliated entities claiming by or through them (the “Releasing Entities”), hereby fully release 
Franchisor and its present or former officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, employees, 
contractors, agents, predecessors, successors, assigns, attorneys, representatives, heirs, personal 
representatives and any spouses of each, and Franchisor’s affiliates and other related parties and their 
respective present or former officers, directors, shareholders, partners, members, employees, contractors, 
agents, predecessors, successors, assigns, attorneys, representatives, heirs, personal representatives and any 
spouses of each, as well as all other persons, firms, corporations, limited liability companies, associations 
or partnerships or other affiliated entities claiming by or through Franchisor (the “Released Entities”) from 
any and all liabilities, claims, demands, debts, damages, obligations and causes of action of any nature or 
kind, whether presently known or unknown, which the Releasing Entities may have against the Released 
Entities as of the date this Agreement is executed, except for any claims under the California Franchise 
Investment Law (California Corporations Code sections 31000 to 31516) or the California Franchise 
Relations Act (California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 to 20043); the Indiana Franchise 
Act; the Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act; the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law; 



 

2024 Redline Area Representative FDD 
Exhibit G - General Release-Form  2 

Minnesota Statutes, 1973 Supplement, sections 80C.01 to 80C.22 (the “Minnesota Franchise Law”); or the 
Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act. 

3. Miscellaneous.  

A.This Release contains the entire agreement and representations between the Parties hereto with 
respect to the subject matter hereof. This Release supersedes and cancels any prior understanding or 
agreement between the parties hereto whether written or oral, express, or implied. No modifications or 
amendments to this Release shall be effective unless in writing, signed by all Parties. 

B. In the event any provision hereof, or any portion of any provision hereof shall be deemed 
to be invalid, illegal, or unenforceable, such invalidity, illegality, or unenforceability shall not affect the 
remaining portion of any provision, or of any other provision hereof, and each provision of this Release 
shall be deemed severable from all other provisions hereof. 

C. This Release shall be governed by the laws of the State of Arizona. Any litigation or court 
action arising under or related to this Release shall be filed in state or federal court in Maricopa County, 
State of Arizona. 

D. In the event a court action is brought to enforce or interpret this Release, the prevailing 
Party in that proceeding or action shall be entitled to reimbursement of all of its legal expenses, including, 
but not limited to, reasonable attorneys’ fees and court costs incurred. The prevailing Party shall be entitled 
to reimbursement of all such expenses both in the initial proceeding or action and on any appeal therefrom. 

E. This Release is binding on the Parties hereto and their respective successors, heirs, 
beneficiaries, agents, legal representatives, and assigns, and on any other persons claiming a right or interest 
through the Parties. 

F. This Release may be executed in any number of counterparts, all of which shall be deemed 
to constitute one instrument, and each counterpart shall be deemed an original. 

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto affix their signatures and execute this Release as of the 
day and year first above written. 

REDLINE ATHLETICS FRANCHISING, LLC an 
Arizona limited liability company 

  

By:  

Title:   

Date:   

REGIONAL DEVELOPER 
 

  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   

 OWNERS 
  

By:   

Title:   

Date:   
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REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF CALIFORNIA 

 

Registration of this franchise offering by the California Department of Financial Protection and 
Innovation does not constitute approval, recommendation, or endorsement by the Commissioner. 

CALIFORNIA CORPORATIONS CODE SECTION 31125 REQUIRES THAT THE FRANCHISOR 
GIVE THE FRANCHISEE A DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT APPROVED BY THE DEPARTMENT OF 
CORPORATIONS PRIOR TO A SOLICITATION OF A PROPOSED MATERIAL MODIFICATION OF 
AN EXISTING FRANCHISE. 

THE CALIFORNIA FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW REQUIRES THAT A COPY OF ALL 
PROPOSED AGREEMENTS RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE BE DELIVERED 
TOGETHER WITH THE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

OUR WEBSITE (www.Redlineathletics.com) HAS NOT BEEN REVIEWED OR APPROVED BY THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION. ANY 
COMPLAINTS CONCERNING THE CONTENT OF OUR WEBSITE MAY BE DIRECTED TO THE 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF FINANCIAL PROTECTION AND INNOVATION AT www.dfpi.ca.gov. 

Neither we nor any person or franchise broker identified in Item 2 is subject to any currently effective order 
of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934, 15 U.S.C.A. 78a et seq., suspending or expelling such persons from membership in that 
association or exchange. 

Item 5 of the Disclosure Document is modified to include the following paragraph: 

The Department has determined that we, the franchisor, have not demonstrated we are adequately 
capitalized and/or that we must rely on franchise fees to fund our operations.  The Commissioner has 
imposed a fee deferral condition, which requires that we defer the collection of all initial fees from 
California franchisees until we have completed all of our pre-opening obligations, and you are open for 
business.  

We apply the Development Fee to our general operating revenues, which we use, among other purposes, to 
cover the costs of marketing to prospective Regional Developers, training new Regional Developers, and 
assisting new Regional Developers in opening their businesses. 

The California Business and Professions Code Sections 20000 through 20043 provide rights to you 
concerning termination, transfer, and non-renewal of a franchise. If the Regional Developer Agreement 
contains a provision that in inconsistent with the law, the law will control. We may not terminate your 
Regional Developer Business except for good cause, and we must give you a notice of default and a 
reasonable opportunity to cure the defects (except for certain defects specified in the statute, for which no 
opportunity to cure is required by law). The statute also requires that we give you notice of any intention 
not to renew your Regional Developer Business at least 180 days before expiration of the Regional 
Developer Agreement. 

You must sign a general release if you renew or transfer your Regional Developer Business. California 
Corporations Code 31512 voids a waiver of your rights under the Franchise Investment Law (California 
Corporations Code 31000 through 31516). Business and Professions Code 20010 voids a waiver of your 
rights under the Franchise Relations Act (Business and Professions Code 20000 through 20043). 

http://www.redlineathletics.com/
http://www.dfpi.ca.gov/
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The Regional Developer Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of your Regional Developer Business. This provision may not be enforceable under California 
law. 

THE REGIONAL DEVELOPER AGREEMENT REQUIRES APPLICATION OF THE LAW OF 
ARIZONA. THIS PROVISION MAY NOT BE ENFORCEABLE UNDER CALIFORNIA LAW. To the 
extent permitted by law, you and we waive any right to or claim for any punitive or exemplary damages 
against each other and agree that in the event of a dispute between us, each will be limited to the recovery of 
actual damages only (except in limited circumstances). Each party further waives trial by jury and, to the 
extent permitted by law, all claims arising out of or relating to the Regional Developer Agreement must be 
brought within one year from the date on which you or we knew or should have known of the facts giving rise 
to such claims (except for claims relating to nonpayment or underpayment of amounts you owe us). 

The Regional Developer Agreement requires binding arbitration. The arbitration will occur at the office of 
the American Arbitration Office closest to our principal executive offices. Prospective Franchisees are 
encouraged to consult private legal counsel to determine the applicability of California and federal laws 
(such as Business and Professions Code Section 20040.5, Code of Civil Procedure Section 1281, and the 
Federal Arbitration Act) to any provisions of a franchise agreement restricting venue to a forum outside the 
State of California. 

California Corporations Code Section 31512.1 -Franchise Agreement Provisions Void as Contrary to Public 
Policy: 

Any provision of a franchise agreement, franchise disclosure document, acknowledgement, questionnaire, 
or other writing, including any exhibit thereto, disclaiming or denying any of the following shall be deemed 
contrary to public policy and shall be void and unenforceable: 

(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee. 
(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents. 
(c) Reliance by a franchisee on the franchise disclosure document, including any exhibits thereto. 
(d) Violations of any provision of this division. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaim-ing reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF HAWAII 

THESE FRANCHISES WILL BE/HAVE BEEN FILED UNDER THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT 
LAW OF THE STATE OF HAWAII. FILING DOES NOT CONSTITUTE APPROVAL, 
RECOMMENDATION OR ENDORSEMENT BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND 
CONSUMER AFFAIRS OR A FINDING BY THE DIRECTOR OF COMMERCE AND CONSUMER 
AFFAIRS THAT THE INFORMATION PROVIDED HEREIN IS TRUE, COMPLETE AND NOT 
MISLEADING. 

THE FRANCHISE INVESTMENT LAW MAKES IT UNLAWFUL TO OFFER OR SELL ANY 
FRANCHISE IN THIS STATE WITHOUT FIRST PROVIDING TO THE PROSPECTIVE 
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE EXECUTION BY 
THE PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE OF ANY BINDING FRANCHISE OR OTHER AGREEMENT, OR 
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AT LEAST SEVEN DAYS PRIOR TO THE PAYMENT OF ANY CONSIDERATION BY THE 
FRANCHISEE, OR SUBFRANCHISOR, WHICHEVER OCCURS FIRST, A COPY OF THE 
DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT, TOGETHER WITH A COPY OF ALL PROPOSED AGREEMENTS 
RELATING TO THE SALE OF THE FRANCHISE. 

THIS DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT CONTAINS A SUMMARY ONLY OF CERTAIN MATERIAL 
PROVISIONS OF THE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT. THE CONTRACT OR AGREEMENT SHOULD 
BE REFERRED TO FOR A STATEMENT OF ALL RIGHTS, CONDITIONS, RESTRICTIONS AND 
OBLIGATIONS OF BOTH THE FRANCHISOR AND THE FRANCHISEE. 

WITH RESPECT TO FRANCHISES GOVERNED BY HAWAII LAW, AND BASED UPON THE 
FRANCHISOR'S FINANCIAL CONDITION: INITIAL FRANCHISE FEES WILL BE DEFERRED 
UNTIL THE FRANCHISOR HAS SATISFIED IT'S PRE-OPENING OBLIGATIONS TO THE 
FRANCHISEE AND THE FRANCHISEE HAS COMMENCED BUSINESS OPERATIONS. IN 
ADDITION, ALL DEVELOPMENT FEES AND INITIAL PAYMENTS BY AREA DEVELOPERS 
SHALL BE DEFERRED UNTIL THE FIRST FRANCHISE UNDER THE DEVELOPMENT 
AGREEMENT OPENS. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaim-ing reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

This statement in Item 17(t) of the franchise disclosure document “No claim made in any Regional 
Developer or Franchise Agreement is intended to disclaim the express representation made in this Franchise 
Disclosure Document.” is removed in its entirety. 

Item 20 of this Disclosure Document will be amended by the addition of the following paragraph: 

As of the dates listed in Attachment 1, this franchise offering is or will be effective in Michigan. No states have 
refused, by order or otherwise, to register these franchises. No states have revoked or suspended the right to 
offer these franchises. The proposed registration of these franchises has not been involuntarily withdrawn in 
any state. 
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REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF ILLINOIS 

Item 5 of this disclosure document is supplemented by the addition of the following:  

The Illinois attorney General's Office has imposed the following due to the Franchisor's financial 
condition: initial franchise (and Development) Fees will be deferred until the franchisor has satisfied its 
pre-opening obligations to the franchisee and the franchisee has commenced business operations (Section 
200.508 of the Rules). 

Item 17 of this disclosure document is supplemented by the addition of the following paragraphs at the end 
of the chart: 

State Law The conditions under which you can be terminated and your rights on non-renewal may be affected 
by Illinois law, 815 ILCS 705/19 and 705/20 

The Illinois Franchise Disclosure Act will govern any Regional Developer Agreement if it applies 
to a subfranchise located in Illinois. 

Any condition in the Regional Developer Agreement that designates jurisdiction or venue in a 
forum outside of Illinois is void with respect to any cause of action that otherwise is enforceable in 
Illinois, provided that the Regional Developer Agreement may provide for arbitration in a forum 
outside of Illinois. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF INDIANA 

The Regional Developer Agreement contains a covenant not to compete that extends beyond the 
termination of your Regional Developer Business. This provision may not be enforceable under Indiana 
law. 

Indiana law makes unilateral termination of your Regional Developer Business unlawful unless there is a 
material violation of the Regional Developer Agreement, and the termination is not done in bad faith. 

If Indiana law requires the Regional Developer Agreement and all related documents to be governed by 
Indiana law, then nothing in the Regional Developer Agreement or related documents referring to Arizona 
law will abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for under Indiana law. 

Indiana law prohibits a prospective general release of claims subject to the Indiana Deceptive Franchise 
Practices Law. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement requires arbitration to be held at the office of the American 
Arbitration Association closest to our principal executive offices, arbitration held pursuant to the Regional 
Developer Agreement must take place in Indiana if you so request. If you choose Indiana, we have the right 
to select the location in Indiana. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MARYLAND 
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A Franchisee located within the state of Maryland shall not be required to assent to any release, estoppel, 
or waiver of liability as a condition of purchasing a franchise which would act as a release, estoppel or 
waiver of any liability incurred under the Maryland Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

The provisions in the Regional Developer Agreement relating to the general release that is required as a 
condition of renewal, sale and assignment/transfer shall not apply to any liability under the Maryland 
Franchise Registration and Disclosure Law. 

Lawsuits by either you or us may take place in Maryland for claims arising under the Maryland Franchise 
Registration and Disclosure Law. 

Any limitation of claims provision(s) in the Regional Developer Agreement shall not act to reduce the 3-
year statute of limitations afforded to you for bringing a claim under the Law. Any claims arising under the 
Maryland Franchise Registration and Law must be brought within 3 years after the grant of the franchise 
to you. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MICHIGAN 

The state of Michigan prohibits certain unfair provisions that are sometimes in franchise documents. 
If any of the following provisions are in these franchise documents, the provisions are void and cannot 
be enforced against you. 

(a) A prohibition of the right of a Franchisee to join an association of Franchisees. 

(b) A requirement that a Franchisee assent to a release, assignment, novation, waiver, or 
estoppel which deprives a Franchisee of rights and protections provided in this act. This shall not preclude 
a Franchisee, after entering into a franchise agreement, from settling any and all claims. 

(c) A provision that permits a franchisor to terminate a franchise prior to the expiration of its 
term except for good cause. Good cause shall include the failure of Franchisee to comply with any lawful 
provision of the franchise agreement and to cure such failure after being given written notice thereof and a 
reasonable opportunity, which in no event need be more than 30 days, to cure each failure. 

(d) A provision that permits a franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise without fairly 
compensating Franchisee by repurchase or other means for the fair market value at the time of expiration 
of Franchisee's inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings. Personalized materials which have 
no value to the Franchisor and inventory, supplies, equipment, fixtures, and furnishings not reasonably 
required in the conduct of the franchised business are not subject to compensation. This subsection applies 
only if (i) the term of the franchise is less than 5 years and (ii) Franchisee is prohibited by the franchise or 
other agreement from continuing to conduct substantially the same business under another trademark, 
service mark, trade name, logotype, advertising, or other commercial symbol in the same area subsequent 
to the expiration of the franchise or Franchisee does not receive at least 6 months' notice of franchisor's 
intent not to renew the franchise. 

(e) A provision that permits the Franchisor to refuse to renew a franchise on terms generally 
available to other Franchisees of the same class or type under similar circumstances. This section does not 
require a renewal provision. 

 (f) A provision requiring that arbitration or litigation be conducted outside this state. This shall 
not preclude Franchisee from entering into an agreement, at the time of arbitration, to conduct arbitration 
at a location outside this state. 
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(g) A provision which permits a franchisor to refuse to permit a transfer of ownership of a 
franchise, except for good cause. This subdivision does not prevent a franchisor from exercising a right of 
first refusal to purchase the franchise. Good cause shall include, but is not limited to: 

(i) The failure of the proposed transferee to meet the Franchisor's then-current 
reasonable qualification or standards. 

(ii) The fact that the proposed transferee is a competitor of the Franchisor or 
sub-franchisor. 

(iii) The unwillingness of the proposed transferee to agree in writing to comply with 
all lawful obligations. 

(iv) The failure of Franchisee or proposed transferee to pay any sums owing to the 
Franchisor or to cure any default in the franchise agreement existing at the time of the 
proposed transfer. 

(h) A provision that requires Franchisee to resell to the Franchisor items that are not uniquely 
identified with the Franchisor. This subdivision does not prohibit a provision that grants to a franchisor a 
right of first refusal to purchase the assets of a franchise on the same terms and conditions as a bona fide 
third party willing and able to purchase those assets, nor does this subdivision prohibit a provision that 
grants the Franchisor the right to acquire the assets of a franchise for the market or appraised value of such 
assets if Franchisee has breached the lawful provisions of the franchise agreement and has failed to cure 
the breach in the manner provided in subdivision (c). 

(i) A provision which permits the Franchisor to directly or indirectly convey, assign, or 
otherwise transfer its obligations to fulfill contractual obligations to Franchisee unless provision has been 
made for providing the required contractual services. 

The fact that there is a notice of this offering on file with the attorney general does not constitute approval, 
recommendation, or endorsement by the attorney general. 

Any questions regarding this notice should be directed to the Attorney General's Department for the State 
of Michigan, Consumer Protection Division, Franchise Section, 670 Law Building, 525 W. Ottawa Street, 
Lansing, Michigan 48913, (517) 373-7117. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF MINNESOTA 

We will protect your right to use the Marks and/or indemnify you from any loss, costs or expenses arising 
out of any claim, suit, or demand regarding the use of the Marks. 

Minn. Rule 2860.4400D prohibits us from requiring you to assent to a general release. Any release you sign 
as a condition of renewal or transfer will not apply to any claims you may have under the Minnesota 
Franchise Law. 

With respect to franchises governed by Minnesota law, we will comply with Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C. 14, 
subds., 3, 4 and 5 which require, except in certain specified cases, that you be given 90 days' notice of 
termination (with 60 days to cure) and 180 days' notice for nonrenewal of the Regional Developer 
Agreement. 
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Minn. Stat. § 80C.17, Subd. 5, states that no civil action pertaining to a violation of a franchise rule or 
statute can be commenced more than three years after the cause of action accrues 

Minn. Stat. Sec. 80C.21 and Minn. Rule 2860.4400J prohibit us from requiring litigation to be conducted 
outside Minnesota. In addition, nothing in this Disclosure Document or the Regional Developer Agreement 
can abrogate or reduce any of your rights as provided for in Minnesota Statutes, Chapter 80C, or your rights 
to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction. 

Minn. Rule Part 2860.4400J prohibits us from requiring you to waive your rights to a jury trial or waive 
your rights to any procedure, forum, or remedies provided for by the laws of the jurisdiction, or consenting 
to liquidated damages, termination penalties or judgment notes. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NEW YORK 

1. The following information is added to the cover page of the Franchise Disclosure Document: 

INFORMATION COMPARING FRANCHISORS IS AVAILABLE. CALL THE STATE 
ADMINISTRATORS LISTED IN EXHIBIT A OR YOUR PUBLIC LIBRARY FOR SERVICES 
OR INFORMATION. REGISTRATION OF THIS FRANCHISE BY NEW YORK STATE DOES 
NOT MEAN THAT NEW YORK STATE RECOMMENDS IT OR HAS VERIFIED THE 
INFORMATION IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. IF YOU LEARN 
ANYTHING IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT IS UNTRUE, CONTACT THE 
FEDERAL TRADE COMMISSION AND THE APPROPRIATE STATE OR PROVINCIAL 
AUTHORITY. THE FRANCHISOR MAY, IF IT CHOOSES, NEGOTIATE WITH YOU ABOUT 
ITEMS COVERED IN THE FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. HOWEVER, THE 
FRANCHISOR CAN NOT USE THE NEGOTIATING PROCESS TO PREVAIL UPON A 
PROSPECTIVE FRANCHISEE TO ACCEPT TERMS THAT ARE LESS FAVORABLE THAN 
THOSE SET FORTH IN THIS FRANCHISE DISCLOSURE DOCUMENT. 

2. The following is to be added at the end of Item 3: 

With the exception of what is stated above, the following applies to the franchisor, its predecessor, a person 
identified in Item 2, or an affiliate offering franchises under the franchisor's principal trademark: 

A. No such party has an administrative, criminal, or civil action pending against that person 
alleging: a felony, a violation of a franchise, antitrust, or securities law, fraud, 
embezzlement, fraudulent conversion, misappropriation of property, unfair or deceptive 
practices, or comparable civil or misdemeanor allegations. 

B. No such party has pending actions, other than routine litigation incidental to the business, 
which are significant in the context of the number of franchisees and the size, nature, or 
financial condition of the franchise system or its business operations. 

C. No such party has been convicted of a felony or pleaded nolo contendere to a felony charge 
or, within the 10-year period immediately preceding the application for registration, has 
been convicted of or pleaded nolo contendere to a misdemeanor charge or has been the 
subject of a civil action alleging: violation of a franchise, antifraud, or securities law; fraud; 
embezzlement; fraudulent conversion or misappropriation of property; or unfair or 
deceptive practices or comparable allegations. 
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D. No such party is subject to a currently effective injunctive or restrictive order or decree 
relating to the franchise, or under a Federal, State, or Canadian franchise, securities, 
antitrust, trade regulation, or trade practice law, resulting from a concluded or pending 
action or proceeding brought by a public agency; or is subject to any currently effective 
order of any national securities association or national securities exchange, as defined in 
the Securities and Exchange Act of 1934, suspending or expelling such person from 
membership in such association or exchange; or is subject to a currently effective injunctive 
or restrictive order relating to any other business activity as a result of an action brought 
by a public agency or department, including, without limitation, actions affecting a license 
as a real estate broker or sales agent. 

3. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17(c), titled "Requirements 
for a franchisee to renew or extend," and Item 17(m), entitled "Conditions for franchisor 
approval of transfer": 

However, to the extent required by applicable law, all rights you enjoy and any causes of action 
arising in your favor from the provisions of Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of 
New York and the regulations issued thereunder shall remain in force; it being the intent of this 
proviso that the non-waiver provisions of General Business Law Sections 687(4) and 687(5) be 
satisfied. 

4. The following language replaces the "Summary" section of Item 17(d), titled "Termination by 
franchisee": You may terminate the agreement on any grounds available by law. 

5. The following is added to the end of the "Summary" sections of Item 17(v), titled "Choice of 
forum," and Item 17(w), titled "Choice of law": 

The foregoing choice of law should not be considered a waiver of any right conferred upon the 
franchisor or the franchisee by Article 33 of the General Business Law of the State of New York 

6. Franchise Questionnaires and Acknowledgements--No statement, questionnaire, or 
acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the commencement of the 
franchise relationship shall have the effect of (i) waiving any claims under any applicable state 
franchise law, including fraud in the inducement, or (ii) disclaiming reliance on any statement made 
by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This provision 
supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

7. Receipts--Any sale made must be in compliance with § 683(8) of the Franchise Sale Act (N.Y. 
Gen. Bus. L. § 680 et seq.), which describes the time period a Franchise Disclosure Document 
(offering prospectus) must be provided to a prospective franchisee before a sale may be made. New 
York law requires a franchisor to provide the Franchise Disclosure Document at the earlier of the 
first personal meeting, ten (10) business days before the execution of the franchise or other 
agreement, or the payment of any consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. 

8. No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection 
with the commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims 
under any applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaiming 
reliance on any statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf 
of the franchisor. This provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection 
with the franchise. 
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REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF NORTH DAKOTA 

The Regional Developer Agreement contains a covenant not to compete which extends beyond the 
termination of your Regional Developer Business. This provision may not be enforceable under North 
Dakota law. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement provides that the place of arbitration will be located at the 
office of the American Arbitration Association closest to our principal executive offices, we agree that the 
place of arbitration will be a location that is in close proximity to the site of your Regional Developer 
Business. 

The Regional Developer Agreement requires that you consent to the jurisdiction of a court in close 
proximity to our principal executive offices. This provision may not be enforceable under North Dakota 
law because North Dakota law precludes you from consenting to jurisdiction of any court outside of North 
Dakota. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement provides that it will be governed by and construed in 
accordance with the laws of the State of Arizona, we agree that the laws of the State of North Dakota will 
govern the construction and interpretation of the Regional Developer Agreement. 

A contractual requirement that you sign a general release may be unenforceable under the laws of North 
Dakota. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement requires Franchisee to consent to a waiver of trial by jury, 
the Commissioner has determined that a requirement requiring the waiver of a trial by jury to be unfair, 
unjust, and inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment 
Law. This provision is not enforceable in North Dakota. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement requires Franchisee to consent to a waiver of exemplary and 
punitive damages, the Commissioner had determined these types of provisions to be unfair, unjust, and 
inequitable within the intent of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. This 
provision is not enforceable in North Dakota. 

Although the Regional Developer Agreement requires Franchisee to consent to a limitation of claims period 
within one year, the Commissioner had determined this to be unfair, unjust, and inequitable within the intent 
of Section 51-19-09 of the North Dakota Franchise Investment Law. The limitation of claims period is 
therefore governed by North Dakota law. 

To the extent any provision of the Regional Developer Agreement requires you to consent to a waiver 
of exemplary or punitive damages, the provision will be deemed null and void. 

REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF RHODE ISLAND 

Even though our Regional Developer Agreement says the laws of Arizona apply, § 19-28.1-14 of the Rhode 
Island Franchise Investment Act provides that "A provision in a franchise agreement restricting jurisdiction 
or venue to a forum outside this state or requiring the application of the laws of another state is void with 
respect to a claim otherwise enforceable under this Act." 
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REQUIRED BY THE STATE OF WASHINGTON 

In the event of a conflict of laws, the provisions of the Washington Franchise Investment Protection Act, 
Chapter 19.100 RCW will prevail. 

RCW 19.100.180 may supersede the Regional Developer Agreement in your relationship with the 
franchisor including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. There may also be court 
decisions which may supersede the Regional Developer Agreement in your relationship with the franchisor 
including the areas of termination and renewal of your franchise. 

In any arbitration or mediation involving a franchise purchased in Washington, the arbitration or mediation 
site will be either in the state of Washington, or in a place mutually agreed upon at the time of the arbitration 
or mediation, or as determined by the arbitrator or mediator at the time of arbitration or mediation. In 
addition, if litigation is not precluded by the franchise agreement, a franchisee may bring an action or 
proceeding arising out of or in connection with the sale of franchises, or a violation of the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act, in Washington. 

A release or waiver of rights executed by a franchisee may not include rights under the Washington 
Franchise Investment Protection Act or any rule or order thereunder except when executed pursuant to a 
negotiated settlement after the agreement is in effect and where the parties are represented by independent 
counsel. Provisions such as those which unreasonably restrict or limit the statute of limitations period for 
claims under the Act, or rights or remedies under the Act such as a right to a jury trial, may not be 
enforceable. 

Transfer fees are collectable to the extent that they reflect the franchisor’s reasonable estimated or actual 
costs in effecting a transfer. 

Pursuant to RCW 49.62.020, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an employee, 
including an employee of a franchisee, unless the employee’s earnings from the party seeking enforcement, 
when annualized, exceed $100,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for inflation). In 
addition, a noncompetition covenant is void and unenforceable against an independent contractor of a 
franchisee under RCW 49.62.030 unless the independent contractor’s earnings from the party seeking 
enforcement, when annualized, exceed $250,000 per year (an amount that will be adjusted annually for 
inflation). As a result, any provisions contained in the franchise agreement or elsewhere that conflict with 
these limitations are void and unenforceable in Washington. 

No statement, questionnaire, or acknowledgment signed or agreed to by a franchisee in connection with the 
commencement of the franchise relationship shall have the effect of: (i) waiving any claims under any 
applicable state franchise law, including fraud in the inducement; or (ii) disclaim-ing reliance on any 
statement made by any franchisor, franchise seller, or other person acting on behalf of the franchisor. This 
provision supersedes any other term of any document executed in connection with the franchise. 

RCW 49.62.060 prohibits a franchisor from restricting, restraining, or prohibiting a franchisee from (i) 
soliciting or hiring any employee of a franchisee of the same franchisor or (ii) soliciting or hiring any 
employee of the franchisor. As a result, any such provisions contained in the franchise agreement or 
elsewhere are void and unenforceable in Washington. 
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EXHIBIT I 
State Effective Dates 

The following states have franchise laws that require that the Franchise Disclosure Document be registered 
or filed with the states, or be exempt from registration: California, Hawaii, Illinois, Indiana, Maryland, 
Michigan, Minnesota, New York, North Dakota, Rhode Island, South Dakota, Virginia, Washington, and 
Wisconsin. 

This document is effective and may be used in the following states, where the document is filed, registered, 
or exempt from registration, as of the Effective Date stated below: 

State Effective Date 

California Pending 

Hawaii Pending 

Illinois Pending 

Indiana Pending 

New York Pending 

Wisconsin Pending 

 

Other states may require registration, filing or exemption of a franchise under other laws, such as those that 
regulate the offer and sale of business opportunities or seller-assisted marketing plans. 
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EXHIBIT J 
RECEIPTS 
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RECEIPT  
(YOUR COPY – RETAIN FOR YOUR FILES) 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other 
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to 
you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in 
connection with the proposed franchise sale, or sooner if required by applicable law. 

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting 
or 10 business days before execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any 
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure 
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise agreement or other 
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

If Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains 
a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have 
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the 
applicable state agency listed in Exhibit A. 

The franchisor is Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, located at 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260. Its telephone number is (480) 386-9708. 

The following broker(s) will represent us in connection with the sale of our franchises: T.J. O’Connor at 
14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260 and telephone number (480) 386-9708. 

Issuance Date: June 24, 2024 

See Exhibit A for our registered agents authorized to receive service of process. 

I have received a Franchise Disclosure Document dated June 24, 2024. This Disclosure Document included 
the following Exhibits: 

A. State Administrators/ 
Agents for Service of Process 

B. Regional Developer Agreement 
C. Table of Contents of Manual 
D. Financial Statements 
E. Confidentiality/Non-Disclosure Agreement 

F. List of Franchisees 
G. General Release Agreement  
H. State-Specific Disclosures 
I. State Effective Dates 
J. Receipts 
 

Date:               

Signature of Prospective Franchisee:           

Print Name:              

You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to us at Redline Athletics 
Franchising, LLC, located at 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260, or by 
faxing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to us at 480-207-1680.  
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RECEIPT  
(OUR COPY – SIGN, DATE AND RETURN TO US) 

This Disclosure Document summarizes certain provisions of your Franchise Agreement and other 
information in plain language. Read this Disclosure Document and all agreements carefully. 

If Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC offers you a franchise, it must provide this Disclosure Document to 
you 14 calendar days before you sign a binding agreement with, or make a payment to, us or an affiliate in 
connection with the proposed franchise sale, or sooner if required by applicable law. 

New York requires that we give you this Disclosure Document at the earlier of the first personal meeting 
or 10 business days before execution of the franchise or other agreement or the payment of any 
consideration that relates to the franchise relationship. Michigan requires that we give you this Disclosure 
Document at least 10 business days before the execution of any binding franchise agreement or other 
agreement or the payment of any consideration, whichever occurs first. 

If Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC does not deliver this Disclosure Document on time, or if it contains 
a false or misleading statement, or a material omission, a violation of federal law and state law may have 
occurred and should be reported to the Federal Trade Commission, Washington, D.C. 20580, and the 
applicable state agency listed in Exhibit A. 

The franchisor is Redline Athletics Franchising, LLC, located at 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, 
Scottsdale, Arizona 85260. Its telephone number is (480) 386-9708. 

The following broker(s) will represent us in connection with the sale of our franchises: T.J. O’Connor at 
14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260 and telephone number (480) 386-9708. 

Issuance Date: June 24, 2024 

See Exhibit A for our registered agents authorized to receive service of process. 

I have received a Franchise Disclosure Document dated June 24, 2024. This Disclosure Document included 
the following Exhibits: 

A. State Administrators/ 
Agents for Service of Process 

B. Regional Developer Agreement 
C. Table of Contents of Manual 
D. Financial Statements 
E. Confidentiality/Non-Disclosure Agreement 

F. List of Franchisees 
G. General Release Agreement  
H. State-Specific Disclosures 
I. State Effective Dates 
J. Receipts 
 

Date:               

Signature of Prospective Franchisee:           

Print Name:              

You may return the signed receipt either by signing, dating, and mailing it to us at Redline Athletics 
Franchising, LLC, located at 14000 North Hayden Road, Suite 101, Scottsdale, Arizona 85260, or by 
faxing a copy of the signed and dated receipt to us at 480-207-1680. 
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	A. This Agreement has been written in an informal style to make it more easily readable and to be sure that you are thoroughly familiar with all of the important rights and obligations the Agreement covers before you sign it. This Agreement includes s...
	B. Through the expenditure of considerable time, effort, and money, we and our affiliates have devised a system for the establishment and operation of specialized training centers (each a “Redline Performance Center”) that offer sports performance tra...
	C. From time to time we grant to persons who meet our qualifications, the right to operate Redline Athletics Regional Developer Businesses who will open and operate or solicit and assist Franchisees in opening and operating an agreed number of Redline...
	D. Regional Developer desires to establish a business (a "Regional Developer Business") under which it will solicit, qualify, train, and assist franchisees (the "Franchisees") to build and operate Redline Performance Centers within the Development Are...

	1. GRANT OF RIGHTS. Subject to the terms of this Agreement, we hereby grant to Regional Developer, and Regional Developer hereby accepts the rights, during the Initial Term, to solicit, screen, qualify for final approval by us, train, and assist Franc...
	2. REGIONAL DEVELOPER'S DEVELOPMENT OBLIGATION.
	2.1 Minimum Development Obligations and Development Schedule.
	(a) Regional Developer shall solicit, screen, qualify, train, and assist Franchisees to construct, equip, open, and operate the total number of Redline Performance Centers set forth in Exhibit 2 (the "Minimum Development Obligation"), in the manner an...
	(b) Each Franchise shall be the subject of a separate Franchise Agreement (as defined herein). We and the Franchisee shall enter into our then-current form of franchise agreement (the "Franchise Agreement").
	(c) Redline Performance Centers which are the subject of a Franchise Agreement executed pursuant to this Agreement shall be counted in determining whether the Minimum Development Obligation shall have been met within the applicable Development Schedule.
	(d) During the Term, if we or you wish to establish additional Redline Performance Centers within the Development Area over and above the Minimum Development Obligation, and we have determined, in our sole discretion, that the Development Area can sus...

	2.2 Regional Developer Sales Office and Opening. Regional Developer shall establish and operate a franchise sales office ("Regional Developer Sales Office" or "Sales Office") from any location you choose. We will not approve or disapprove of the locat...

	3. EXCLUSIVITY.
	3.1 Territorial Rights. Except as provided in Section 3.2, as long as this Agreement is in effect, and you are in compliance with this Agreement, and meet the Minimum Development Obligation set forth in this Agreement, then we and our affiliates will ...
	3.2 Rights Maintained by Company. We (and any affiliates that we might have from time to time) shall at all times have the right to engage in any activities we deem appropriate that are not expressly prohibited by this Agreement, whenever and wherever...
	(a) establish and operate Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer Businesses, and granting right to other persons to establish and operate Redline Performance Centers or Regional Developer Businesses, on any terms and conditions we deem app...
	(b) establish and operate Redline Performance Centers and/or grant other persons the right to establish and operate Redline Performance Centers within your Development Area to the extent that such additional Redline Performance Centers exceed the tota...
	(c) acquire the assets or ownership interest of one or more businesses providing Products and Services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, and franchising, licensing, or creating similar arrangements with respect to these busines...
	(d) be acquired (regardless of the form of transaction) by a business providing Products and Services similar to those provided at Redline Performance Centers, or by another business, even if such business operates, franchises and/or licenses competit...


	4. TERM. The initial term of this Agreement (the "Initial Term") shall be for a period of ten (10) years commencing on the Effective Date, unless sooner terminated in accordance with the provisions of Section 13. Regional Developer shall have the righ...
	5. ADDITIONAL OBLIGATIONS OF COMPANY AND REGIONAL DEVELOPER.
	5.1 Regional Developer Training. Within sixty (60) days after the Effective Date, but no later than thirty (30) days before you open your Regional Developer Business for business, we or our designee will provide approximately two (2) days of training ...
	(a) If we determine that Regional Developer cannot complete initial training to our satisfaction, we may, at our option, either (1) require Regional Developer to attend additional training at Regional Developer's expense (for which we may charge reaso...
	(b) Regional Developer shall participate in periodic webinars and sales calls scheduled by us for Regional Developer Businesses and attend a national business meeting or convention of up to three days each year. We may also require Regional Developer ...
	(c) Because you are not required to operate Redline Performance Centers it is unlikely that you will be required to organize or alter your business structure to ensure compliance with the laws that are applicable to Franchisees. We are not obligated t...

	5.2 Regional Developer Manual.
	(a) We shall loan to Regional Developer one (1) copy of our Regional Developer manual (the "Manual for RDS") and one (1) copy of our operations manual for Redline Performance Centers ("Manual for Locations") (collectively referred to as the "Manuals")...
	(b) We shall have the right to modify or supplement the Manuals. Such modifications and supplements shall be effective and binding on Regional Developer after notice thereof is mailed or otherwise delivered to Regional Developer. Regional Developer ac...
	(c) The Manuals are our property and may not be duplicated, copied, disclosed, or disseminated in whole or in part in any manner except with our express prior written consent. Regional Developer shall maintain the confidentiality of the Manuals. Upon ...

	5.3 General Guidance. We will provide guidance to Regional Developer in the Manuals and other bulletins or other written materials, by electronic distribution, and/or by telephone consultation. If Regional Developer requests and we agree to provide ad...
	5.4 Franchise Registration and Disclosure. Neither Regional Developer nor any representative of Regional Developer shall solicit Prospective Franchisees until we have registered our current Franchise Disclosure Document in applicable jurisdictions in ...
	(a) prepare and forward to us verified financial statements of Regional Developer in such form and for such periods as shall be designated by us, including audited financial statements, if necessary and appropriate to comply with applicable legal disc...
	(b) promptly provide all information reasonably required by us to prepare all requisite disclosure documents and ancillary documents for the offering of franchises throughout the Development Area; and
	(c) execute all documents required by us for the purpose of registering Regional Developer and us throughout the Development Area.

	5.5 Investigation and Qualification of Prospective Franchisees.
	(a) We will screen, qualify, and process applications from Prospective Franchisees in your Development Area sourced from leads generated by third party marketing firms retained by us on Regional Developer’s behalf.
	(b) Each Redline Performance Center opened by a Franchisee pursuant to this Agreement shall be the subject of a separate Franchise Agreement with us, in our then-current form of Franchise Agreement. Regional Developer shall have no right to modify or ...
	(c) If we shall approve a Franchisee and a prospective franchise location, Regional Developer shall transmit to such Franchisee for execution copies of our then-current Franchise Agreement pertaining to the approved site and providing for a protected ...
	(d) Regional Developer shall investigate the qualifications of each prospective Franchisee (“Prospective Franchisees”) and the suitability of each prospective franchise location in the Development Area in accordance with our standards, policies and pr...
	(e) After Regional Developer is satisfied that a Prospective Franchisee meets the standards established by us, Regional Developer may recommend to us the approval of such Prospective Franchisee. Regional Developer shall then furnish to us all informat...
	(f) We may conduct or obtain such credit reports and background checks on Prospective Franchisees as we deem necessary or convenient. We may then approve or disapprove a Prospective Franchisee for any reason and may seek further information with respe...
	(g) Regional Developer shall deliver to us a copy of all correspondence with Franchisees which is material to the franchise relationship, concurrently with its being sent or received by Regional Developer.
	(h) Regional Developer shall ensure that each Franchisee within your Development Area conducts a legal review of the laws applicable to Franchised Businesses within the Franchisee's state, and that such legal review is provided to us within thirty (30...

	5.6 Training and Support. Regional Developer agrees to implement any training programs developed by us for Redline Performance Centers and to provide such assistance and services as we shall reasonably request and require from time to time in connecti...
	5.7 Inspection of Redline Performance Centers and Operations. Regional Developer shall conduct inspections of all of the Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area and review the operations of all Redline Performance Centers in the Developmen...

	6. OPERATING STANDARDS.
	6.1 Standard of Service. Regional Developer shall at all times give prompt, courteous, and efficient service to Redline Performance Centers in the Development Area. Regional Developer shall, in all dealings with Franchisees, Prospective Franchisees an...
	6.2 Compliance with Laws and Good Business Practices. Regional Developer shall secure and maintain in force all required licenses, permits and certificates relating to Regional Developer's activities under this Agreement and operate in full compliance...
	6.3 Accuracy of Information. Before it solicits a Prospective Franchisee, Regional Developer shall each time take reasonable steps to confirm that the information contained in any written materials, agreements and other documents related to the offer ...
	6.4 Notice of Litigation. Regional Developer shall notify us in writing within five (5) days after the commencement of any action, suit, arbitration, proceeding, or investigation, or the issuance of any order, writ, injunction, award and decree, by an...
	6.5 Insurance. Regional Developer shall, at all times during the term of this Agreement, maintain in force, at Regional Developer's sole expense, insurance written on an occurrence basis for the Regional Developer Business of the types, in the amounts...
	6.6 Proof of Insurance Coverage. Regional Developer will provide proof of insurance to us before beginning operations of its Regional Developer Business. This proof will show that the insurer has been authorized to inform us in the event any policies ...
	6.7 Advertising Requirements, Funds, and Cooperatives.
	(a) Minimum Advertising Requirement. You must meet the minimum advertising requirement we establish for your Regional Developer Business ("Minimum Advertisement Requirement").  We and you agree that your timely, monthly payment of the Development Mark...
	(b) We will direct all marketing programs financed by the RD Ad Fund, and will have sole discretion over the creative concepts, materials and endorsements used by the RD Ad Fund, and the geographic, market, and media placement and allocation of any RD...
	(c) The RD Ad Fund will be accounted for separately from our other funds and will not be used to pay any of our general operating expenses, except for salaries, administrative costs, and overhead that we incur in activities reasonably related to the a...
	(d) We may cause the RD Ad Fund to be incorporated or operated through an entity separate from us when we deem appropriate, and the entity will have the same rights and duties as we do under a Regional Developer agreement. We do not have to ensure tha...
	(e) We may suspend contributions to, and the operations of, the RD Ad Fund for any period we deem appropriate and may terminate an RD Ad Fund upon 30 days' written notice to you. All unspent monies held by the RD Ad Fund on the date of termination wil...

	6.8 Approval of Advertising. Prior to their use by Regional Developer, samples of all advertising and promotional materials not prepared or previously approved by us shall be submitted to us for approval, which approval shall not be unreasonably withh...
	6.9 Websites. As used in this Agreement, the term "Website" means an interactive electronic document contained in a network of computers linked by communications software that refers to the Marks, System, and Redline Performance Centers, and includes ...
	6.10 Accounting, Bookkeeping and Records. Regional Developer shall maintain at its Sales Office in the Development Area all original invoices, receipts, checks, contracts, licenses, acknowledgement of receipt forms, and bookkeeping and business record...
	6.11 Reports. Regional Developer shall, as often as required by us, deliver to us a written report of its Regional Developer Business activities in such form and detail as we may from time to time specify, including information about efforts to solici...
	6.12 Computer Systems.
	(a) Regional Developer agrees to use the computer systems and operating software ("Computer System") that we specify from time to time in the development and operation of the Regional Developer's business. You acknowledge that we may modify such speci...
	(b) The Company will provide you with its proprietary office management software (the "Company Software"), which you will be required to install onto the Computer System and use in the operation of your Regional Developer Business. You will pay us a T...

	6.13 Management of Business. You must personally participate in the direct operation of your Regional Developer Business. If you do not personally participate in the direct operation of your Regional Developer Business on a full-time basis, then you a...

	7. FEES.
	7.1 Development Fee. Regional Developer shall pay to us a non-refundable "Development Fee" payable upon execution of this Agreement in the amount specified on Exhibit 1 to this Agreement. If we require Regional Developer to acquire an in-depth demogra...
	7.2 Development Marketing Fee. You will pay us, on a monthly basis, via ACH, EFT, or similar electronic transaction, a marketing fee to assist you in the development of your Development Area (the “Development Marketing Fee”). The Development Marketing...
	7.3 Technology Fee. You are required to pay a monthly technology fee which allows you to access our intranet site, including, training programs and the Company Software. The monthly technology fee is currently $325/month. We may increase the technolog...

	8. PAYMENTS TO REGIONAL DEVELOPER.
	8.1 Initial Fee Commission and Conditions of Payment. During the term of this Agreement, Regional Developer shall be paid a commission, as set forth in this Section, paid from the initial franchise fees paid by Franchisees and/or Regional Developer fo...
	8.2 Commissions on Royalty Fees. We shall pay to Regional Developer, on the 10th day of the month after royalty payments are actually received by us from each Franchisee located in the Development Area:
	(a) From Redline Performance Center Franchisees. Three percent (3%) of the gross revenues (which excludes advertising and marketing fees) actually received by us from each Franchisee located in the Development Area during the applicable period pursuan...
	(b) The terms "gross revenues" shall, for purposes of this Agreement, mean the total of all revenue and receipts derived from the operation of a Redline Business, including all amounts received at or away from the site of a Redline Performance Center,...

	8.3 Commissions After Termination. All payments under this Section 8 shall immediately and permanently cease after the expiration or termination of this Agreement, although Regional Developer shall receive all amounts which have accrued to Regional De...
	8.4 Application of Payments. Our payments to Regional Developer shall be based on amounts actually collected from Franchisees, not on payments accrued, due or owning. In the event of termination of a Franchise Agreement within the Development Area, we...
	8.5 Setoffs. Regional Developer shall not be allowed to set off amounts owed to us for fees or other amounts due under this Agreement against any monies owed to Regional Developer by us, which right to set-off, is hereby expressly waived by Regional D...

	9. MARKS.
	9.1 Ownership and Goodwill of Marks. Regional Developer's right to use the Marks is derived only from this Agreement and is limited to Regional Developer's operation of its Regional Developer Business. Regional Developer's unauthorized use of the Mark...
	9.2 Limitations on Regional Developer's Use of Marks. Regional Developer may not use any Mark: (1) as part of any corporate or legal business name; (2) with any prefix, suffix or other modifying words, terms, designs, symbols other than logos we have ...
	9.3 Notification of Infringements and Claims. Regional Developer agrees to notify us immediately of any apparent infringement of or challenge to Regional Developer's use of any Mark, or of any person's claim of any rights in any Mark, and not to commu...
	9.4 Discontinuance of Use of Marks. If we believe at any time that it is advisable for us and/or Regional Developer to modify or discontinue using any Mark and/or use one or more additional or substitute trademarks or service marks, Regional Developer...
	9.5 Indemnification for Use of Marks. We agree to indemnify and reimburse Regional Developer against and for all damages for which Regional Developer is held liable in any trademark infringement proceeding arising out of Regional Developer's authorize...

	10. CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION.
	10.1 We possess (and may continue to develop and acquire) certain confidential information relating to the development and operation of Redline Performance Centers and Regional Developer Businesses (the "Confidential Information"), which includes (wit...
	10.2 Regional Developer acknowledges and agrees that the Confidential Information is proprietary, includes our trade secrets, and is disclosed to Regional Developer only on the condition that Regional Developer agrees, and it does agree, that Regional...
	(a) will not use any Confidential Information in any other business or capacity;
	(b) will keep the Confidential Information absolutely confidential during and after this Agreement's term;
	(c) will not make unauthorized copies of any Confidential Information disclosure via electronic medium or in written or other tangible form;
	(d) will adopt and implement all reasonable procedures that we periodically prescribe to prevent unauthorized use or disclosure of Confidential Information, including, without limitation: (i) restricting its disclosure to Regional Developer's personne...
	(e) will not sell, trade, or otherwise profit in any way from the Confidential Information, except using methods approved by us.

	10.3 All ideas, concepts, techniques, or materials relating to Redline Performance Centers or Regional Developer Businesses, whether or not protectable intellectual property and whether created by or for Regional Developer or its employees, must be pr...
	10.4 "Confidential Information" does not include information, knowledge, or know-how which is or becomes generally known in business consulting industry or which Regional Developer knew from previous business experience before we provided it to Region...

	11. ASSIGNABILITY.
	11.1 Assignability by Company. We have the right to assign this Agreement, or any of our rights and privileges under this Agreement to any other person, firm or corporation,  without Regional Developer's prior consent, and we shall not be liable for a...
	11.2 Assignments by Regional Developer. We have entered into this Agreement in reliance upon and in consideration of the singular personal skills, character, aptitude, business ability, financial capacity and qualifications of Regional Developer and t...
	11.3 In this Agreement, the term "Transfer" includes any voluntary, involuntary, direct, or indirect assignment, sale, gift, or other disposition and includes the following events:
	(a) transfer of record or beneficial ownership of capital stock in Regional Developer (if Regional Developer is a corporation), a partnership or membership interest (if Regional Developer is a partnership or limited liability company), or any other ow...
	(b) a merger, consolidation or exchange of shares or other ownership interests, or issuance of additional ownership interest or securities representing or potentially representing shares or other ownership interests, or a redemption of shares or other...
	(c) any sale or exchange of voting interests or securities convertible to voting interests, or any agreement granting the right to exercise or control the exercise of the voting rights of any Principal Owner or to control Regional Developer's operatio...
	(d) transfer of an interest in Regional Developer, this Agreement, or Regional Developer Business or its assets (or any right to receive all or a portion of Regional Developer's business' profits or losses or any capital appreciation relating to the R...
	(e) if Regional Developer or an Owner (if Regional Developer is a business entity) dies, transfer of an interest in Regional Developer, this Agreement, or the Regional Developer Business or its assets (or any right to receive all or a portion of Regio...
	(f) pledge of this Agreement (to someone other than us) or of an ownership interest in Regional Developer (if Regional Developer is a business entity) as security, foreclosure upon the Development Area franchises, or Regional Developer's transfer, sur...

	11.4 Conditions for Approval of Assignment or Transfer. We may impose any reasonable condition(s) to the granting of our consent to such assignments. Without limiting the generality of the foregoing, the imposition by us of any or all of the following...
	(a) that the Assignee (or the principal officers, shareholders, directors, or general partners of the Assignee in the case of a business entity Assignee) demonstrates that it has the skill, qualifications, and economic resources necessary, in our judg...
	(b) that Regional Developer has paid all amounts owed to us;
	(c) that the Assignee shall expressly assume in writing for our benefit all of the obligations of Regional Developer under this Agreement and any other agreements proposed to be assigned to such Assignee;
	(d) that neither the Assignee nor its owners or affiliates operates, has an ownership interest in or performs services for a Competitive Business (defined in Section 12.2);
	(e) that the Assignee shall have completed (or agreed to complete) our training program;
	(f) that the Assignee signs our then-current form of Regional Developer Agreement, the provisions of which may differ materially from any and all of those contained in this Agreement, and the term of which shall be the remaining term of this Agreement;
	(g) that as of the date of any such assignment, the assignor shall have strictly complied with all of its obligations to us, whether under this Agreement or any other agreement, arrangement or understanding with us;
	(h) that the Assignee is not then in default of any of the obligation to us under any agreement between such Assignee and us;
	(i) that the assignor shall pay to us a transfer fee of Thirty Thousand Dollars ($30,000), except for Transfers pursuant to Section 11.5 below;
	(j) that the assignor and the assignor's spouse (if any) shall sign a general release, in a form satisfactory to us, of any and all claims against us and our affiliates and our and their respective shareholders, officers, directors, employees, represe...
	(k) that assignor will not directly or indirectly at any time or in any manner identify himself, herself or itself or any business as a current or former Redline Performance Center or as one of our Franchisees or Regional Developers, use any Mark, any...

	11.5 Assignment to Entity Principally Controlled by You. The Regional Developer Business and its assets and liabilities may be assigned to a newly formed corporation or other legal entity that conducts no business other than the operation of the Regio...
	(a) that the proposed transferee complies with the provisions of this Agreement; and
	(b) that you are empowered to act for said corporation or other legal entity; and
	(c) that you shall submit to us documentation that we may reasonably request to effectuate the transfer, including the approving and acknowledging execution of this Agreement; and
	(d) that you shall submit to us a true and complete list of the shareholders, members, or partners, showing number of shares or interests owned, and a list of the officers and directors if a corporation or managers if a limited liability company, or m...
	(e) that all certificates of shares or interests issued by transferee at any time shall be endorsed thereon the appropriate legend to conform with state law, referring to this Agreement by date and name of parties hereto and stating, "Transfer to This...
	(f) that a copy of this Agreement shall be given to every shareholder, member, or partner; and
	(g) that a copy of the organizational documents and any corporate resolutions and a Certificate of Good Standing will be furnished to us at our reasonable request, and prompt notification in writing of any amendments thereto will be provided to us; and
	(h) that the number of shares or interests issued or outstanding in the transferee will not be increased or decreased without prior written notice to us, which notice will in its terms guarantee compliance with this Agreement. In addition, new shareho...

	11.6 Death or Disability.
	(a) Upon the death or disability of Regional Developer or an Owner, the executor, administrator, conservator, guardian, or other personal representative must assign, sell, or transfer Regional Developer's interest in this Agreement, the Regional Devel...
	(b) If, upon the death or disability of Regional Developer or an Owner, a trained manager who we approve is not managing the day-to-day operations, then the executor, administrator, conservator, guardian or other personal representative must, within a...

	11.7 Company's Right of First Refusal.
	(a) If Regional Developer at any time determines to sell or transfer an interest in this Agreement or the Regional Developer Business, or if Owner determines to sell or transfer a controlling ownership interest in Regional Developer, then Regional Dev...
	(b) We may, by delivering written notice to the Seller within fifteen (15) days after we receive both an exact copy of the offer and all other information requested, elect to purchase the interest for the price and on the terms and conditions containe...
	(c) If we do not exercise our right of first refusal, the Seller may complete the sale to the proposed buyer on the original offer's terms, subject to our approval of the transfer as provided above. If the Seller does not complete the sale to the prop...

	11.8 Ownership Structure. Regional Developer represents and warrants that all persons holding direct or indirect, legal, or beneficial ownership interests in Regional Developer (collectively, the "Owners") are listed in Exhibit 3 and that its ownershi...

	12. NON-COMPETITION.
	12.1 During the Term of this Agreement, neither Regional Developer, any of the owners of Regional Developer ("Principal Owners"), nor any member of Regional Developer's or a Principal Owner's immediate family will have any direct or indirect interest ...
	12.2 For an eighteen (18) month period following the assignment, expiration, or termination of this Agreement, for any reason, neither Regional Developer, any Principal Owner, nor any member of Regional Developer's or a Principal Owner's immediate fam...

	13. TERMINATION.
	13.1 Termination by Company. We may terminate this Agreement, effective upon written notice of termination to Regional Developer, if:
	(a) Regional Developer or one of its Owners makes or attempts to make a transfer in violation of Section 11;
	(b) Regional Developer fails to meet the Minimum Development Obligation for any period of the Development Schedule;
	(c) Regional Developer has made or makes a material misrepresentation or omission in acquiring the rights under this Agreement or in operating the Regional Developer Business;
	(d) Regional Developer does not satisfactorily complete initial training;
	(e) Regional Developer is convicted by a trial court of, or pleads no contest to, a felony;
	(f) Regional Developer fails to maintain the insurance we require from time to time;
	(g) Regional Developer or an Owner engages in any dishonest, unethical, or illegal conduct or any other conduct which, in our opinion, adversely affects our reputation, the reputation or other Redline Performance Centers or the goodwill associated wit...
	(h) Regional Developer knowingly makes any unauthorized use or disclosure of any part of the Manuals or any other Confidential Information;
	(i) Developer (a) fails on three (3) or more separate occasions within any twenty-four (24) consecutive month period to submit when due reports or other data, information or supporting records, pay when due any amounts due to us (or our affiliates), o...
	(j) Regional Developer makes an assignment for the benefit of creditors or admits in writing insolvency or inability to pay debts generally as they become due; Regional Developer consents to the appointment of a receiver, trustee or liquidator of all ...
	(k) Regional Developer fails to comply with any other provision of this Agreement and does not correct the failure within thirty (30) days after we deliver written notice of the failure to Regional Developer;
	(l) Regional Developer fails to pay any sums due to us and does not correct the failure within ten (10) days after we deliver written notice of that failure to Regional Developer; or
	(m) Another agreement between Franchisor and Regional Developer or a Principal Owner or affiliate of Regional Developer is terminated.

	13.2 Rights and Obligations Upon Termination or Expiration. Upon the expiration of the Initial Term or Renewal Term, as the case may be, or upon the earlier termination of this Agreement, Regional Developer shall have no further right to construct, eq...
	13.3 Termination Fee. In the event Regional Developer terminates this Agreement or ceases to do business, or Company terminates this Agreement pursuant to Paragraph 13.1 of this Agreement, the Regional Developer shall pay Company a termination fee equ...

	14. MEDIATION AND ARBITRATION.
	14.1 Mediation. If a dispute arises under this Agreement, the parties agree to try to settle the dispute through good-faith participation in a mediation conducted by a mediator who is acceptable to both parties before proceeding to arbitration. Howeve...
	14.2 Arbitration. Except insofar as we elect to enforce this Agreement or to seek temporary or permanent injunctive relief as provided above, all controversies, disputes or claims arising between us, our affiliates, owners, officers, directors, agents...

	15. GENERAL CONDITIONS AND PROVISIONS.
	15.1 Relationship of the Parties.
	(a) You and we understand and agree that this Agreement does not create a fiduciary relationship between you and us, that you and we are and will be independent contractors, and that nothing in this Agreement is intended to make either you or us a gen...
	(b) We and you may not make any express or implied agreements, warranties, guarantees, or representations, or incur any debt, in the name or on behalf of the other or represent that our respective relationship is other than franchisor and franchisee. ...
	(c) We will have no liability for any sales, use, service, occupation, excise, gross receipts, income, property, or other taxes, whether levied upon you or your Redline Athletics business, due to the business you conduct (except for our income taxes)....

	15.2 Indemnification. To the fullest extent permitted by law, Regional Developer agrees to indemnify, defend and hold harmless us, our affiliates, and our and their respective shareholders, directors, officers, employees, agents, representatives, succ...
	15.3 Waiver and Delay. Except as otherwise expressly provided to the contrary, no waiver by us of any breach or series of breaches or defaults in performance by the Regional Developer, and no failure, refusal or neglect of or by us to exercise any rig...
	15.4 Survival of Covenants. The covenants contained in this Agreement which, by their terms, require performance by the parties after the expiration or termination of this Agreement or ancillary agreements, shall be enforceable notwithstanding said ex...
	15.5 Successors and Assigns. This Agreement shall be binding upon and inure to the benefit of the legal representatives, successors and assigns of us and Regional Developer.
	15.6 Joint and Several Liability. If either party consists of more than one person or entity, or a combination thereof, the obligations and liabilities of each such person or entity to the other under this Agreement are joint and several.
	15.7 Governing Law. Except to the extent governed by the United States Trademark Act of 1946 (Lanham Act, 15 U.S.C. §§ 1051 et seq.) and except for all issues relating to arbitrability or the enforcement or interpretation of the agreement to arbitrate...
	15.8 Consent to Jurisdiction. Subject to Section 14 and the provisions below, Regional Developer and its owners agree that all actions arising under this Agreement or otherwise as a result of the relationship between Regional Developer and us must be ...
	15.9 Waiver of Punitive Damages and Jury Trial. Except for Regional Developer's obligation to indemnify us under Section 15.2 above and except where authorized by federal statute, we and Regional Developer and its Owners waive to the fullest extent pe...
	15.10 Limitation of Claims. Any and all claims arising out of or relating to this Agreement or our relationship with Regional Developer, except for claims for indemnification under Section 15.2 above, will be barred unless a judicial or arbitration pr...
	15.11 Entire Agreement. This Agreement and the Exhibits incorporated in the Agreement contain all of the terms and conditions agreed upon by the parties to this Agreement with reference to the subject matter of this Agreement. No other agreements, and...
	15.12 Headings. Article and Section headings used in this Agreement are for convenience only and shall not be deemed to affect the meaning or construction of any of the terms, provisions, covenants, or conditions of this Agreement.
	15.13 Gender. All terms used in any one number or gender shall extend to mean and include any other number and gender as the facts, context or sense of this Agreement or any section or paragraph hereof may require.
	15.14 Severability. Except as expressly provided to the contrary in this Agreement, each Section, paragraph, term and provision of this Agreement in severable, and if, for any reason, any part thereof, to be invalid or contrary to or in conflict with ...
	15.15 Fees and Expenses. Should any party to this Agreement commence any action or proceeding for the purpose of enforcing, or preventing the breach of, any provision of this Agreement, whether by arbitration, judicial or quasi-judicial action or othe...
	15.16 Notices. Except as otherwise expressly provided herein, all written notices and reports permitted or required to be delivered by the parties pursuant to this Agreement shall be deemed so delivered at the time delivered by hand, one (1) business ...
	15.17 Time of Essence. Time shall be of the essence for all purposes of this Agreement.
	15.18 Lien and Security Interest. To secure your performance under this Agreement and indebtedness for all sums due us or our affiliates, we shall have a lien upon, and you hereby grant us a security interest in, the following collateral and any and a...
	15.19 Cross-Default. Any default by Regional Developer under any other agreement between Franchisor or its affiliate as one party and Regional Developer or any of Regional Developer's owners or affiliates as the other party, shall be deemed to be a de...

	16. SUBMISSION OF AGREEMENT. This Agreement shall not be binding upon us unless and until it shall have been submitted to and signed by our authorized agent, and the date of said signing as set forth on the first page of this Agreement shall be the ef...
	17. ACKNOWLEDGMENTS. To induce us to sign this Agreement and grant Regional Developer the rights contained in this Agreement, Regional Developer acknowledges:
	17.1 That Regional Developer has independently investigated the Regional Developer Business franchise opportunity and recognizes that, like any other business, the nature of the Regional Developer Business may, and probably will, evolve and change ove...
	17.2 That an investment in a Regional Developer Business involves business risks.
	17.3 That Regional Developer's business abilities and efforts are vital Regional Developer's success.
	17.4 That performing Regional Developer's obligations will require a high level of customer service and strict adherence to the System.
	17.5 That Regional Developer has not received or relied upon, and we expressly disclaim making any representation, warranty, or guaranty, express or implied, as to the revenues, profits or success of a Regional Developer Business or any Redline Perfor...
	17.6 That any information Regional Developer has acquired from Franchisees or other Regional Developers regarding their sales, profits or cash flows is not information obtained from us, and we make no representation about that information's accuracy.
	17.7 That Regional Developer has no knowledge of any representations made about the Regional Developer Business opportunity by us, our subsidiaries, or affiliates or any of their respective officers, directors, shareholders, or agents that are contrar...
	17.8 That in all of their dealing with Regional Developer, our officers, directors, employees, and agents act only in a representative, and not in an individual capacity and that business dealings between Regional Developer and them as a result of thi...
	17.9 That Regional Developer has represented to us, to induce us to enter into this Agreement, that all statements Regional Developer has made, and all materials Regional Developer has given to us in acquiring the Regional Developer Business are accur...
	17.10 That Regional Developer has read this Agreement and our Franchise Disclosure Document and understands and accepts that the terms and covenants in this Agreement are reasonably necessary for us to maintain our high standards of quality and servic...
	We possess certain unique confidential and proprietary information and trade secrets consisting of the following categories of information, methods, techniques, products, and knowledge developed by us, including but not limited to: (1) services and pr...
	You agree that your relationship with us does not vest in you any interest in the Confidential Information, other than the right to use it in the development and operation of your Redline Performance Center, and that the use or duplication of the Conf...
	During the Term of the Franchise Agreement and for an eighteen (18) month period following the assignment, expiration or termination of the Franchise Agreement, neither Owner nor an Owner's immediate family will have any direct or indirect interest (e...
	If the scope of any restriction contained in this Guaranty is too broad to permit the enforcement of that restriction to its fullest extent, then that restriction will be enforced to the maximum extent permitted by law, and Franchisor and Franchisee e...
	(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee.
	(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents.
	(a) Representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents to a prospective franchisee.
	(b) Reliance by a franchisee on any representations made by the franchisor or its personnel or agents.
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